Public Document Pack

Agenda
Meeting:

Executive

To:

Councillors Carl Les (Chair), Gareth Dadd (Vice-Chair),
Derek Bastiman, David Chance, Caroline Dickinson,
Michael Harrison, Andrew Lee, Don Mackenzie,
Patrick Mulligan, Janet Sanderson and Greg White.

Date:

Tuesday, 31st August 2021

Time:

11.00 am

Venue:

Remote meeting held via Microsoft Teams

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances,
remote live-broadcast committee meetings should continue (as informal meetings of the
Committee Members), with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive
Officer under his emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers
and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee
Members. This approach will be reviewed in September 2021.
The meeting will be available to view once the meeting commences, via the following link www.northyorks.gov.uk/livemeetings Recordings of previous live broadcast meetings are also
available there.

Business
1.

Introductions

2.

Declarations of Interest

3.

Public Questions and Statements
Members of the public may ask questions or make statements at this meeting if they
have given notice to Melanie Carr of Democratic and Scrutiny Services and supplied the
text (contact details below) by midday on Wednesday 25 August 2021, three working
days before the day of the meeting. Each speaker should limit themselves to 3 minutes
on any item. Members of the public who have given notice will be invited to speak:

at this point in the meeting if their questions/statements relate to matters which are
not otherwise on the Agenda (subject to an overall time limit of 30 minutes);

Page 1
OFFICIAL



when the relevant Agenda item is being considered if they wish to speak on a matter
which is on the Agenda for this meeting.

If you are exercising your right to speak at this meeting, but do not wish to be recorded,
please inform the Chairman who will instruct anyone who may be taking a recording to
cease while you speak.
4.

Q1 Budget Report
i) The Executive is asked to note:

(Pages 5 - 74)

a) the latest position for the County Council’s 2021/22 Revenue Budget, as
summarised in paragraph 2.1.2.
b) the position on the GWB (paragraphs 2.4.1 to 2.4.3)
c) the position on the ‘Strategic Capacity – Unallocated’ reserve (paragraphs 2.4.4
to 2.4.6)
d) the position on the County Council’s Treasury Management activities during the
first quarter of 2021/22
ii)

The Executive is also asked to recommend to the Chief Executive Officer that using
his emergency delegated powers, he:
e) approves the creation of the Local Government Review transition fund
(paragraphs 2.5.1 to 2.5.7)
f) approves the amendments to the Approved Lending List
g) refers this report to the Audit Committee for their consideration as part of the
overall monitoring arrangements for Treasury Management.
h) approves the refreshed Capital Plan summarised at paragraph 4.2.3; and
i) agrees that no action be taken at this stage to allocate any additional capital
resources (paragraph 4.5.8)
j) recommends to the County Council that it approves the revised Prudential
Indicators for the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 as set out in Appendix A

5.

Development of Adult Social Care Provider Services
(Pages 75 - 88)
The Executive is asked to:
i) Note the proposal to undertake further feasibility studies into the future use of Neville
House EPH whilst continuing to deliver services from the site.
ii) Recommend to the Chief Executive Officer that using his emergency delegated
powers, he approve:
 the retention of Ashfield, Skipton and Siler Birches as locality hubs, and;
 the use of capital and transformation funding to allow for the necessary physical
and operational changes to be made to both sites

6.

Healthy Child Programme - Emotional Health and Wellbeing
(Pages 89 - 140)
The Executive is asked to recommend to the Chief Executive Officer, that using his
emergency delegated powers, he approve:
i) The commencement of a public consultation on the use of a S75 to facilitate the joint
commissioning of the delivery of Emotional Health and Wellbeing Services for
Children and Young People between the Council and NYCCG;
ii)

The draft Section 75 Agreement.

iii)

That the consultation responses be presented to the Executive in January 2022, and
subject to the outcome of the consultation, a final draft Section 75 agreement be
brought back to Executive for approval.

Page 2
OFFICIAL

7.

Forward Plan

8.

Other business which the Leader agrees should be considered as a matter of
urgency because of special circumstances

(Pages 141 - 150)

Contact Details
Enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Melanie Carr Tel: 01609 533849 or e-mail:
Melanie.carr1@northyorks.gov.uk
Website: www.northyorks.gov.uk

Barry Khan
Assistant Chief Executive
(Legal and Democratic Services)
County Hall
Northallerton
20 August 2021

Page 3
OFFICIAL

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
INFORMAL MEETING OF EXECUTIVE MEMBERS
31 August 2021
QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE AND BUDGET MONITORING REPORT
Joint Report of the Chief Executive and
Corporate Director – Strategic Resources

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Background
The Quarterly Performance and Budget Monitoring Report seeks to bring together key aspects of
the County Council performance on a quarterly basis. The Summary below captures the key
points in this Quarterly update as set out in the main body of the attached report.
Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the Council’s
Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take any decision,
which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following on from the expiry of
the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and
Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020, which allowed for
committee meetings to be held remotely, the County Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May
2021 that, for the present time, in light of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote
live-broadcast committee meetings should continue (as informal meetings of the Committee
Members), with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his
emergency decision making powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as
appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members. This
approach will be reviewed in September 2021.
Revenue Budget 2021/22
There is an overall projected net underspend of £2,791k against budget for 2021/22 (paragraph
2.2.1). The key drivers of the financial position are set out below:
1. Responding to the COVID-19 pandemic continues to bring significant costs and
responsibilities leading to overspends in several directorates, which has been largely offset
by additional government funding.
2. There is a lot of volatility and uncertainty within the directorate budgets, despite a projected
underspend on aggregate.
3. A breakdown of each Directorates forecast variance is provided in Appendices B to F with
the financial position for NYES provided in Appendix G.
4. There is a proposal to set-aside one-off funding for the transitional arrangements following
local government reorganisation in North Yorkshire in Section 2.5.

Capital Plan

Page 5
OFFICIAL

1. The Council is currently planning to invest £171.2m on capital schemes across the County
in 2021/22 and £252.1m, in total, over the next 5 years.
2. Planned financing of the capital spend in 2021/22 (paragraph 4.5.5 & Appendix E)
includes £17.2m capital receipts. After utilising other estimated capital income (grants,
contributions and revenue contributions) totalling £138.5m, the balancing figure of £21.4m
is planned to be funded from internal borrowing which has the impact of running down
investments.
3. £17.7m potential surplus capital resources are available over the Capital Plan period
(paragraph 4.5.5). This could be used to fund capital expenditure or to reduce the
Council’s outstanding debt.

Annual Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators
1. External debt stood at £236.0m at 30 June 2021. The average interest rate of this debt was
4.46% (paragraph 3.19).
2. The forecast capital borrowing requirement for 2021/22 is £18.5m (paragraph 3.21) which
will increase the internal borrowing position.
3. Investments outstanding at 30 June 2021 were £480.7m (£479.4m at 31 March 2021) of
which £181.4m belonged to other organisations who are part of NYCC’s investment pool
arrangements, with a daily average balance of £497.1m up to Q1 of 2021/22 (paragraph
3.15 & Appendix A).
4. For cash invested the average interest rate achieved in Q4 was 0.18% which exceeded the
7 day benchmark rate of -0.08% and was above bank rate of 0.10%. (paragraph 3.15).

RICHARD FLINTON
Chief Executive

GARY FIELDING
Corporate Director, Strategic Resources

County Hall
Northallerton
31 August 2021

Page 6
OFFICIAL

Contents
1.0

2020/21 Quarter 4 Performance Commentary

2.0

Revenue Budget 2021-22

3.0

Treasury Management

4.0

Capital Plan

5.0

Legal Implications

6.0

Consultation and Responses

7.0

Conclusions and Recommendations

Page 7
OFFICIAL

2.0

REVENUE BUDGET 2021/22

2.1

BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY

2.1.1 This section of the report presents details of the projected revenue outturn for
the 2021/22 financial year. The latest in-year 2021/22 budget is £400,247k
with the net movement since the budget approved by Executive and County
Council in February 2020 shown in Appendix A.
2.1.2 At the end of Q1, there is a projected net underspend of £2,791k (0.7%)
against operational budgets. Further detail is provided in section 2.2.

2.2

OPERATIONAL BUDGETS

2.2.1 The table below identifies the operational budgets for each of the Directorates
in 2021/22. The projected revenue outturn indicates a number of variances,
which together produce a net projected underspend of £2,791k. Issues of note
include:




Lot of volatility within individual directorates, despite healthy position in
aggregate,
An improvement in the underlying budget position of HAS mainly
reflecting the additional funding provided as part of the 2021/22
approved budget, and
Government funding continues to significantly offset a number of
Covid-19 costs.

Page 8
OFFICIAL

Directorate

Budget
(£k)

Projected
Outturn
(£k)

Variance
(£k)

2020/21
Outturn
Variance
(£k)

HAS Gross

180,443

181,778

1,335

+8,944

Winter
Pressures/
growth

-

-

-

-4,000

iBCF
funding

-

(1,335)

(1,335)

-550

HAS Net

180,443

180,443

0

+4,394

BES

74,402

74,519

117

-22

CYPS

80,087

83,816

3,729

(2,104)

LA Provision
for High
Needs

2,500

2,500

0

-

CYPS Net

82,587

86,316

3,729

(2,104)

Central
Services

69,348

68,891

(457)

+3,948

Corporate
Misc.

7,446

1,266

(6,180)

+20,272

Directorate
Totals

414,225

411,735

(2,791)

+26,448

Covid19
Grant
Funding

-10,860

(10,860)

-

-35,578

TOTAL

403,365

400,875

(2,791)

-9,090

It is also worth noting that a £3.1m transfer from reserves already supports
this budget figure.
2.2.2 A summary of the overall Health and Adult Services (HAS) position across
public health and adult social care (ASC) is outlined in Appendix B and
shows a forecast breakeven position against the budget for the 2021/22
financial year. In arriving at this figure, the Directorate will use the full £7.1m
of additional growth allocated by the County Council. At this stage, most of
this is shown separately pending decisions and data prior to allocation to
relevant budget lines. The position also reflects use of £1.3m of temporary
iBCF (improved Better Care Fund) funding to meet adult social care
pressures, as has been the case in previous years.

Page 9
OFFICIAL

2.2.3 The Directorate is also continuing to manage a number of specific grants
provided by central government to fund costs arising from the COVID-19
pandemic both within the Council and for passporting to external care
providers; these have been taken into account in the forecast outturn position.
These grants total £10.6m for 21/22 and include Infection Prevention Control,
Rapid Testing and Contain Outbreak Management funding (COMF).
2.2.4 In addition, the Directorate is continuing to manage the hospital discharge
programme. From 1 April to 30 June 2021, the first six weeks of care package
costs for people discharged from hospital or to avoid hospital admissions
were funded by the Government, via CCGs. This reduced to the first four
weeks of costs between 1 July and 30 September 2021. After this initial
period of funding from the CCGs, costs are picked up by the Council, with the
expectation that assessments should be completed as soon as is practical to
ensure transition from temporary to normal funding arrangements. There is
currently uncertainty around funding arrangements post September, if CCG
funding does not continue then there will be increased costs to the Council for
these care packages, these costs have not been included at this stage, but
this will continue to be reviewed throughout the year.
Within the forecast breakeven position are a number of under and overspends
against budget, the main variances are detailed below:


Care and Support is showing an overall overspend of £7.2m, although all
of this is covered at this stage by the unallocated growth funding.
However, the forecast position demonstrates that there continues to be
pressure on Care and Support budgets, particularly in Harrogate, including
increases in numbers and average costs, Continuing Health Care (CHC)
funding and young people transitioning into Care and Support with high
costs. Remedial action is underway to attempt to reduce this pressure.
There are also additional cost pressures as a result of the pandemic
including increased staffing costs, loss of income and increased
equipment costs. As seen in the Quarterly Performance Report, activity
levels are starting to return to (and exceed) pre-pandemic levels and this is
reflected in the finance figures.



Provider Services & Elderly Care/Personal Care at Home is showing a
forecast overspend of £1.5m. This is mainly as a result of COVID-19
pressures within the service including additional staffing and materials and
loss of income as a result of services being stopped or reduced.



Other COVID-19 costs continue to be incurred by the Directorate during
21/22 (£0.5m). These costs include additional staffing and hardship and
compensatory payments to support external care providers.



Commissioning and quality are forecasting an underspend of £0.9m.
This has arisen mainly as a result of one-off contract savings due to lower
volumes of activity and further underspends due to contract efficiencies. In
addition, the service is receiving COVID income to fund staff supporting
the pandemic.

Page 10
OFFICIAL



Mental Health Services are forecasting an overspend of £0.3m in 21/22.
This is mainly as a result of an increase in the forecasted Mental Health
care packages and placements as a direct consequence of the pandemic.



Integration and Engagement are forecasting an underspend of £0.2m for
21/22 due to staffing vacancies within the service.

2.2.5 Public Health is currently forecasting on budget. As in previous years, this
position assumes the planned use of earmarked reserves.
2.2.6 Appendix C includes details of the projected variance within Business and
Environmental Services and includes a forecast net overspend of £117k for
2021/22. Areas of significant variation are;


Concessionary Fares – Grant support from the Department for Transport
has been of benefit to operators and to the net budget. The impact of this
is a saving of £331k. Additionally, a further saving due to decreased
demand is expected of £125k, bringing the overall forecast underspend to
£456k.



Waste Management –Increased recycling and green waste tonnages as a
result of the COVID-19 lockdowns and post lockdown, along with reduced
income from district councils for commercial waste, is driving a forecast
pressure of £1,300k. At Q1, a cautious tonnage forecast has been
predicted similar to 20/21 tonnages, however as businesses re-open and
households return to pre-Covid routines, this could serve to reduce the
expected overspend.
In addition, decreased HWRC recyclate income driven by market prices
and increased processing costs are resulting in a forecast overspend of
£175k, however the market is currently experiencing an upturn, which is
having a positive effect on prices, which is built into this forecast. There is
a risk to highlight, as it is currently unknown if this upturn is short-term and
so this will be closely monitored as the year progresses.
An insurance rebate resulted in a £650k return to the authority for this
year. Along with an expected underspend due to staffing vacancies of
£115k, this serves to reduce the overall forecast overspend in Waste
Management to £651k.



Highways Fees and Charges – Additional income from street works
licensing and penalty notices (£193k) along with additional income for
development management charges (£179k).



Street Lighting and Traffic Signals – Reduced energy usage for traffic
signals is resulting in a forecast underspend of £128k. Further energy cost
savings for street lighting could continue as in previous years, however a
cautious approach of forecasting to budget has been taken until contracts
with energy suppliers are finalised for the current year, the extent of this
will be known in Q2.

Page 11
OFFICIAL



Highways maintenance – A forecast in line with budget is included for
highways maintenance at Q1 following a successful launch of NY
Highways on 1 June 2021. As it is still early days, a fuller picture should
emerge by Q2 reporting, with which to inform the forecast.



Growth, Planning & Trading Standards (MAST Team) – Delays in court
trials are impacting the charges collected by the Multi-Agency
Safeguarding Team resulting in a forecast overspend of £150k.

2.2.7 A summary of the projected revenue outturn for Children and Young
Peoples Services (CYPS) is available within Appendix D and shows a net
overspend position of £3.7m at the end of the 2021/22 financial year. The
main areas contributing to the overspend are:


Home to School Transport – Mainstream Transport is running to budget
but the service is seeing pressures within the SEN Home to School
Transport, from an increased number of requests but also the average
cost has slightly increased. This has resulted in an overall predicted
overspend of £785k for 2020/21 (3%).



Children and Families Service - The service are currently anticipating an
overspend of £566k with the main driver being pressure on staff costs. The
Safeguarding team are most impacted by this as they are responding to an
increased number of contacts potentially as a result of pent-up demand
created by COVID-19. There are currently no vacancies within this area
and the budget is based upon a notional vacancy factor. This situation
may however change resulting in a reduced overspend through the year.



Child Placement – are predicting an overall overspend of 4% for the year,
(£415k). They have seen an increase in costs driven primarily by a single
specialist secure placements (£345k).



Pooled Budget – currently forecasting an overspend of £1.2m, which is
split between Local Authority and DSG. There are continuing costs from a
high cost placement, which started earlier this year, but mainly driven by
increased costs resulting from a specific issue following OFSTED
intervention with a provider and an unexpected need to provide places for
4 children.



Inclusion – following suppressed demand during last year due to COVID19, there has been a sharp rise in the demand for Occupational Therapy
assessments and equipment creating a projected overspend of £213k.



Disabled Children’s Service are looking at a potential overspend of
£204k for the current financial year. The main pressures driving this are
continuing from the prior years around staffing costs and reduced Health
Income Streams. The service are drawing to the end of a review from
which there is expected to be recommendations about how best to deliver
the service going forward.

Page 12
OFFICIAL



Adult Learning & Skills Service (ALSS) is undergoing a restructure in
how the service is delivered. In order to achieve the savings they need to
get back to a breakeven point and repay the prior year’s deficit. Initial
predictions for the outturn for the year is a loss of £575k. This is partially
driven by the reduced numbers of learners that have been recruited during
the pandemic.



Outdoor Learning (£760k overspend), following ceased trading during
2020/21 due to COVID, the centres were able to start to accept some day
trips during the summer term 2021, with the aim to continue with these in
September. A Strategic Review of the service is being undertaken to look
at the future of the service.

2.2.8 High Needs Block Funding (HN)


As previously reported the unprecedented demand within the High Needs
Block has continued throughout the system with pressures in SEN
Assessments, Educational Phycology and SEN Transport.



Within High Needs block of the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), we have
a shortfall in funding to be able to meet demand, so this year have an
overspend of £3.3m, which is more than anticipated due to pent up
demand from COVID. This is £800k above the £2.5m the LA had budgeted
to be overspent on the High Needs block for 2021/22.



Although we are not able to cover the deficit with Local Authority Funds,
an equal and opposite reserve has been established for prudence.

2.2.9 Central Services variance details are included within Appendix E and
includes a forecast net underspend of £457k for 2021/22. Areas of significant
variation are;


Business Support Services – Underspend £351k – The ongoing impact
of Covid 19 measures are resulting in a forecast underspend for external
venues (£296k), staff transport costs (£351k) & office supplies (£80k) in
line with savings seen during 2020/21. However, additional costs for
staffing (£330k), mainly as a result of additional resource requirements to
support Covid 19 recovery partially offset the underspends.



Coroners – Coroners salaries set by the chief coroner are not covered by
current budget, along with additional costs for post mortems and forensic
testing are resulting in a forecast overspend of £281k.



Registrars – The forecast is based on the assumption that whilst some
venues have restrictions remaining, that ceremonies will continue to go
ahead, with minimal impact on the number of ceremonies taking
place. The main element of underspend is forecast as a result of
additional fees income from registration certificates (£237k).



Domestic Abuse (Policy, & Partnerships) – Additional in year funding
has been received towards Domestic Abuse Duty, a portion of this funding

Page 13
OFFICIAL

will be utilised towards existing contracts in year resulting in a forecast
underspend in 2021/22 of existing budget of £519k. A new strategy /
commissioning plan is being developed, the delivery of which will require
this funding. By Q2 we will have more certainty of timing of spend and it is
likely that it will be requested that this underspend is carried forward to
2022/23.


COVID Support - Community Support payments, Small Grants, Food
Vouchers and Family Fund Support payments are forecast to continue for
the first half of 2021/22 totalling £900k however, central government
funding received will be utilised to cover these costs to negate an impact
on the 2021/22 outturn.

2.2.10 Appendix F provides further details on the variances for Corporate
Miscellaneous that is projecting a net underspend of £6,180k for 2021/22.
Areas of significant variation are;








General Provision – includes unallocated inflation provision, which is
currently not forecast to be required in 2021/22.
HAS Corporate Contingency – based on the latest information, a £1m
underspend is currently forecast.
Income Guarantee Scheme – Reporting a £715k shortfall, based on
revised forecast information relating to collection fund deficits for both
Council Tax and Business Rates.
Treasury Management – forecasting a £593k overspend reflecting loss
on interest earned on loans to third parties, offset by an improved
position on the property fund valuation.
Waste Budget Strategy Provision – currently forecasting £821k
underspend, however given the pressures highlighted in waste
services this decision may need to be reviewed ahead of Q2.

2.2.11 The outturn statement for the County Council’s NYES traded service is also
attached at Appendix G for information. These services are mainly provided
to schools in the County and the figures reported do not have any further
impact on those in the above table because, where relevant, the charges are
already incorporated in Directorate forecast budget outturn positions.
2.3

BUDGET/ MTFS SAVINGS TARGETS

2.3.1 The 2021/22 revenue budget reflects previously agreed and updated 2020
North Yorkshire savings targets and these are incorporated into Directorate
2021/22 budget control totals shown in the table in paragraph 2.2.1. These
savings targets (which are in addition to savings targets reflected in previous
year’s budgets) total £7,544k, and consist of:

Page 14
OFFICIAL

Item

£m

Budget Savings in 2021/22 agreed in the February 2021
budget and earlier years MTFS savings targets:
BES
CYPS
HAS
CS
Corporate
Shortfall
Total savings reflected in 2021/22 budget

0.6
1.5
0.4
1.0
1.0
3.1
7.6

2.3.2 Assessment of progress against the targets indicates that there are some
areas of the programme where savings are unlikely to be achieved within
expected timescales for 2021/22. These are outlined in the table below but it
should be noted that the impact of these delays are already incorporated into
the projected outturn position in paragraph 2.2.1

At Risk/ Cash-funding of Projects in 2021/22

£000’s

Compass Reach

£75k

Policy, Partnerships & Performance

£24k

Technology and Change

£84k

TOTAL

£183k

2.3.3 In addition part of the savings from schemes in earlier years totalling £556k
are forecasting to remain unrealised in 2021/22.
At Risk/Cash-funding of Projects from prior years
Strength-based assessments
Reablement
Brokerage
Winter Salt Heaps and Bins
Procurement
Strategic Support
Developer’s One Stop Shop
TOTAL

£’000’s
£200k
£125k
£50k
£75k
£77k
£24k
£5k
£556k

Again, it should be noted that these are already incorporated into the forecast
outturn position in paragraph 2.2.1
2.3.4 Variances from the 2021/22 Budget are being tracked as part of the
governance of the 2020 North Yorkshire savings programme. The net position
is always reported within the quarterly Revenue Budget monitoring report and
details of the variances are included in Appendices B to F.

Page 15
OFFICIAL

2.3.5 As further savings are required the schemes to achieve these will become
more challenging and inevitably contain a higher level of uncertainty and risk.
Therefore, it is imperative that delivery of each saving is closely monitored.
2.4

GENERAL WORKING BALANCE

2.4.1 A key feature of the Revenue Budget for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial
Strategy, approved by County Council on 17 February 2021, is to maintain the
General Working Balance (GWB) at a defined minimum acceptable level.
2.4.2 For 2021/22, the defined minimum level has been a policy target as follows:
(i)

(ii)

Maintenance of a minimum of 2% of the net revenue budget for the
GWB in order to provide for unforeseen emergencies etc.
supplemented by;
An additional (and reviewable) cash sum of £20m to be held back in
the event of a slower delivery of savings targets;

and reflects:
(i)

(ii)

The increased number of risk factors which the County Council is
facing as set out in Section 10 of the 2021/22 Budget report and in
particular;
Savings targets not being delivered on time;

2.4.3 Taking into account the GWB policy on minimum balances – 2% of the net
revenue budget plus £20m – GWB at year-end amounts to £28m. This is held
at “policy” level and any unallocated balance in excess of this level is
transferred to ‘Strategic Capacity – Unallocated’.
2.4.4 The anticipated movement in the balance of the Strategic Capacity –
Unallocated reserve over 2021/22 is as follows:
Strategic Capacity – Unallocated
Actual Balance as at 31.03.21

£68,513k

Planned MTFS contribution from reserve

(£3,118k)

Release of reserves following review
Other drawdowns/ releases

+7,099k
+937k

Forecast Balance as at 31.03.22

£73,431

2.4.5 The balance of the Strategic Capacity – Unallocated Reserve as at 31 March
2021 was £68,513k. The following table provides an initial longer-term
forecast for this reserve.

Page 16
OFFICIAL

Year End

31 March
2022
31 March
2023
31 March
2024

Start
Year

Funding
changes
to reserve

£000

£000

68,513

8,036

Latest Forecast
Transfer
Use of
of outturn
Strategic
balance
Capacity
reserve to
support the
MTFS
£000
£000

End-Year

£000

(3,118)

73,431

73,431

(21,650)

51,781

51,781

(18,464)

33,317

2.4.6 The figures in the table above are based purely on the cumulative shortfalls
identified in the current MTFS and show that the strategic capacity reserve
would reduce by over 55% over the existing MTFS period unless there are
further savings and/or other funding identified.
2.5 Local Government Reorganisation
2.5.1 With the government’s recent announcement of support for a single unitary
authority covering all of the North Yorkshire County Council footprint thoughts
can now turn to progressing the creation of the new authority.
2.5.2 In drawing up the case for new local government structures for North
Yorkshire, financial modelling was undertaken by the County Council (using
PriceWaterhouseCoopers) to identify the potential costs and savings from any
reorganisation. This showed significant ongoing savings from a single unitary
model of between £31.9m to £68.5m per annum depending upon the level of
achievable transformation. This was estimated to equate to between £133.4m
and £259.8m of net savings over a 5 year period. However, it also identified
some one off transitional costs to deliver these benefits and they were
estimated at £38m in the County Council’s business case. Whilst these
figures were based on realistic potential scenarios, and informed by
experience from previous local government restructures, clearly the actual
nature and extent of these costs will only be confirmed as we move towards
the new structure.
2.5.3 However, it does give at least an initial figure for financial planning purposes.
It is essential that resources are established as early as possible in order to
maximise the successful transition. Contributions can be expected from all 8
councils within North Yorkshire but the largest contribution will inevitably come
from the County Council. The costs of transition are one-off so it is
appropriate to review (one-off) reserves as a source of funding.
2.5.4 A means of accessing the LGR Transition Fund will be needed. This issue will
be addressed as part of the joint working of the 8 North Yorkshire councils

Page 17
OFFICIAL

and will also be addressed in a subsequent LGR themed report to the
Executive.
2.5.5 The Table below identifies the identification of up to £34.1m of reserves that
can be used for this purpose and it is proposed that they are ringfenced for
LGR transitional funding in advance of further discussions taking place with
the seven North Yorkshire District Councils about contributions from those
councils.

Source
COVID Reserve
Corporate Contingency Budget 21/22
Other reserve releases identified as part of annual
reserve challenge sessions
Q1 forecast underspend
Total

£000
20,500
10,000
946
2,791
34,237

2.5.6 The key element in this total is a reserve created early in 2020/21 in response
to the anticipated impact of the pandemic on our key income sources, council
tax and business rates. At that stage, using national data, the anticipated
losses were very significant and a reserve of £20.5m was created to offset
these. In reality, receipts were much more buoyant and the Government later
announced a grant scheme to compensate for these losses on top of our
internal provision. The whole of this reserve is therefore available as funding
towards the transitional costs.
2.5.7 In addition, based on the current forecast outturn position, the corporate
contingency budget will not need to be applied in the current financial year
and this, together with any in year budget underspend, could also be used
towards funding these transitional costs.
2.5.8 Given the volatility of the current position (namely covid; market conditions;
individual supplier issues; demand for services etc) it can not be precluded
that these sums will need to be redirected for in-year pressures. This will,
however, be monitored closely and reported in remaining Q reports.

2.6

Recommendation
That the Executive
(i)

notes the latest position for the County Council’s 2021/22 Revenue
Budget, as summarised in paragraph 2.1.2.

(ii)

notes the position on the GWB (paragraphs 2.4.1 to 2.4.3)

Page 18
OFFICIAL

(iii)

notes the position on the ‘Strategic Capacity – Unallocated’ reserve
(paragraphs 2.4.4 to 2.4.6)

(iv)

approves the creation of the Local Government Review transition
fund (paragraphs 2.5.1 to 2.5.7)

REVENUE BUDGET APPENDICES
A

2021/22 Latest Revenue Budgets

B

Health and Adult Services

C

Business and Environmental Services

D

Children and Young Peoples’ Service

E

Central Services

F

Corporate Miscellaneous

G

NYES

Page 19
OFFICIAL

APPENDIX A

2021-22 REVISED ESTIMATE REVENUE BUDGETS AT JUNE 2021
Original Budgets
agreed by Cty Cncl
on 19/02/2020
£000s

Other agreed
transfers and
adjustments
£000s

Latest Revised
Budgets
£000s

Children & Young Peoples' Service

83,082

(495)

82,587

Business & Environmental Services

74,289

113

74,402

180,792

(349)

180,443

Central Services Directorate

69,791

(443)

69,348

Corporate Miscellaneous

(4,588)

1,174

(3,414)

-

-

-

403,366

-

403,366

(3,119)

-

(3,119)

400,247

-

400,247

-

(48,043)
(19,673)
(332,531)
(400,247)

Health & Adult Services

Page 20

NYES
Total Directorate Spending
Contribution From (-) General Working Balances
Net Revenue Budget
Revenue support grant
Business Rates DCLG Top Up
Business Rates from District Councils
Business Rates Collection Fund Deficit
Precept on District Councils - Current Year
Council Tax Collection Fund Surpluses
=Net Budget Requirement

(48,043)
(19,673)
(332,531)
(400,247)

OFFICIAL

#

HEALTH AND ADULT SERVICES
Appendix B

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT

BUDGET HEAD

REVISED BUDGET
2021-22
£000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
(-) = saving
£000

COMMENTS

Care & Support
- Area Budgets
Care & Support - Hambleton & Richmond

29,292

29,153

Care & Support - Selby

14,753

15,323

Care & Support - Scarborough, Whitby & Ryedale

47,884

50,852

Care & Support - Harrogate

41,716

46,476

Care & Support - Craven

14,401

15,672

-

(2,184)

148,045

155,291

16,008

17,465

Targeted Prevention

1,563

1,502

(61) Underspend mainly due to staffing vacancies and reduced non-pay costs.

Mental Health Services

8,196

8,466

270 Overspend due to additional cost pressures as a result of COVID-19 in addition
to other staffing pressures within the service.

(10,325)

(10,309)

-

547

163,487

172,962

9,474

23,412

23,412

-

(23,412)

(23,412)

-

Commissioning & Quality

7,989

7,102

Integration & Engagement

956

787

Resources Unit

722

718

(4)

Director & Cross-Directorate

201

210

8

173,355

181,778

8,422

7,087

-

(7,087)

-

(1,335)

(1,335)

180,443

180,443

0

CHC Income and Other Budgets
Area Budgets
Provider Services & EC/PCAH

Assistant Director/Cross-area budgets
COVID-19 Costs

Area Budgets Total
Public Health
- Spend
- Income

TOTAL
Growth Funding
Supplementary Adult Social Care Grant Funding (IBCF)
REVISED TOTAL

OFFICIAL

#

Page 21

(138) The outturn shows that Care and Support continues to be impacted by wider
demographic pressures, particularly in the Harrogate area, including increases in
570
numbers and average costs, Continuing Health Care (CHC) funding and young
2,968 people transitioning into Care and Support with high costs. There are additional
cost pressures attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic including increased
4,761
staffing costs, income reductions and increased equipment and Direct Payment
1,271 costs. The overspend will be financed by supplementary Adult Social Care
Funding (see below).
(2,184)
7,247
1,456 Overspend due to COVID-19 pressures including requirement for additional cost
of staffing and materials and loss of income due to the closure of day care
services and respite care.

15 Small overspend due to staffing pressures mainly as a result of COVID-19.
547 Overspend directly attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic including additional
staffing, hardship payments and compensatory payments to support providers.

(888) Some one-off savings due to contract negotiations, underspends due to contract
efficiencies and utilisation of COVID funding for staff supporting the pandemic.
(169) Underspend primarily due to staffing vacancies.

BUSINESS & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
Appendix C

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT

BUDGET HEAD

Highways & Transportation

REVISED
BUDGET
2021-22
£000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
(-) = saving
£000

Page 22

24,229

23,984

Integrated Passenger Transport

9,454

8,941

Trading Standards & Planning Services

2,556

2,780

37,437

38,087

Waste & Countryside Services

COMMENTS

(245) Underspend as a result of additional income from streetworks licensing/permits
(£193) & development fees (£179k) and charges, along with reduced energy costs
for traffic signalling (£128k), this is partially offset by provisions in Highways
operations teams for additional maintenance costs.
(513) Underspend partially due to reduced concessionary ticket costs and reduced
demand for concessionary fares (£125k). Additional support from central
government to bus operators as a result of COVID has also reduced the
concessionary fare costs (£330k).
224 Overspend is due to delays in completion of court cases, impacting income for
POCA/MAST team (£165k) and impact of COVID on fees & charges income
(£35k).
651 Overspend is due to additional household waste disposal costs and a reduction in
charges for commerical waste as a result of COVID-19, along with addtional
payments to District Councils for increased Greenwaste and Recyclate collections
£1,300k.
Decreasing market prices & increasing costs for disposal of recyclates at HWRC's
have resulted in an overspend of £175k.
The overspends are partially offset by additional contractual benefits received in
year (£650k) & staff vacancies (£115k).

Economic Partnership Unit
Resources, Performance & Improvement
Corporate Director of BES
TOTAL

205
5
518

205
5
518

0
0
-

74,402

74,519

117

OFFICIAL

#

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICES
Appendix D

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT
REVISED
BUDGET
2021-22
£000

BUDGET HEAD

FORECAST
OUTTURN
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
(-) = saving
£000

COMMENTS

Local Authority
Inclusion
Inclusion
Alternative Provision
Early Years
CYPS Commissioning

2,671
83
926

2,914
62
949

242 £213k overspend in Occupational Therapy equipment
(21)
23 Compass Reach saving £75k wont be made until 2022

SEND - Special Education Needs & Disabilities
High Needs Commissioning
Disabled Children's Services

2,500
5,238

2,500
5,442

204 Cherry Tree Lodge is doing overnights for children that would otherwise be in
external placements, extra staff required but less than additional income, reducing
potential overspend. Overspend is driven by lower income and increased staffing.

Home to School Transport

27,610

28,395

Children & Families

37,883

38,864

1,528

2,047

28

28

785 £6k Daily Rate increase from April 2021 due to large increase in new SEN
transport requests, sligthly higher mileage and transport costs. The increase has
resulted in a forecast variance for 2021/22 of £785k.
981 £415k Child placement overspend driven by child placed in secure custody.
£421k overspend Safeguarding staffing is currently at high level to meet demands
of increased contacts.
£205k residential dovedale and Stephney (holding a place for individual who is
causing additional staffing costs but overall cheap than private placement)
519 £1.2m split with DSG, higher cost placements following closure of one home and
one very high cost placement since January.
0

109

678

1,426

1,219

12
-

11
(136)

-

760

376
18
-

386
18
-

10
-

School Redundancies & Employment Related Costs

1,001

1,001

-

Safeguarding Unit
Schools & Units

1,177
-

1,178
-

1
-

82,587

86,316

3,729

4,211
1,649
70

4,472
1,573
70

262
(76)
-

49,235
-

49,239
-

4
-

Home to School Transport
Children & Families
CYPS Pooled Budgets
Director's Unit

1,330
1,942
207

1,350
2,602
207

Education & Skills
Education & Skills Other
School Improvement
Strategic Planning Team
Music Service
Outdoor Learning Service

329
150
709
65
44

320
124
708
65
44

(9)
(26)
(1)
-

18
(60,324)

18
(60,328)

(4)

366

366

(0)

-

831

831

(831)

(831)

86,316

3,729

CYPS Pooled Budgets
Director's Unit
Education & Skills
Education & Skills Other
School Improvement
Strategic Planning Team
Music Service
Outdoor Learning Service

Finance & Management Support
Finance & Management Support
Early Years Review
Sponsored Academy Deficits

LA TOTAL

569 Adult Learning Service - £575k estimated overspend, service is undergoing review
to reduce costs so they are alined with potential income.
(207) Underspend on School Improvement Core, mainly due to staffing, vacant posts
and changes to structure. Locality Boards expecting to spend full budget.
(0)
(136) Savings from staff on furlough, venue costs etc. far outweigh loss in revenue of
£70k.
760 Income reduced due to Covid, some savings in expenditure reducing the overall
loss. Based on residentials restarting with new pricing structure in place, income
forecast based on potential bookings spreadsheet held by the service. Includes
secondment income and furlough income estimates. Full year forecast outturn for
the service is £760k, before taking into account any potential SFC income, this will
be accounted for centrally.

DSG
Inclusion
Inclusion
Alternative Provision
Early Years
CYPS Commissioning
SEND - Special Education Needs & Disabilities
High Needs Commissioning
LA Contribution to High Needs
Disabled Children's Services

Finance & Management Support
Sponsored Academy Deficits
Early Years Review
Finance & Management Support
School Redundancies & Employment Related Costs

DSG TOTAL
DSG Net overspend funded by DSG reserve
TOTAL

82,587

OFFICIAL

#

Page 23

20
660 See above, split as per DSG budget split.
1

CENTRAL SERVICES
Appendix E

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT

BUDGET HEAD

REVISED
BUDGET
2021-22
£000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
(-) = saving
£000

Page 24

Strategic Resources
Financial Services

4,201

4,148

Insurances
Property Services
Technology & Change
Safety Risk

3,720
10,765
17,243
420

3,720
10,765
17,337
472

Business Support & HR
Business Support Services

14,652

14,302

HR Services

3,292

3,433

Chief Executives Office
CEO Support Services, Grants & Subscriptions
Communications Unit
Policy & Partnerships

440
848
3,712

444
917
3,346

Legal & Democratic Services
Democratic Services
Legal Services
Members Services

1,506
2,401
1,138

1,499
2,445
1,105

409
747

408
1,027

4,285
(431)

4,306
(782)

69,348

68,891

Library, Customer & Community Services
Archives & Records Management
Coroners
Public Library Service
Registrars

TOTAL

OFFICIAL

#

COMMENTS

(52) Underspend due to staffing vacancies and additional income to cover support
contracts.
(0)
94 Overspend due to additional costs for telephony and WAN to support Covid
52 Overspend due to additional System Costs (Alert Com).

(351) Underspend due to reduced spend on Venues (£296k), Transport Costs (£239k)
& Stationary (£80k). These are partially offset by staffing pressures linked to
additional hours to support Covid (£330k).
141 Staffing Pressures

4
69 Overspend due to staffing pressures.
(367) Underspend due to additional grant income received to support Domestic Abuse
contracts (£519k), partially offset by staffing pressures in Strategy and
Performance Team (£120k).

(7)
44
(33)

(0)
281 Overspend largely driven by Coroner salaries (£100k) and increased costs on
post mortems and forensic testing (£123k).
21
(351) Underspend due to additional registration certificate income(£237k) &
Ceremonies Fees (£114k).
(457)

CORPORATE MISCELLANEOUS
Appendix F

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT

BUDGET HEAD

REVISED
BUDGET
2021-22
£000

FORECAST
OUTTURN
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
(-) = saving
£000

COMMENTS

ANNUAL BUDGETS AND FUNDING (Excluding PIP)
Contingencies
General Provision
HAS Corporate Contingency
Brexit Contingency
2020 North Yorkshire

10,045
6,100
3,000
2,000

4,320
5,100
3,000
2,000

Corporate Contingency

10,000

10,000

-

31,145

24,420

(6,725)

22,130
(2,772)

22,128
(2,049)

(261)
(1,946)
17,151

(488)
(1,847)
17,744

400
341
741

400
399
799

58
58

(39,632)
(1,495)
(41,127)

(39,632)
(1,495)
(41,127)

0

1,133
5,026
(4,709)
(2,735)

1,133
5,026
(4,709)
(2,020)

(1,285)

(570)

715

6,625

1,266

(5,359)

821

-

TOTAL - Including PIP

7,446

1,266

(6,180)

Covid 19 Grant Funding

(10,860)

(10,860)

(0)

(3,414)

(9,594)

(6,180)

Treasury Management
Capital Financing Costs
Dividends & Interest Earned

Commercial Investments
MTFS - Treasury Management Savings

Corporate Budgets
Corporate Funds
Other Corporate Budgets

Corporate Funding
Corporate Grant Funding
Other Corporate Funding

Business Rates & Council Tax
Business Rates Deficit
Council Tax Deficit
Local Council Tax Support Grant
Income Guarantee Scheme

TOTAL - Excluding PIP
Waste Budget Strategy Provision

GRAND TOTAL

(5,725) Unallocated inflation provision not currently required
(1,000) Previous year's provision not required by HAS at this stage
-

(2)
723 Includes loss on interest earned on loans to third parties:
£372k NyNet, £25k Welcome to Yorkshire Early Redemption and £326k NY Highways
slower than forecast drawdown.
(227) Improved position in property fund valuation.
99
593

715 Revised forecast based on updated data, which represents the compensation the
authority will receive against the business rates and council tax collection fund deficit.

(821) Based on latest position, the contingency funding is not required in 21/22.

OFFICIAL

#

Page 25

NORTH YORKSHIRE EDUCATION SERVICES
APPENDIX G

2021-22 REVENUE BUDGET OUTTURN REPORT
BUDGET HEAD

FORECAST
Profit (-) /
Loss (+)
2021-22
£000

BUDGET
Profit(-) / Loss(+)
2021-22
£000

VARIANCE
Increase(-) /
Decrease (+)

COMMENTS

£000

TRADED SERVICES PROFIT & LOSS SUMMARY
Building Cleaning Services
County Caterers Service

(273)
(550)

(274)
(535)

Grounds Maintenance Service

(24)

25

Health and Safety Service (HandS)
Health and Safety Commercial
Energy Traded Service

(46)
(43)
(24)

(46)
(43)
(16)

Property Service - Traded
Maintenance and Servicing Scheme

(198)
(131)

(198)
(131)

(1,289)

(1,219)

-

-

LA Clerking Service

(20)

(2)

Education Psychology & STS

(14)

(9)

5

(0)

(29)

(11)

Employment Support Service - Traded

(140)

(190)

Financial Management Services

(214)

(242)

(76)

(139)

(28)
(26)
(54)
(139)

(37)
(26)
(70)
(100)

(37)

(25)

(714)

(829)

(2,032)

(2,059)

(27)

-

(6)
(6)

(6)
(6)

835

800

(35)

1,197

1,270

-

5

Property & Facilities
School Improvement Service

Specailist Careers Service

Education & Skills

Health and Wellbeing Service
HR Advisory Service
Legal Services Traded
North Yorkshire Procurement Service
Schools ICT Service

Training and Learning
Professional Support Services

Balance of Risks
Insurance Services
Staff Absence Scheme

Central Traded Establishment
North Yorkshire Education Solutions (NYES)

TOTAL

OFFICIAL

#

Page 26

(1)
15 Early meal uptake was strong, however local pockets of Covid isolation impacting
meal uptake towards the end of term.
48 Currently under review for core pricing and cost base; machinery, vehicles and
labour hours to support sales pipeline and bring into a viable position.
(0)
(0)
8 Sales pipeline and retention stable, with development of the online traded offer to
replace the primary package in classrooms working ahead of plans. Service
looking to develop the virtual offer further in collaboration with NYES. Variance to
budget is currently timing of rebates due from Npower which will be pushed to
resolve throughout the financial year.
(1)
- Budget maintained as new property service is under development. Underspends
in the prior financial year look to be replicated in the current year as schools look
to prioritise essential work.
70
- Currently expecting the forecast outturn to be as per £0 target. Staffing costs
transferred at set % of occupied posts. As agreed in the staffing structure. 3 new
packages gone to CYPLT awaiting approval.
18 Forecast outturn £-2.2k, £17.8k less than target, mainly due to reduction in
income, forecasting additional £-60k of income for 21/22. Expecting delivery to
be more face to face from Sept. Concentrating on delivering to exisiting customer
base as need to ensure school governance is correct. Declined 3 contracts/ bids
as can not fill. The service has lost several clerks, it will be recruiting additional
clerks.
5 Currently foregoing work due to capacity contraints in the service, backlog of work
brought forward from 2020/21 to be reviewed and communicated to customers.
(5) Forecast outturn is £-45 profit, £4.5k better than expected loss set as target.
Expecting face to face delivery from Sept 21. Income expected to be £-123k, this
is £-3.5k higher than the 21/22 target. Service to be transferred from the NYES
structure throughout the year.
18

(50) Recent contractual wins absorbed into existing staffing structure, banded pricing
allowing for more schools to be absorbed into the offer.
(28) Forecast outturn £-242k, £28k better than target. Won SMRA contract, this years
management fee approx £30k. Will need to recruit additional SMRAs, incremental
approach for recruitment throughout the year. A large part of the contract will be
subcontracted, we will incurr additional expenditure as well as income.
(62) Staffing underspend currently approx £49k and additional surveillance work of
£13k.
(9) Vacant posts generating staffing savings of £9k
(16)
39 Budgeted revenue from Wellspring Acadamy not pursued due to complexities in
delivery. Service and NYES looking at pipeline of new work to mitigate the loss of
business.
12 Budgeted revenue from Non Education commercial activity transferred to the
core offer in addition to £60k of NY Highways business
(115)

73 Maternity cover, additional Sales/marketing support and consulting resource
totalling £40k, additional marketing spend of £33k.
5 Tracking marginally behind with activity underway to increase profitability across
the portfolio

3.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT
Overview
3.1 This section of the report presents details of the County Council’s Treasury
Management Activity during Q4 2021/22, changes to the Approved Lending List and
other current policy issues and considerations.
3.2 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Treasury Management in the Public Services and in this context is the
management of the County Council’s borrowing, cash flows, its banking and capital
market transactions, the effective control of the risks associated with those activities
and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. The County
Council has adopted the Code and complies with its requirements.
3.3 The CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury Management recommends that Members
should be informed of Treasury Management activities at least twice a year but
preferably quarterly. This report ensures, therefore, that the County Council is adopting
Best Practice in accordance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice.

Economic Update
3.4 The County Council’s treasury advisors Link Group summarised the key points
associated with economic activity in Q4 2021/22 up to 30 June 2021:
 Bank Rate remained unchanged at 0.1%, with this rate now expected to continue
for some time;
 the Bank of England announced it is to undertake a review of its current policy to
raise interest rates first before unwinding quantitative easing;
 the annual inflation rate in the United Kingdom rose to 2.1% in May from 1.5% in
April: this is the first time that the measure has been above the Bank of England’s
2% target since July 2019; and
 COVID-19 vaccines have boosted confidence that life in the UK could largely return
to normal during the second half of 2021, with forward looking business surveys
anticipating a strong economic recovery.
A more detailed economic commentary on developments during Q1 2021/22 is
included in Appendix E.

Page 27
OFFICIAL

Interest Rate Forecasts
3.5 The current interest rate forecasts (last update 10 May 2021) of Link Group are as
follows
Link Group Interest Rate View

10.5.21

Jun-21

Sep-21

Dec-21

Mar-22

Jun-22

Sep-22

Dec-22

Mar-23

Jun-23

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.25

0.25

0.25

3 month ave earnings

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.30

0.30

0.30

6 month ave earnings

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.40

0.40

12 month ave earnings

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.20

0.30

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.50

0.50

5 yr PWLB

1.20

1.20

1.30

1.30

1.30

1.40

1.40

1.40

1.40

1.50

1.50

1.50

10 yr PWLB

1.70

1.70

1.70

1.80

1.80

1.90

1.90

1.90

2.00

2.00

2.00

2.00

25 yr PWLB

2.20

2.20

2.30

2.40

2.40

2.40

2.50

2.50

2.50

2.50

2.50

2.60

50 yr PWLB

2.00

2.00

2.10

2.20

2.20

2.20

2.30

2.30

2.30

2.30

2.30

2.40

BANK RATE

Sep-23 Dec-23

* PWLB Rates are shown net of certainty rate 0.2% discount

3.6 The coronavirus outbreak has done huge economic damage to the UK and to
economies around the world. After the Bank of England took emergency action in
March 2020 to cut Bank Rate to 0.10%, it left Bank Rate unchanged at its subsequent
meetings, although some forecasters had suggested that a cut into negative territory
could have happened prior to more recent months when strong recovery started kicking
in. However, the minutes of the Monetary Policy Committee in February 2021 made it
clear that commercial banks could not implement negative rates within six months; by
that time the economy would be expected to be recovering strongly and so there would
be no requirement for negative rates.
3.7 As shown in the forecast table above, an increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% to 0.25%
is now forecasted for September 2023 as an indication that the Bank of England will
be moving towards some form of monetary tightening around this time. However, it
could well opt for reducing its stock of quantitative easing purchases of gilts as a first
measure to use before increasing Bank Rate so it is quite possible that we will not see
any increase in Bank Rate in the three-year forecast period shown.
3.8 At the start of 2021, all gilt yields from 1 to 8 years were negative: however, since then
all gilt yields have become positive and have risen sharply, especially in medium and
longer-term periods. The main driver of these increases has been investors becoming
progressively more concerned at the way that inflation has risen sharply in major
western economies during 2021, and further increases in inflation are expected.
3.9 As the interest forecast table for PWLB certainty rates, (gilts plus 80bps), above shows,
there is likely to be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next three years as
the Bank of England is not expected to raise Bank Rate above 0.25% during that period
as inflation is not expected to be sustainably over 2%.

Page 28
OFFICIAL

Mar-24

Annual Investment Strategy
3.10 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2021/22, which includes
the Annual Investment Strategy, was approved by the County Council on 17 February
2021. It sets out the County Council’s investment priorities as being:




Security of capital;
Liquidity; and
Yield.

3.11 The County Council will aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on its investments
commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic
climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to cover cash flow
needs, but also to seek out value available in periods up to 12 months with high credit
rated financial institutions, using our suggested creditworthiness approach, including a
minimum sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay information.
3.12 Significant levels of downgrades to Short and Long Term credit ratings have not
materialised since the crisis in March 2020. In the main, where they did change, any
alterations were limited to Outlooks. However, as economies are beginning to reopen,
there have been some instances of previous lowering of Outlooks being reversed.
3.13 As shown by the interest rate forecasts in section 2, it is now impossible to earn the
level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as all short-term money
market investment rates have only risen weakly since Bank Rate was cut to 0.10% in
March 2020. Given this environment and the fact that Bank Rate may only rise
marginally, or not at all, before the second half of 2023, investment returns are
expected to remain low.
3.14 The approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were not breached during
the quarter ended 30 June 2021.
3.15 The investment activity up to Q1 2021/22 was as follows:




Balance invested at 30 June 2021:
Average Daily Balance 2021/22 up to 30 June 2021:
Average Interest Rate Achieved up to 30 June 2021:

£480.7m
£497.1m
0.18%

These funds were available on a temporary basis and the level of funds available was
mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments, receipt of grant and progress
on the capital programme.
3.16 The average return to Q1 2021/22 of 0.18% compares with the average LIBID
benchmark returns as follows:






-0.08%
-0.07%
-0.04%
-0.02%
0.04%

7 day
1 month
3 months
6 months
12 months

Page 29
OFFICIAL

3.17 It is also a key requirement of the CIPFA Code of Practice that annual Treasury
Management Strategies should be kept under constant review throughout the year and
reported to Members as appropriate. Although there is now great uncertainty in the
financial and banking market, both globally and in the UK, it is considered that the
Strategy approved in February 2021 is still fit for purpose in the current
economic climate. No changes are therefore considered necessary to the Strategy
at this stage.

Approved Lending List
3.18 The Approved Lending List as at 30 June 2021 is attached as Appendix B with
changes made during Q1 2021/22 being reported in Appendix C.

Debt and borrowing
3.19 The County Council’s external debt outstanding at 30 June 2021 and forecast
position for 2021/22 is as follows:-

PWLB

Detail
At 31 March 2021
Loan Repayments
New Loans Taken
= Loans Outstanding at 30 June
2021
Further Scheduled In Year
Repayments
Forecast Additional Loans to be
Taken
= Estimated Loans Outstanding at
31 March 2022

£m
%
216.0 4.51
0.0
216.0 4.51

Money
Market
Loans
£m
%
20.0 3.95
0.0
0.0

£m
%
236.0 4.46

20.0

236.0 4.46

3.95

Total

0.0

14.1

0.0

14.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

201.8 4.52

20.0

3.95

221.8 4.47

3.20 Any change to the forecast debt outstanding by the end of 2021/22 will be largely
determined by whether the borrowing requirement for 2021/22 is ultimately financed
by external borrowing or internal borrowing.

Page 30
OFFICIAL

3.21 Based on the Q1 Capital Plan update the total external borrowing requirement for
2021/22 is currently forecast to be:Detail

£m

Internally Financed Capital Expenditure at 31 March 2021
Internally Financed Borrowing from Previous Years
Less Company Loans to be Repaid
Less Commercial Investments to be Repaid

52.7
-15.1
-11.9
25.7

2021/22 Borrowing Requirement
Q1 2021/22 Borrowing Requirement
Less Company Loans advanced in year to be Repaid
Revenue Provision for Debt Repayment (MRP)
Refinance 2021/22 PWLB Loan Repayments
= Total 2021/22 Borrowing Requirement

15.5
-11.1
14.1
18.5

3.22 As shown in the table above, internal capital borrowing (use of cash balances) to part
fund the County Council’s Capital Financing Requirement was £52.7m at 31 March
2021. Over the next two to three years investment rates are expected to continue to
be below long term borrowing rates. A value for money assessment would therefore
indicate that value could be best obtained by avoiding/delaying new borrowing and
continuing to use internal cash balances to finance new capital expenditure or to
replace maturing external debt. This would maximise short term revenue savings and
produce other benefits, but is not risk free.
3.23 This Internal Capital Financing option will therefore continue to be actively adopted on
an ongoing basis in order to achieve short term revenue savings and mitigate the credit
risk incurred by holding investments in the market.
3.24 New external borrowing rates (fixed interest maturity rates from the PWLB reflecting
the 0.2% ‘certainty discounts’) during Q1 2021/22 were as follows:1 Year

5 Year

10 Year

25 Year

50 Year

Low

0.78%

1.12%

1.60%

2.03%

1.83%

Date

08/04/2021

22/04/2021

11/06/2021

21/06/2021

21/06/2021

High

0.88%

1.24%

1.80%

2.27%

2.06%

Date

21/06/2021

13/05/2021

13/05/2021

13/05/2021

13/05/2021

Average

0.81%

1.18%

1.68%

2.14%

1.94%

Spread

0.10%

0.12%

0.20%

0.24%

0.23%

3.25 No debt repayment or rescheduling exercises have been effected to date in 2021/22
or are in the pipeline but the situation continues to be monitored to identify any
opportunities that may arise. Such opportunities, however, have been limited in the
current economic climate and structure of interest rates.

Page 31
OFFICIAL

Prudential Indicators
3.26 It is a statutory duty for the County Council to determine and keep under review its
Affordable Borrowing Limits.
3.27 The Prudential Indicators for the three year period 2021/22 to 2023/24 were initially
approved by Executive on 26 January 2021 and adopted by County Council on 17
February 2021. These Indicators were subsequently updated to reflect the 2020/21
outturn position and other factors arising in Q1 (see Section 5 of this report).
3.28 During the financial year to date, the County Council has operated within the latest
Treasury Prudential Indicators approved and in compliance with the County Council’s
Treasury Management Practices.

Impact of Treasury Management Activities on the Revenue Budget
3.29 Based on the Treasury Management activity at Q1 2021/22 and a forecast for the
remainder of the year, the revenue impact is as follows:
While interest rates have remained low throughout 2021 to date, cash balances have
continued at relatively high levels. The current forecast for investment returns is £0.9m
which equals the budget, however, it is possible that investment returns could be lower
than anticipated with no further rise in bank rate expected in 2021/22. Returns will
reviewed in advance of Q2 as uncertainties over Coronavirus and Brexit continue.
The forecast outturn for interest paid on long term borrowing is £10.2m.
The forecast outturn for the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) is £10.6m.
Capital Strategy
3.30 The Capital Strategy was included as part of the County Council’s Annual Treasury
Management and Investment Strategy 2020/21, approved in February 2020. The
Capital Strategy sets out how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management contribute to the provision of Corporate and service objectives and
properly takes account of stewardship, value for money, prudence, sustainability and
affordability. It sets out the long term context in which capital expenditure and
investment decisions are made and gives due consideration to both risk and reward
and impact on the achievement of priority outcomes.
3.31 Alternative non-treasury investments are considered as part of the Capital Strategy.
Given the technical nature of potential alternative investments and strong linkages to
the County Council’s Treasury Management function, appropriate governance and
decision making arrangements are needed to ensure robust due diligence in order to
make recommendations for implementation. As a result, all investments are subject to
consideration and where necessary recommendations of the Commercial Investment
Board.

Page 32
OFFICIAL

3.32 The alternative investments considered by the Commercial Investment Board are as
follows:
Type of Investment

Maximum
Limit
£m

Alternative Treasury Instruments
Money Market Funds
Enhanced Cash Funds
Certificates of Deposit (CDs)
Property Funds
Total Alternative Treasury Instruments

Invested
as at
30/06/2021
£m

20.0
20.0
20.0
20.0
80.0

Rate of
Return
%

0.0
0.0
0.0
5.9
5.9

0.00
0.00
0.00
3.40
3.40

25.0

6.0
8.6
0.1
1.8
16.5

4.10
6.10
4.10
6.60
5.40

Other Alternative Investments
Spend to Save
Loans to Housing Associations
Local Economic Growth Projects
Solar Farm (or similar) Projects
Commercial Investments
Total Other Alternative Investments

5.0
10.0
15.0
5.0
20.0
45.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
11.9
11.9

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
2.65
2.65

Total Alternative Investments*

60.0

28.3

4.25

Alternative Investments
Loans to Council Companies
- Yorwaste
- Brierley
- First North Law
- NY Highways
Total Loans to Council Companies

*

25.0

Total Alternative Investments capped at £60m

3.33 The position on Property Funds at 30 June 2021 is as follows:In Year Performance
In Year Performance Q1 2021/22
Fund

Bwd
Valuation
Investment
as at
Valuation 30/06/21
£000
£000
Blackrock
2,851.9
2,930.8
Threadneedle
2,769.7
2,789.7
Total
5,621.6
5,720.5

Capital Gain /
(Loss)
£000
%
78.9
2.8
20.0
0.7
98.9
1.8

Page 33
OFFICIAL

Revenue Return
£000
%
21.6
3.0
26.0
3.8
47.6
3.4

Total Fund Performance
Total Performance
Fund

Valuation
Investment
as at
£k
30/06/21
£000
£000
Blackrock
3,003.0
2,930.8
Threadneedle
2,927.1
2,789.7
Total
5,930.1
5,720.5

Capital Gain /
(Loss)
£000
%
-72.2
-2.4
-137.4
-4.7
-209.6
-3.5

Forecasted
Revenue Return
£000
%
255.8
8.5
333.3
11.4
589.1
9.9

3.34 While Property Funds continue to provide a strong revenue return as noted in the table
above, the funds have experienced minor capital losses in 2020/21 (£41k) and 2019/20
(£267k), although indications suggest that this trend will not continue in 2021/22.
Property funds are long term investments and valuations can, therefore, rise as well
as fall, over the period they are held. In order to mitigate any potential future loss, funds
will be set aside to ensure there is no impact on the General Fund until units in the
funds are sold.
3.35 Given the volatility and risk within the market, both property funds will be reviewed in
terms of their strategies to mitigate risk within their portfolios, in the context of the
longer term nature of these investments. Should any changes to these investments be
considered necessary, these will be reported to the Executive and to Council if
required.
3.36 The position on Commercial Property investments at 30 June 2021 is as follows:-

Property

Harrogate Royal
Baths
Bank Unit in
Stafford Town
Centre
Co-op Store in
Somercotes
Total

Investment
£k
£000
9,504.0

Valuation
as at
31/03/21
£000
7,000.0

Performance
Total
Revenue
Capital Gain /
Return
(Loss)
as at 30/06/21
£000
%
£000
%
-2,504.0
-26.3
181.4 1.91

876.0

790.0

-86.0

-9.8

53.0

6.05

1,497.3

1290.0

-207.3

-13.8

80.0

5.34

11,877.3

9,080.0

-2,797.3

23.6

589.1

2.65

3.37 The value of Commercial Property investments will continue to be assessed as
markets recover from the impact of Covid-19. Commercial Property is a long term
investment and valuations can, therefore, rise as well as fall, over the period they are
held. In order to mitigate any potential future loss funds will be set aside to ensure that
there is no impact on the General Fund at the point of any future sale.
3.38 The County Council continues to review potential commercial investments, but will
now consider any potential investment opportunities alongside the implications for

Page 34
OFFICIAL

PWLB borrowing going forward, however, the 2021/22 Capital Plan does not include
any plans to purchase commercial assets primarily for yield.
Other Loans
3.39 The County Council has also provided the following loan facilities:Lender
Date
Advanced
Welcome to
Yorkshire
Ryedale
Learning
Trust

Interest
Rate
%
6.6

Loan
Outstanding
as at
31/06/21
%
500.0

Sept-19

Original
Loan
£000
500.0

Revenue Return
(as at 30/06/21)
£000
%
8.2
6.6

Feb-21

1,455.0

3.2

1,437.5

11.4

3.2

1,955.0

4.1

1,937.5

19.6

4.1

3.40 Welcome to Yorkshire
In November 2015, the County Council agreed to provide a five year secured loan
facility of up to £500k to Welcome to Yorkshire in order to enable them to continue to
grow the visitor economy and promote the Yorkshire brand. Welcome to Yorkshire
drew down this loan in September 2019. The facility was agreed on commercial terms
and secured on a property owned by Welcome to Yorkshire. It is expected that this
loan is to be repaid in full during 2021/22.
3.41 Ryedale Learning Trust
The Ryedale Federation of four schools (Ryedale School, Helmsley CPS, Sinnington
CPS and Kirkbymoorside CPS) converted to a new Multi Academy Trust, The
Ryedale Learning Trust, in February 2021. As part of the conversion process, a
novation was agreed to transfer the school loans currently in place with the federated
schools to the Multi Academy Trust on commercial terms.
Local authorities are prohibited from using resources to financially support academy
schools by regulation and, consequently, the loan was funded from General
Reserves (not Schools Block Reserves) at a commercial rate of 3.1% + Base Rate.
The loan is to be repaid in line with an agreed schedule and fully repaid by 2032/33.

Other Treasury Management Development and Issues
3.42 During the remainder of 2021/22, the North Yorkshire Pension Fund (NYPF) are to
undertake a re-alignment of their Investment Strategy, which will involve sizeable
movements in to and out of the NYPF Bank Account. As there are likely to be short
term timing differences between dis-investing the funds with one manager and
investing those funds with another fund, a review has been undertaken of current
cash flow projections and to identify the main risks, of which two were identified:-

Page 35
OFFICIAL

i. capacity within the Approved Lending List to accommodate the additional cash
temporarily, and
ii. the availability of short term cash for onward investment.
3.43 In order to mitigate these risks, the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources, under
delegated authority, has approved the following amendments to the Approved Lending
List with effect from 6 July 2021:i. addition of the Australia and New Zealand Banking Group (ANZ) to the Lending List,
and
ii. increase the Lending Limit on the Money Market Funds from £20m to £40m.
3.44 CIPFA published their response to the Treasury Management Code and Prudential
Code consultations on 24 June 2021. Following a review of the initial consultation,
CIPFA have confirmed the changes that will be taken forward into revised versions
including proposals for strengthening the Prudential and Treasury Management Codes
with a focus on proportionality, clarification around the definition of commercial activity
and officer/member training. CIPFA intends to publish the revised Codes in December
2021. All changes will then need to be reflected in the 2022/23 Treasury Management
Strategy.
3.45 In addition to the changes being introduced by CIPFA, on 28 July 2021 the Ministry of
Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) published a policy paper –
Local Authority Capital Finance Framework: Planned Improvements. The paper sets
out the government’s plans for strengthening the current capital financing system while
protecting the principles of local decision making. The paper sets out plans for
improving the Government’s role as steward of the local government financial system
through data collection and risk prevention. The Government are currently reviewing
the Prudential Framework and will be engaging with stakeholders on individual
proposals as they are developed and through consultation where appropriate.

RECOMMENDATIONS
3.46 That Executive
i.

notes the position on the County Council’s Treasury Management activities
during the first quarter of 2021/22

ii.

approve the amendments to the Approved Lending List

iii.

refers this report to the Audit Committee for their consideration as part of the
overall monitoring arrangements for Treasury Management.

Page 36
OFFICIAL

TREASURY MANAGEMENT APPENDICES

Appendix A Analysis of investments placed as at 30 June 2021

Appendix B Approved Lending List with counterparty limits

Appendix C Changes to the Approved Lending List during Q1 2021

Appendix D Treasury Management Monitoring and Reporting Arrangements 2021/22

Appendix E Detailed Economic Commentary on Developments during Q1 2021/22

.

Page 37
OFFICIAL

Appendix A
Analysis of loans outstanding as at 30 June 2021
Actual Loans Outstanding – Summarised by Organisation
£m
201.0
60.0
50.0
60.0
10.0
30.0
15.0
20.0
34.7
5.9
486.6

Local Authority
Santander
Bank of Scotland
Standard Chartered
Handelsbanken
Goldman Sachs
National Westminster
DBS
Barclays
Property Funds

Other Bodies
31-Mar-21
£m
%

30-Jun-21
£m
%

NY Pension Fund
NY Fire and Rescue Authority
Yorkshire Dales National Park
North York Moors National Park
Peak District National Park
Selby District Council
National Parks England
Align Property Partners
NYnet Limited
Total Other Bodies

111.8
4.9
3.5
3.8
4.0
67.0
0.1
0.9
1.3
197.3

23
1
1
1
1
14
0
0
0
41

83.6
6.7
3.8
4.3
7.2
73.0
0.3
0.8
1.7
181.4

17
1
1
1
1
15
0
0
0
36

NYCC Cash

276.1

59

305.2

64

Total Investment

479.4

100

486.6

100

Rates as at 30 June 2021
Bank Rate
Investment Rates
- NYCC overnight (on call)
- 1 month
- 6 months
- 1 year
- Government Debt Management Office Account

Page 38
OFFICIAL

%
0.10
0.00
0.03
0.11
0.17
0.01

Page 39
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
APPROVED LENDING LIST Q1
Maximum sum invested at any time (The overall total exposure figure covers both
Specified and Non-Specified investments)
Country

Time
Limit *

Total
Exposure
£m

Time
Limit *

75.0

365 days

-

-

60.0

6 months

-

-

75.0

6 months

-

-

60.0

6 months

-

-

30.0

365 days

-

-

60.0
30.0

-

-

20.0

6 months
6 months
6 months
365 days
6 months
3 months

-

-

AUS
AUS
CAN
FRA
GER

30.0
30.0
30.0
30.0
30.0

365 days
365 days
365 days
6 months
6 months

-

-

-

-

SING

30.0

365 days

20.0
20.0
20.0

365 days
365 days
365 days

5.0
5.0
5.0

2 years
2 years
2 years

20.0
5.0
100.0

365 days
365 days
365 days

5.0
5.0
5.0

2 years
10 years
2 years

* Based on data 25 June 2021

Page 40
OFFICIAL

Non-Specified
Investments
(> 1 year £40m limit)

Total
Exposure
£m

UK "Nationalised" banks / UK banks with UK Central
Government involvement
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
GBR
National Westminster Bank PLC (RFB)
GBR
UK "Clearing Banks", other UK based banks and Building
Societies
Santander UK PLC (includes Cater Allen)
GBR
Barclays Bank PLC (NRFB)
GBR
Barclays Bank UK PLC (RFB)
GBR
Bank of Scotland PLC (RFB)
GBR
Lloyds Bank PLC (RFB)
GBR
Lloyds Bank Corporate Markets PLC (NRFB)
GBR
HSBC Bank PLC (NRFB)
GBR
HSBC UK Bank PLC (RFB
GBR
GBR
Goldman Sachs International Bank
GBR
Sumitomo Mitsui
Standard Chartered Bank
GBR
Handlesbanken
GBR
GBR
Nationwide Building Society
Leeds Building Society
GBR
High Quality Foreign Banks
National Australia Bank
Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Toronto-Dominion Bank
Credit Industriel et Commercial
Landesbank Hessen-Thueringen Girozentrale
(Helaba)
DBS (Singapore)
Local Authorities
County / Unitary / Metropolitan / District Councils
Police / Fire Authorities
National Park Authorities
Other Deposit Takers
Money Market Funds
Property Funds
UK Debt Management Account

Specified
Investments
(up to 1 year)

60.0
40.0
40.0

Appendix C
CHANGES TO THE APPROVED LENDING LIST DURING Q1

There has been one change to the Lending List from the 31 March 2021.
Organisation

Landesbank
HessenThueringen
Girozentrale
(Helaba)

Original
Investment
Limit / Term
365 Days

Date
Amended
24 June
2021

Revised
Investment
Limit / Term
6 Months

Reason

Downgrading of
Long Term and
Short Term ratings
by S&P Global
Ratings

It should be noted, however, that changes can be made on a daily basis in reaction to
market sentiment, with maximum investment durations being adjusted accordingly.
Maximum investment durations for other organisations may have, therefore, been
changed during this quarter, but have since returned to the level at 30 June 2021.

Page 41
OFFICIAL

Appendix D
Treasury Management and Reporting Arrangements

The current monitoring and reporting arrangements in relation to Treasury
Management activities are as follows:
(a)

an annual report to Executive and County Council as part of the Budget/MTFS
process that sets out the County Council’s Treasury Management and
Investment Strategy and Policy for the forthcoming financial year. For 2021/22
this report was submitted to Executive on 26 January 2021 followed by County
Council on 17 February 2021;

(b)

an annual report to Executive and County Council as part of the Budget/MTFS
process that sets the various Prudential Indicators (submitted to Executive on 26
January 2021 and County Council on 17 February 2021)

(c)

annual outturn reports to the Executive for both Treasury Management and
Prudential Indicators setting out full details of activities and performance during the
preceding financial year. The outturn reports for 2020/21 were submitted to
Executive on 25 May 2021;

(d)

a quarterly report on Treasury Management to the Executive (this report) as part
of the Quarterly Performance Monitoring report;

(e)

periodic meetings between the Corporate Director – Strategic Resources, the
Corporate Affairs Portfolio Holder and the Chairman of the Audit Committee to
discuss issues arising from the day to day management of Treasury Management
activities;

(f)

reports on proposed changes to the County Council’s Treasury Management
activities are submitted to the Audit Committee for consideration and comment.
A copy of this report is also provided to Audit Committee Members.

Page 42
OFFICIAL

Appendix E
Detailed Economic Commentary on Developments during Q1 2021/22

1.

Economic Background - UK

Interest Rates
The 24 June Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) meeting voted unanimously to keep
Bank Rate unchanged at 0.10%. They voted by a majority of 8-1 to continue
unchanged the existing programme of UK government bond purchases of £875bn
which is due to end by the end of this year. In the press release, it was noted that:“Since May, developments in global GDP growth have been somewhat stronger than
anticipated, particularly in advanced economies. Global price pressures have picked
up further, reflecting strong demand for goods, rising commodity prices, supply-side
constraints and transportation bottlenecks, and these have started to become
apparent in consumer price inflation in some advanced economies. Financial market
measures of inflation expectations suggest that the near-term strength in inflation is
expected to be transitory”.
The MPC noted the developing upside risks in the UK to both activity and inflation. It
said that the news on activity “had predominately been to the upside” and that Bank
staff had “revised up their expectations for 2021 Q2 GDP growth to 5.5% from 4.25%”.
For the first time, the policy statement noted that “there are increasing signs of
recruitment difficulties for some businesses” and the minutes said, “it was possible
that the near-term upward pressure on prices could prove somewhat larger than
expected”. Indeed, by saying that inflation “is likely to exceed 3% for a temporary
period” the MPC admitted the Governor will have to write to the Chancellor later this
year explaining why inflation is more than 1% above the 2% target.
The anticipated increase in inflation over the next six months is expected to be shortlived and caused by one-off reopening price rises and supply shortages relative to
demand - boosted by consumers having built up huge savings of around £145bn
during lockdown. These spikes will drop out of the CPI calculation over the next twelve
months.
The minutes said the MPC should “ensure that the recovery was not undermined by
a premature tightening in monetary conditions”. It also repeated that it will not raise
Bank Rate until the 2% inflation target has been attained sustainably i.e. the mere fact
that it is forecasting inflation to be over 2% during 2021 and 2022 is not in itself
sufficient to justify an increase in Bank Rate in the near future. The MPC indicated in
the minutes that some members would prefer to wait for a clearer picture of the
underlying pace of the recovery once the furlough scheme expires at the end of
September, before making any judgement on medium-term inflationary pressures.
This implies that the MPC may be unlikely to be in a position to consider a change in
policy until early in 2022 at the earliest.
In addition, the Bank is undertaking a review of its stated current policy to raise Bank
Rate first before unwinding quantitative easing (QE) purchases of gilts. It is likely that
the Bank could unwind QE first before raising Bank Rate as it QE is seen as a very

Page 43
OFFICIAL

useful quick acting weapon to use to combat any sudden dysfunction in financial
markets, as happened in March 2020.
Money markets are currently expecting Bank Rate to start rising in mid-2022,
however, this expectation is influenced by the US Economy where inflationary
pressures are much stronger. Overall, there could be only a minimal increase in Bank
Rate in 2023 or possibly no increases before 2024.
GDP
The Bank revised up its expectations for the level of UK GDP in 2021 Q2 by around
1.5% since the May Report due to the easing of restrictions on economic activity; this
now leaves total GDP in June only around 2.5% below its pre-Covid 2019 Q4 level.
UK GDP grew by 1.5% in the three months to April 2021: this was the first expansion
since the three months to December 2020. Forward looking monthly business surveys
are running at exceptionally high levels indicating that we are heading into a strong
economic recovery. Capital Economics do not think that the UK economy will suffer
major scarring from the lockdowns. The one month delay to the final easing of
restrictions in July is unlikely to have much effect on the progress of recovery with
GDP getting back to pre-Covid levels during August.
CPI
The annual inflation rate in the United Kingdom rose to 2.1% in May from 1.5% in
April: this is the first time that the measure has been above the Bank of England’s 2%
target since July 2019.
Covid-19
Vaccines have boosted confidence that life in the UK could largely return to normal
during the second half of 2021 after a third wave of the virus threatened to overwhelm
hospitals in Q1 this year. With the household saving rate having been exceptionally
high since the first lockdown in March 2020, there is plenty of pent-up demand and
purchasing power stored up for services in hard hit sectors like restaurants, travel and
hotels. The UK has made fast progress, giving both jabs to nearly half of the total
population and one jab to two thirds, (84% of all adults). This programme should be
completed in the second half of the year.

2.

Economic Background - Rest of the World
US
Since the Democrats won the elections in late 2020 and gained control of both
Congress and the Senate, they have passed a $1.9trn (8.8% of GDP) stimulus
package in March 2021 on top of the $900bn fiscal stimulus deal passed by Congress
in late December. These, together with the vaccine rollout proceeding swiftly to hit the
target of giving a first jab to over half of the population within the President’s first 100
days, will promote a rapid easing of restrictions and strong economic recovery during
2021. The Democrats are also now negotiating to pass a $1trn fiscal stimulus package
aimed at renewing infrastructure over the next decade. Although this package is
longer-term, if passed, it would also help economic recovery in the near-term.

Page 44
OFFICIAL

In the Fed’s June meeting, it continued to forecast strong economic growth this year
to have only a transitory impact on inflation which is being temporarily boosted by
base effects, spikes in reopening inflation and supply shortages.
EU
The roll out and take up of vaccines was disappointingly slow in the EU in the first few
months of 2021 but has since been rapidly catching up. This delay will inevitably put
back economic recovery after the economy had staged a rapid rebound from the first
lockdowns of 2020 but contracted slightly in Q4 to end 2020 only 4.9% below its prepandemic level. At its June meeting, the ECB forecast strong economic recovery with
growth.
Inflation is likely to rise sharply to around 2.5% during 2021 for a short period, but as
this will be transitory, due to one-off factors, it will cause the ECB little concern. It is
currently unlikely that it will cut its central rate even further from -0.5%, although the
ECB has stated that it retains this as a possible tool to use.
China
After a concerted effort to get on top of the virus outbreak in Q1 of 2020, economic
recovery was strong in the rest of 2020; this enabled China to recover all the
contraction in Q1 2021. Policy makers have implemented a programme of monetary
and fiscal support that has been particularly effective at stimulating short-term growth.
After making a rapid recovery in 2020/21, growth is likely to be tepid in 2021/22.
Japan
A third round of fiscal stimulus in December 2020 took total fresh fiscal spending in
2020 in response to the virus close to 12% of pre-virus GDP, one of the largest
national fiscal responses. The resurgence of Covid in Q1 2021, coupled with a slow
roll out of vaccines, has pushed back economic recovery. However, quickening of
vaccinations in the second half of 2021 will lead to a strong economic recovery to get
back to pre-virus levels by the end of 2021 – around the same time as the US and
sooner than the Eurozone.
World growth
World growth was in recession in 2020 but should recover during 2021. Inflation is
unlikely to be a significant problem in most countries for some years due to the
creation of excess production capacity and depressed demand during the coronavirus
crisis.
Deglobalisation
Until recent years, world growth has been boosted by increasing globalisation i.e.
countries specialising in producing goods and commodities in which they have an
economic advantage and which they then trade with the rest of the world. This has
boosted worldwide productivity and growth, and, by lowering costs, has also
depressed inflation. However, the rise of China as an economic superpower over the
last 30 years, which now accounts for nearly 20% of total world GDP, has unbalanced
the world economy. In March 2021, western democracies implemented limited
sanctions against a few officials in charge of government policy; this led to a much

Page 45
OFFICIAL

bigger retaliation by China which caused considerable consternation in western
countries. After the pandemic exposed how frail extended supply lines were around
the world, both factors are now likely to lead to a sharp retrenchment of economies
into two blocs of western democracies v. autocracies. It is, therefore, likely that we are
heading into a period where there will be a reversal of world globalisation and a
decoupling of western countries from dependence on China to supply products and
vice versa. This is likely to reduce world growth rates from rates in prior decades.
Central banks’ monetary policy
During the pandemic, the governments of western countries have provided massive
fiscal support to their economies which has resulted in a big increase in total
government debt in each country. It is, therefore, very important that bond yields stay
low while debt to GDP ratios slowly subside under the impact of economic growth.
This provides governments with a good reason to amend the mandates given to
central banks to allow higher average levels of inflation than we have generally seen
over the last couple of decades. Greater emphasis will also be placed on hitting
subsidiary targets e.g. full employment, before raising rates. Higher average rates of
inflation would also help to erode the real value of government debt more quickly.

Page 46
OFFICIAL

4.0

CAPITAL FIVE YEAR SPENDING PLAN 2021/22

4.1

OVERVIEW

4.1.1 The Capital Plan sets out the County Council’s longer term capital investment
plans. These plans support the Council’s strategic and service objectives by
maximising the assets and infrastructure necessary to support service
delivery whilst minimising the impact on the revenue budget. Sitting behind
the Plan is the Council’s Capital Strategy which provides a high level overview
of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury management
contribute to this end.

4.2

REFRESHING THE CAPITAL PLAN

4.2.1 The schemes and programmes within the Capital Plan are reviewed regularly
to track whether or not they are being delivered to both schedule and budget.
Refreshed on a quarterly basis, this report details the Capital Plan for Q1
2021/22, 1 April to 30 June 2021, and reflects the additions and adjustments,
including the reprofiling of budgets, since the last version was approved.
4.2.2 The Council is currently planning to invest £171.2m on capital schemes
across the County in 2021/22 and £252.1m, in total, over the next 5 years.
Included this Quarter, are the unspent capital allocations from 2020/21 which
were reported to Executive on 25 May 2021.
4.2.3 The latest Capital Plan is set out, by directorate, at Appendices A-D. A
summary of gross expenditure, by directorate, summarised in the following
table:

2021/22
£k
Business & Environmental Services
Children & Young People's Service
Central Services
Health & Social Care

88,337.3
51,675.5
27,183.2
4,004.3
171,200.3

Page 47
OFFICIAL

Quarter 1
1 April to 30 June 2021
Later
2022/23
2023/24
Years
£k
£k
£k
19,031.1
17,384.8
1,550.0
299.4
38,265.3

227.0
4,600.0
1,387.0
0.0
6,214.0

Total
£k

1,269.7 108,865.1
15,936.6 89,596.9
9,379.0 39,499.2
9,845.1 14,148.8
36,430.4 252,110.0

Additions to the Capital Plan this Quarter
4.2.4 Only individual additions to the Capital Plan that are of a value in excess of
£250k are detailed in this report.
4.2.5 The following table highlights updates referred to earlier reports and new
additions that have been added to the Capital Plan this quarter:
Directorate

BES

CYPS

CYPS

Central

Central

Central

Scheme
Heading

Scheme Detail

Junction 47
Improvements

Additional Highways England
grants confirmed and received in
March 2021 to contribute to the
additional works.
School
Subject of a separate report to
Condition
Executive (8 June 2021). Funded
Programme
from annual DfE School Condition
2021/22
Grant allocation.
Basic Need
Announced February 2021, grant
Grant 2022/23
funding to create an additional 250
school places across the county.
Library Service Funded from Reserves, a 2-year
Property
programme to refurbish the public
Refurbishments libraries at Northallerton, Ripon
and Scarborough.
Public Sector
Grant received March 2021 to
Decarbonisation support the decarbonisation of
Scheme
heat in non-domestic public
2021/22
buildings and energy efficiency.
T&C Projects – Grant from Harrogate Borough
Harrogate
Council to deliver digital networks
District WiFi
in support of the Getting Building
and LoRaWAN grant funded Digital Infrastructure
Programme.

Budget
£k
2,312.7

9,783.4

2,980.5

290.0

1,931.2

350.0

Reprofiling of Approved Schemes within the Capital Plan
4.2.6 The following table sets out the reprofiling and accelerated spend since the
last Plan was presented to Executive (Reduction (-) or increase in the annual
profiled spend):

Page 48
OFFICIAL

REPROFILED EXPENDITURE AS AT Q1 2021/22
Quarter 1
1 April to 30 June 2021

Business & Environmental Services
Structural Maintenance of Roads & Bridges
Flood Risk Management
Major Highways Schemes
Children & Young People's Service
Schools
Basic Need programme
School Condition Programme
Central Services
Loans to Limited Companies
Health & Social Care
Maintaining Fabric / Facilities of Properties
Extra Care Facilities
Total Capital Expenditure

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Later Years

Total

£k

£k

£k

£k

£k

-3,780.2
-334.0
-2,072.1
-6,186.3

3,780.2
334.0
2,172.7
6,286.9

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
-100.6
-100.6

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

-2,639.7
100.0
-2,539.7

2,639.7
0.0
2,639.7

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
-100.0
-100.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

-3,550.0
-3,550.0

0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0

3,550.0
3,550.0

0.0
0.0

-45.9
-6,645.7
-6,691.6

45.9
0.0
45.9

0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
6,645.7
6,645.7

0.0
0.0
0.0

-18,967.6

8,972.5

0.0

9,995.1

0.0

4.2.7 In Highways, DfT Safer Roads Grant of £2,959.2k (A6108 between Ripon and
Scotch Corner now programmed for delivery 2022/23) and £821k (A684
delays due to utilities) have been reprofiled from 2021/22 to 2022/23.
4.2.8 Due to external funding requirements, the need to prioritise flood risk
management work locations had resulted in the diversion of resources during
2020/21. Local Growth funded works at Malton, Norton and Old Malton are
completing whilst a programme of works in the Lower Aire catchment to
deliver the recommendations set out in the Section 19 flood report have been
added to the 2021/22 programme. £334k has been reprofiled to 2022/23 to
reflect this reprioritisation.
4.2.9 The Transforming Cities Fund Programme of connectivity improvements is
now proceeding from feasibility design and first round public consultation to
preliminary and detailed design on all scheme elements. The West Yorkshire
Combined Authority (WYCA) has completed their appraisal of the Outline
Business Cases for Harrogate and Skipton, and approved the release of
further development funding. With regard to Selby, WYCA has chosen to
delay full consideration of the Outline Business Case pending further work on
cost, scope and land acquisition to be undertaken prior to an update in the
Autumn. As a result, budget of £2,187k has been reprofiled to reflect the
value of 2021/22 development work and 2022/23 delivery.

Page 49
OFFICIAL

4.2.10 £100.6k has been reprofiled from Later Years to 2021/22 to fund the 2020/21
overspend on the Bedale Aiskew Leeming Bar major scheme (£33.6k) and
planned expenditure in 2021/22 (£67k).
4.2.11 Due to circumstances beyond the Council’s control, the anticipated opening of
the new North Northallerton primary school has been delayed beyond
September 2022. As such £2,639.7k has been reprofiled from 2021/22 to
2022/23 pending further updates.
4.2.12 Updated loan drawdown schedules reflecting the latest NYHighways plans
are addressed in the Capital Plan this Quarter following the reprofiling of
£3,550k from 2021/22 to Later Years. The planned replacement of vehicles is
expected in 2028/29.
4.2.13 Extra Care budget has been reprofiled to reflect the latest confirmed
commitments pending further updates as to the proposed Extra Care facilities
in Harrogate outlined in the MTFS report in January 2021.
4.2.14 The changes to the Capital Plan outlined above are summarised in the table
below:
SUMMARY OF CHANGES
SINCE THE LAST CAPITAL PLAN UPDATE

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24 Later Years

Total

Capital Plan as at Q1 2021/22
£k

£k

137,743.0 26,168.6

£k
6,254.0

Changes this Quarter:
Total schemes carried forward from 2019/20
Total reprofiling between years
Total variations in the funding of schemes

43,474.1
-18,967.6
8,950.9

0.0
8,972.5
3,124.2

0.0
0.0
-40.0

Updated Gross Capital Spend

171,200.4 38,265.3

6,214.0

£k

£k

25,359.4 195,525.0
0.0
9,995.1
1,075.9

43,474.1
0.0
13,111.0

36,430.4 252,110.1

Other Capital Updates
Getting Building Fund
4.2.15 It was reported last year that the YNY Local Enterprise Partnership had been
awarded £15.4m over two years from the Government’s Getting Building Fund
(GBF) for investment in local, ‘shovel-ready’ infrastructure projects to
stimulate jobs and support economic growth in the wake of the Covid 19
pandemic.
4.2.16 The Council’s programme is now in its second year and an unallocated
balance of £328.3k has been identified as projects within the programme have
progressed through the appraisal and contracting stages. The MHCLG has

Page 50
OFFICIAL

advised that this balance should be directed at existing projects where either
Value for Money can be demonstrated or proposals in the original bid were
scaled back.
4.2.17 As such, proposals are currently being progressed to award the balance to
two existing projects, one of which is the Council’s Digital Infrastructure
project (£3m awarded of £5m bid for). The scalable nature of this bid has
ensured that any risk of underspend on the overall GBF programme can be
managed effectively.
4.2.18 An approval of up to £600k (depending on funds available from project
savings elsewhere) with an initial available amount of £278-£300k has been
approved by the YNY LEP Infrastructure and Joint Assets Board with final
formal approval now being sought from BEIS. If approved, the funding
adjustment will be made to the Capital Plan at Q2 allowing the project to be
extended to deploy public Wi-Fi to another two towns (total 18 of 19 identified
originally) and increasing the deployment of local full fibre networks to an
additional 3 business parks (total 9 of 10).
Replacement Primary School, Middle Deepdale, Scarborough
4.2.19 The new primary school site is on target to open at the beginning of the
Autumn despite some delays to the completion of the building largely due to
the Covid 19 Pandemic. The project is expected to be delivered within the
allocated budget envelope but a small uplift has now been added to cover
some of the schools furniture and ICT requirements.
Selby Free School
4.2.20 In January 2021, Executive were advised that negotiations were ongoing with
the DfE as to the likely funding contribution required from the Council in
respect of S278 highways and access works as well as preparing the site for
development by the DfE. Executive approved a provision of up to £1m from
unallocated Capital Receipts be made available. It is anticipated that DfE will
be able to provide some clarity on the level of these abnormal costs in the
early Autumn allowing a budget to be loaded in the Capital Plan.

4.3

RISKS

4.3.1 Every effort is made to identify, assess and minimise the level of risk
associated with a scheme or programme within the Capital Plan. Larger
schemes and programmes are subject to assessment and monitoring under
the Council’s Risk Management Strategy.

Page 51
OFFICIAL

Current Identified Risks
4.3.2 The following table sets out the types of risk that have been identified against
current schemes and programmes within the Capital Plan.
OverProgramming

Costs

Business & Environmental Services
Structural
x
x
Maintenance
of Roads
Kex Gill
x
Realignment
Children & Young People’s Service
School
x
Capital
Programme

Funding

Time

x

x

x

x

x

x

Receipts

Delivery

x

x

x

Structural Maintenance of Roads
4.3.3 As previously reported, in order to maximise spend against plan each year,
Business and Environmental Services set a rolling two-year capital works
programme for Highways which includes additional schemes that, on paper,
would result in an over-programming of works against available funding. In
reality, this is unlikely to result in a budget overspend as approved schemes
will either (i) be programmed together as a single scheme thereby reducing
costs, (ii) be reprofiled into the following year or (iii) be removed from the
programme altogether.
4.3.4 At the time of this report, the current value of the over-programming of
approved budget is £6.2m. This is in excess of the agreed tolerances and the
programme is now under review to identify schemes that may be slipped into
future years. Last year, Executive approved the facility of a recurring annual
short term cashflow arrangement of up to £2m that would allow Highways to
bridge the funding gap over year end until LTP Grant is available to repay the
loan amount in the new financial year.
4.3.5 On June 1st, NYHighways took over the contract to deliver Highways
maintenance and improvement works on behalf of the Council. Originally,
NYHighways were expecting to deliver capital works to the value of £26.6m
during 2021/22. It has now been established that NYHighways will only be
able to deliver and/or arrange the supervision of schemes up to half that
value, at most, this year. For Highways to ensure delivery during 2021/22,
schemes are being packaged to go out to the market for tender. The risk of
doing so is a lack of contractors and/or materials which could result in underdelivery in year.

Page 52
OFFICIAL

Kex Gill Realignment
4.3.6 A firm funding offer of £56.1m has now been received from the Department
for Transport (DfT). The estimated overall project budget currently stands at
£61.6m, £4.95m of which is being funded from the Council’s Strategic
Capacity Reserve with the requirement for an additional £550k.
4.3.7 Officers are currently developing a profile of expenditure pending the outcome
of the tender exercise and whether or not a Public Enquiry will be triggered
resulting in a delay to commencement on site and possible cost increases.
Basic Need, School Condition and Capital Planned Maintenance
Programmes
4.3.8 The DfE’s School Condition Grant allocation for 2021/2022 is £9,783.4m. The
level of funding is now based on a new methodology following the DfE’s latest
Condition Data Collection which was completed in 2019. Included within this
is a transitional amount of £3,413.9k which ensures that no LA will receive
less than their 2020/21 allocation. Had transitional funding not been applied,
the value of grant received this year would have been almost 35% less than
that of 2020/21. Any loss in funding has to be managed across the remaining
backlog of works across the school estate.
4.3.9 At 1st July, there are 237 maintained schools in North Yorkshire: 3 Nursery,
207 Primary, 16 Secondary, 7 Special and 4 Pupil Referral Units. Of these,
the Council is the responsible body for asset management purposes for 212
of these. Should any of these schools convert to academy status, funding will
reduce as the associated grant is redirected to the academy.
4.3.10 There is no indication as to how long transitional funding will remain in place
but any reduction or removal will present severe challenges to the Council’s
programme of delivery. The next Condition Data Collection is not expected to
complete before 2026.
Inflationary Pressures
4.3.11 It is acknowledged, and was expected, that the UK construction market
potentially experience some volatility with post-EU arrangements. This has
been further impacted massively due to Covid related disruption to
markets. There are resource and supply issues across the global industry
including the availability of skilled staff, and the cost and availability of many
materials including timber, cement, steel, glass and plastics.
4.3.12 The phased easing of Covid lockdown restrictions has resulted in the industry
regaining momentum to levels well above that pre-pandemic.

Page 53
OFFICIAL

4.3.13 In any given year, all efforts are made to manage normal annual percentage
uplifts for inflation, plant and labour rates within the Capital Programmes of
each directorate. However, there are greater risks this year of a negative
impact on the ability of the Council to deliver its projects due to a lack of
available capital budget.
4.3.14 As a result construction costs and tender prices will be carefully monitored
over the next quarter to assess the potential for inflation pressures in the
construction market to impact on the delivery of the of the Capital Programme.
There are funds earmarked for general price rises that could be applied
should the need arise or programmes would potentially have to be curtailed.

4.4

CAPITAL FORWARD PLAN

4.4.1 The intention of the Capital Forward Plan is to ensure that there is a
methodical approach to developing proposals for new capital schemes to be
added to the Capital Plan and, in particular, the process for securing funding.
4.4.2 The Technical (Capital) and Strategic teams within Finance, are the key
contacts for officers developing funding proposals that require both grant
applications and access to central funding reserves.
4.4.3 There are no new proposals this quarter.

4.5

CAPITAL FINANCING

4.5.1 The financing of the Capital Plan is realised, primarily, through the receipt of
Government grants. In addition, the Council can utilise revenue contributions,
reserves, capital receipts from the sale of assets such as surplus land and
buildings, and, as a last resort, it can borrow from either the Public Works
Loan Board or money markets.
4.5.2 The main grants received and included in the Capital Plan relate to Highways
and Schools and, as such, the Council’s Capital Plan can be heavily
influenced by Government department priorities. Grants, in total, fund 66% of
the total 2021/22 Capital programme. Where confirmed, grants have been
added to the Capital Plan in the years to which they are due to be received.
4.5.3 Revenue contributions, whilst reflected in capital budgets, are also addressed
in the associated revenue budgets.
4.5.4 Details of confirmed new grant allocations for 2021/22 are shown in the table
below:

Page 54
OFFICIAL

Directorate Grant
BES

BES
CYPS
CYPS
CYPS
CYPS

Grant
Value £

Local Transport Plan Grant:
- Integrated Transport Block
- Highways Maintenance Block – Needs
- Highways Maintenance Block - Incentive
Pothole and Challenge Fund
Basic Need Grant
School Condition Grant
High Needs Provision Grant
Devolved Formula Capital Grant (Schools)

3,046,000
16,454,000
4,113,000
16,454,000
3,381,680
9,783,428
716,840
1,344,504

Financing the Refreshed Capital Plan
4.5.5 The following table indicates that there is potentially £17.7m of unallocated
capital funding that might become available over the Capital Plan period
(depending upon the realisation of forecast capital receipts).
Source
Forecast Sources of Finance
Borrowing
Grants and Capital Contributions
Schemes financed from Revenue
Capital Receipts
= Total Forecast Capital Funding
- Updated Capital Plan
= Unallocated Capital Resources

2021/22
£k

2022/23
£k

2023/24
£k

2024/25
£k

21,357
125,872
12,605

-10,326
33,153
4,213

-3,206
2,060
3,467

0
0
0

5,016
17,298
1,018

17,243

13,497

3,973

0

22,600

177,077

40,537

6,294

0

45,932

-171,200

-38,265

-6,214

0

-36,430

5,877

2,272

80

0

9,502

Total potentially unallocated available over full
capital reserves resources Capital Plan period

Later Yrs
£k

17,731

4.5.6 Some of the forecast receipts making up this ‘Corporate Capital pot’ are not
expected to be realised for some time yet. As a result, the availability of this
unallocated funding is speculative in terms of both timing and amount.
Against this background, any material spending of the ‘pot’ combined with
significant reductions in the expected value of potential capital receipts in the
pipeline could result in its becoming ‘overdrawn’. Such a scenario would
result in the requirement for additional Prudential Borrowing to finance the
existing Capital plan.
4.5.7 Assuming that the forecasts remain accurate, the options for this unallocated
resource are:
a) To retain, resulting in the earning of short term interest within
Corporate Miscellaneous; or

Page 55
OFFICIAL

b) To make available for either new capital investment or for reducing
Prudential Borrowing which would, in turn, result in financing cost
savings in the Revenue Budget.
4.5.8 The current position, as previously agreed by Members, remains to retain any
surplus capital funding for the time being.

4.6

RECOMMENDATIONS

4.6.1 The Executive is recommended to:
(a) Approve the refreshed Capital Plan summarised at paragraph 4.2.3;
and
(b) Agree that no action be taken at this stage to allocate any additional
capital resources (paragraph 4.5.8)

APPENDICES TO THE CAPITAL PLAN

A

BUSINESS & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

B

CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE

C

CENTRAL SERVICES

D

HEALTH & ADULT SERVICES

E

FINANCING OF THE CAPITAL PLAN

Page 56
OFFICIAL

APPENDIX A

2021/22 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - POSITION TO 30 JUNE 2021

BUSINESS AND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
ITEM

Total

Expenditure

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Later Years

£000

to 31.3.21
£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

GROSS EXPENDITURE
HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORTATION ANNUAL PROGRAMME
Structural Maintenance
Integrated Transport
New and Replacement Road Lighting Columns
Regional Funding Allocation
Overprogrammed Works
Flood Risk Management

114,383
4,819
9,211
450
6,160
3,134

51,920
4
8,083
967

58,683
4,815
1,128
30
6,160
1,320

3,780
648

200

420
-

4,622
10,372
9,600
25,538
7,032
18,916

2,840
4,801
9,600
25,052
7,032
1,838

1,782
5,511
127
2,541

12
40
14,536

12
-

36
319
-

621
5,641

4
5,534

92
107

15
-

15
-

495
-

810
162

271
-

539
162

-

-

-

62,512
5,339

62,512
-

5,339

-

-

-

289,321
244,650

180,456
153,765

88,337.3
76,487

19,031.1
12,801

227.0
227

1,269.7
1,370

3,780
14,236
392
100

-

411 CR
-

HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORTATION MAJOR PROJECTS
Kex Gill Realignment
Junction 47 Improvements
Harrogate- York Rail Scheme
Bedale-Aiskew-Leeming Bar Major Scheme
A174 Sandsend Slope Stabilisation
Transforming Cities
WASTE & COUNTRYSIDE SERVICES
Waste Management Service
Waste Procurement Project
ECONOMIC PARTNERSHIP UNIT
Rural Connected Communities (5G)
Heritage Services
GROWTH, PLANNING & TRADED SERVICES
Local Growth Deal
Getting Building Fund
TOTAL GROSS SPEND
Last Update
CAPITAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital Grants
- Local Transport Plan Grant
- National Productivity Investment Fund
- Safer Roads Fund
- Highways England Grant
- Section 31 DfT Grants
- Transforming Cities Fund Grant
- EA Grant
- Waste Capital Grants
- DfT Grant
- Local Growth Deal
- Getting Building Fund
- DCMS Grant
Other Capital Grants
Capital Contributions
S106 Contributions

36,017
3,245
11,552
3,126
23,953
18,616
5,518
411
16,454
103,887
11,339
810
100

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

4,081 CR

10,000 CR

Revenue Contributions
- Road Lighting Columns
- Structural Maintenance of Roads
- Kex Gill
- Flood Risk Management
- Junction 47
- Transforming Cities
- BALB (PIP)
- Other Revenue Contributions

8,211
15,000
4,622
1,583
1,187
300
2,288
663

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE
Last Update

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

283,590 CR
246,118 CR
5,732
1,469 CR

CR
CR
CR

25 CR
8,083
15,000
2,840
137
1,802
492

CR
CR
CR
CR

CR
CR

174,992 CR
148,304 CR
5,464
5,461

Page
57
OFFICIAL
#

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

2,578 CR

629 CR

LEP Growing Places Fund/Teckal Loan Repayments

TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Update

3,931
1,160
2,286
563
23,144
1,838
5,093
101,488
4,262
271
-

32,086
2,085
5,486
2,563
809
2,541
33
16,454
2,399
7,077
539
-

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

CR

CR
CR

CR

1,302 CR

-

200 CR

-

208 CR

-

-

420 CR

9,976 CR

-

-

-

128
1,782
1,290
1,127
127
142

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

88,153 CR
83,500 CR
184.2
7,012.8 CR

156
12
300
40
15

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

12 CR
15 CR

36 CR
319 CR
-

19,031 CR
12,801 CR

227 CR
227 CR

1,186 CR
1,287 CR

-

-

83.5
83.5

APPENDIX B

2021/22 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - POSITION TO 30 JUNE 2021
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S SERVICE
ITEM

Total

Expenditure
to 31.3.21
£000

£000

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Later Years

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

GROSS EXPENDITURE
NYCC MANAGED SCHOOL SCHEMES
Basic Need Schemes
School Condition Schemes
Capital Maintenance Programme
General Compliance & Health and Safety
Strategic Management of Capital

49,217
21,380
4,469
350
348

-

21,283
20,702
4,469
350
348

12,489
296
-

-

-

15,445
382
-

9,025
3,980

-

3,025
1,260

3,000
1,360

3,000
1,360

-

-

720
109

-

240
-

240
-

240
-

-

109

89,597
62,795

-

51,676
31,380

17,385
11,815

4,600
4,640

-

15,937
14,961

SCHOOL MANAGED SCHEMES
Self Help Schemes
Devolved Formula Capital Grant Funding
NYCC NON-SCHOOL MANAGED SCHEMES
Catering Equipment
Prevention & Commissioning
TOTAL GROSS SPEND
Last Update
CAPITAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
NYCC MANAGED SCHOOL SCHEMES
Capital Grants
- Basic Need Grant
- Devolved Capital Grant
- School Condition Grant
- Special Provision Capital Fund Grant
- Other Capital Grants

18,350
185
24,397
906
12

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

-

7,427
185
24,101
906
12

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

8,096 CR
296 CR
-

-

-

2,827 CR
-

Capital Contributions
- Section 106 Income
- Other Capital Contributions

28,591 CR
679 CR

-

11,343 CR
679 CR

4,393 CR
-

-

-

12,855 CR
-

3,980 CR
25 CR

-

1,260 CR
25 CR

1,360 CR
-

1,360 CR
-

-

-

1,500 CR
7,500 CR

-

500 CR
2,500 CR

500 CR
2,500 CR

500 CR
2,500 CR

-

-

109 CR

-

-

-

-

-

109 CR

720 CR
-

-

240 CR
-

240 CR
-

240 CR
-

-

-

86,954 CR
61,402 CR

-

49,178 CR
30,133 CR

17,385 CR
11,815 CR

4,600 CR
4,640 CR

-

15,791 CR
14,815 CR

-

-

146
146

Revenue Contributions
SCHOOL MANAGED SCHEMES
Capital Grants
- Devolved Capital Grant
- Sport Organisation Grants
Capital Contributions
- Self Help Capital Contributions
- School Budgets Revenue Contributions
NYCC NON-SCHOOL MANAGED SCHEMES
Capital Grants
- Other Capital Grants
Capital Contributions
Revenue Contributions
- Catering Equipment
- Other Revenue Contributions
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Update
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE
Last Update

2,643
1,393

-

Page
58
OFFICIAL
#

2,498
1,248

-

APPENDIX C

2021/22 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - POSITION TO 30 JUNE 2021
CENTRAL SERVICES
ITEM

Total
£000

Expenditure
to 31.3.21
£000

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Later Years

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

250
-

-

-

-

GROSS EXPENDITURE
County Hall Redevelopment
Property Rationalisation
Library Service Property Schemes
County Farm Properties
Public Sector Decarbonisation Scheme 2021/22
Travellers Sites

6,444
1,500
290
200
1,931
-

5,468
317
-

976
1,183
40
200
1,931
-

T&C Projects
T&C Roadmap 2020/2025
GBF Digital Infrastructure Programme
Super Fast Broadband Scheme
Library Schemes

350
3,221
3,000
840
731

71
154
731

350
1,189
3,000
-

700
-

700
-

-

561
686
-

Purchase of Vehicles, Plant & Equipment
Material Damage Provision

300
1,500

-

100
500

100
500

100
500

-

-

Capital Investments
Capital Loan Provisions

1,955

1,955

-

-

-

-

-

Loans to Limited Companies
Investments in Limited Companies

41,737
1,000

15,803
1,000

17,715
-

-

87
-

-

8,132
-

TOTAL GROSS SPEND
Last Update

64,998
47,148

25,499
16,963

27,183
21,669

1,550
1,300

1,387
1,387

-

9,379
5,829

-

-

-

676 CR

CAPITAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital Grants
- Getting Building Fund
- Performance Reward Grant

3,000 CR
3,081 CR

125 CR

3,000 CR
2,281 CR

43,691 CR

1,183 CR

4,704 CR

11,861 CR

3,923 CR

-

22,020 CR

5,468
100
703
1,000

CR
CR

726 CR
1,189 CR
40 CR
-

700 CR
250 CR
-

700 CR
-

-

100 CR
-

8,579 CR
5,224 CR

11,939 CR
7,658 CR

12,811 CR
12,447 CR

4,623 CR
4,505 CR

-

22,797 CR
21,702 CR

15,244
14,011

11,261 CR
11,147 CR

3,236 CR
3,118 CR

-

13,418 CR
15,873 CR

Capital Contributions
Loan Repayments
Revenue Contributions
- Revenue Contributions - Property
- Revenue Contribution - Technology & Change
- Revenue Contribution - Other
- Revenue Contribution - Library Kiosks
- Revenue Contributions - Limited Companies
TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Update
TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE
Last Update

6,194
2,790
290
703
1,000

CR
CR
CR
CR
CR

60,749 CR
51,536 CR
4,249
4,389 CR

CR
CR

16,920
11,738

Page 59
OFFICIAL

#

APPENDIX D

2021/22 CAPITAL BUDGET MONITORING - POSITION TO 30 JUNE 2021
HEALTH AND ADULT SERVICES
ITEM

Total

Expenditure

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Later Years

£000

to 31.3.21
£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

GROSS EXPENDITURE
Maintaining Fabric / Facilities of Properties

989

-

690

299

-

-

-

Extra Care Scheme (Invest to Save)

13,159

-

3,314

-

-

-

9,845

TOTAL GROSS SPEND
Last Update

14,149
11,660

-

4,004
8,207

299
254

-

-

9,845
3,199

CAPITAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS
Capital Grants
- PSS Capital Grant
Revenue Contributions
- Revenue Contributions - PIP Funding

572 CR

-

572 CR

-

-

-

-

3,877 CR

-

3,314 CR

-

-

-

563 CR

TOTAL GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS
Last Update

4,449 CR
1,960 CR

-

3,886 CR
1,960 CR

-

-

-

563 CR
-

TOTAL NET EXPENDITURE
Last Update

9,700
9,700

-

118
6,247

299
254

-

-

Page 60
OFFICIAL

#

9,282
3,199

APPENDIX E

FINANCING OF CAPITAL PLAN
Q1 2021/22
2021/22
£000s

A FORECAST FUNDING AVAILABLE
1 Borrowing
Prudential (Unsupported) Borrowing
Rephased borrowing (capital expenditure & receipts slippage)

2022/23
£000s

2023/24
£000s

2024/25
£000s

Later Yrs
£000s

2,938
18,419
21,357

486
-10,812
-10,326

482
-3,688
-3,206

0
0
0

-46,979
51,995
5,016

572
73,582
46,438
5,281
125,872

0
18,508
14,645
0
33,153

0
200
1,860
0
2,060

0
0
0
0
0

0
831
15,791
676
17,298

3,314
4,596
2,740
1,955
12,605

0
523
2,740
950
4,213

0
27
2,740
700
3,467

0
0
0
0
0

563
355
0
100
1,018

2,564
0
9,976
4,704
17,243

1,636
0
0
11,861
13,497

50
0
0
3,923
3,973

0
0
0
0
0

580
0
0
22,020
22,600

= Total Forecast Funding Available

177,077

40,537

6,294

0

45,932

B CAPITAL PLAN Updated gross spend

-171,200

-38,265

-6,214

0

-36,430

5,877

2,271

80

0

9,502

2 Capital Grants and Contributions
Health & Adult Services
Business & Environmental Services
Children & Young People's Service
Central Services

3 Schemes financed from Revenue
Health & Adult Services
Business & Environmental Services
Children & Young People's Service
Central Services

4 Capital Receipts available to finance Capital Spending
Other capital receipts from sale of properties
LEP Growing Places Loan Repayment (classed as capital receipts)
Highways Teckal Advance Purchase Provision
Company & Other Loan Repayments (treated as capital receipts)

C FUNDING REMAINING
D TOTAL FUNDING REMAINING

17,730

Page 61
#

OFFICIAL

5.0

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

5.1

The Prudential Code requires appropriate arrangements to be in place for the
monitoring, reporting and revision of Prudential Indicators previously set and these
arrangements were agreed by the County Council in 2004.

5.2

Updated Prudential Indicators for 2021/22 to 2023/24 were approved by Executive
on 26 January 2021 and subsequently by County Council on 17 February 2021 and
were based on a 2020/21 Q3 Capital Plan as at 31 December 2020.

5.3

The Annual Treasury Management and Prudential Indicators report for 2020/21 was
submitted to Executive on 25 May 2021. This reported the 2020/21 outturn position
on Prudential Indicators compared with the last updated set of Indicators for the year,
as approved by County Council in February 2021. The 2020/21 outturn report did not
however consider any consequential changes to the Indicators set for the three year
period 2021/22 to 2023/24.

5.4

It is therefore necessary to consider and revise the Prudential Indicators for the three
years up to 31 March 2024. As a result of Capital Plan updates and other changes,
many of the Prudential Indicators need revising, particularly those for capital
spending, the consequential capital financing requirement and authorised debt levels.

5.5

Rather than consider individual Prudential Indicators in isolation a full review of all
Indicators has been undertaken as part of the ongoing financial monitoring process.

5.6

A Prudential Indicators update and monitoring report is therefore attached as
Appendix A. This sets out each Prudential Indicator in terms of the:

5.7

(a)

Indicators approved in February 2021

(b)

updated Indicators as at August 2021

(c)

comments on the reasons for significant variations being proposed

In general the updated Indicators reflect a number of common factors including:
(a)

2020/21 outturn – capital spending, capital financing and borrowing as
reported to Executive on 25 May 2021

(b)

an updated Capital Plan (per Section 4 of this report)

(c)

latest information and approvals on schemes self funded from grants,
contributions and from revenue

(d)

updated forecasts of debt charge estimates and interest earned on surplus
cash balances

(e)

various other miscellaneous refinements

Page1 62
OFFICIAL

RECOMMENDATION
5.8

The Executive recommends to the County Council that it approves the revised
Prudential Indicators for the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 as set out in Appendix A.

Page
63
2
OFFICIAL

Appendix A - Prudential Indicators 2021/22 – 2023/24 update

Page3 64
OFFICIAL

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS UPDATE – FOR 2021/22 TO 2023/24
(EXECUTIVE – 24 AUGUST 2021)
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE & EXTERNAL DEBT INDICATORS

Comment

1 Estimated Ratio of capital financing costs to the net Revenue Budget
(a) Formally required Indicator
This reflects capital financing costs (principal plus interest) on external debt plus PFI
and finance leasing charges less interest earned on the temporary investment of cash
balances.
The estimated ratios of financing costs to the net Revenue Budget for the current and
future years, and the actual figure for 2018/19 and 2019/20 are as follows:
Year

Page 65

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

February 2021
Basis
actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

%
10.4
10.7
10.3
9.5

(b) variations in the level of annual borrowing requirements resulting
from a range of factors, but principally capital expenditure
slippage between years
(c) variations in borrowing costs (interest plus a revenue provision
for debt repayment) reflecting latest interest rate forecasts to
2023/24

February 2021
Basis
actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

%
5.7
5.2
5.0
4.6

Update August 2021
Basis
%
actual
5.7
estimate
5.5
estimate
5.1
estimate
4.7

1
OFFICIAL

(d) variations in interest earned on cash balances resulting from
continuing current historically low interest rates but offset by
continuing higher levels of cash balances (formal Indicator only).

APPENDIX A

This local Indicator reflects a policy decision to cap Capital Financing costs at 10% of
the net annual Revenue Budget. The Indicator is different to the formally required
Indicator at (a) above in that it only reflects the cost components of interest on external
debt plus lost interest on internally financed capital expenditure, together with a revenue
provision for debt repayment. Unlike the formally required PI it does not reflect interest
earned on surplus cash balances or PFI / finance leasing charges.

2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

The updated estimates for 2021/22 to 2023/24 reflect the net effect of
a range of factors, principally
(a) savings being achieved through the ongoing policy of financing
capital borrowing requirements internally from cash balances

Update August 2021
Basis
%
actual
10.4
estimate
10.7
estimate
10.6
estimate
9.9

(b) Local Indicator

Year

The estimates of financing costs include current Capital Plan
commitments based on the latest 2021/22 Q1 Capital Plan.

Prudential Indicator

Comment

2 Capital Expenditure - Actual and Forecasts
The actual capital expenditure that was incurred in 2019/20 and 2020/21 and the latest
estimates of capital expenditure to be incurred for the current and future years are:
Year
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

February 2021
Basis
£m
actual
119.6
estimate
181.2
estimate
26.2
estimate
6.3

Update August 2021
Basis
£m
actual
119.6
estimate
171.2
estimate
38.3
estimate
6.2

The Indicators approved by Executive on 26 January 2021 were based
on a Capital Plan up to 31 December 2020. This Indicator now reflects
the Capital Outturn in 2020/21 and the Capital Plan update for Q1
2021/22.
The variations are principally a result of:-

Page 66

(a)

additional provisions and variations to existing provisions which
are self-funded from Capital Grants and Contributions, revenue
contribution and earmarked capital receipts

(b)

Capital expenditure re-phasing between years including slippage
from 2020/21 outturn and Q1 2021/22 to later years

(c)

various other Capital approvals and refinements reflected in the
latest Capital Plan update

The above figures reflect the updated Capital Plan (Q1 2021/22) together with:(i) expenditure on fixed assets funded directly from the Revenue Budget and not included
in the Capital Plan.
(ii) an estimated allowance for future expenditure re-phasing between years.

2
OFFICIAL

Prudential Indicator

3

Comment

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
Actuals and estimates of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) at the defined year ends are as follows:
Date

Basis
31 Mar 21
31 Mar 22
31 Mar 23
31 Mar 24

actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

February 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
288.7
151.6
302.4
176.1
280.0
170.6
266.5
165.4

Total
£m
440.3
478.6
450.6
431.9

Update August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
288.7
151.6
293.1
176.2
269.9
170.6
256.3
165.4

Basis
actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

The February 2021 figures were based on a
Capital Plan approved as at 31 December
2020.

Total
£m
440.3
469.2
440.5
421.6

Page 67

The CFR measures the underlying need for the County Council to borrow for capital purposes. In accordance with best
professional practice, the County Council does not earmark borrowing to specific items or types of expenditure. The
County Council has an integrated treasury management approach and has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice for
Treasury Management. The County Council has, at any point in time, a number of cashflows, both positive and
negative, and manages its treasury position in terms of its overall borrowings and investments in accordance with its
approved Annual Treasury Management Strategy. In day to day cash management, no distinction is made between
revenue and capital cash. External borrowing arises as a consequence of all the financial transactions of the County
Council as a whole and not simply those arising from capital spending. In contrast, the CFR Indicator reflects the
County Council's underlying need to borrow for capital purposes only.

3
OFFICIAL

The updated figures reflect the following
variations to the February 2021 figures
(a)

re-phasing between years of expenditure
that is funded from borrowing including
slippage between years identified at
2020/21 outturn and Q1 2021/22

(b)

capital receipts (including company loans)
slippage between years that affect year on
year borrowing requirements

(c)

variations in the level of the Corporate
Capital Pot which is used in lieu of new
borrowing until the Pot is required

(d)

additions and variations to schemes /
provisions approved that are funded from
Prudential Borrowing

(e)

variations in the annual Minimum Revenue
Provision for debt Repayment which arise
from the above

(f)

Other Long Term Liabilities now include
the Allerton Waste Recovery Park PFI
Scheme

Prudential Indicator

4

Comment

Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement

Page 68

The Prudential Code emphasises that in order to ensure that over the medium
term debt will only be for a capital purpose, the County Council should ensure
that debt does not, except in the short term, exceed the total of the capital
financing requirement in the previous year (2020/21), plus the estimate of any
additional capital financing requirement for the current (2021/22) and next three
financial years (2022/23 to 2023/24). If, in any of these years, there is a reduction
in the capital financing requirement, this reduction should be ignored in estimating
the cumulative increase in the capital financing requirement which is used for
comparison with gross external debt.

This Prudential Indicator was changed in 2013/14 to reflect the comparison of gross
debt (external debt plus other long term liabilities less debt administered on behalf of
the Police Authority) with the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR). The comparator
debt figure had previously been net debt which was gross debt less investments.

This Prudential Indicator is referred to as gross debt and the comparison with the
capital financing requirement (Indicator 3) and is a key indicator of prudence.

The County Council’s gross debt figure is currently significantly below the CFR figures
shown in Indicator 3 because of annual capital borrowing requirements being funded
internally from cash balances (i.e. running down investments) rather than taking out
new external debt.

The Prudential Code requires that where there is a significant difference between the
gross debt and the gross borrowing requirement, as demonstrated by the CFR, then
the risks and benefits associated with this strategy should be clearly stated in the
annual Treasury Management Strategy.

The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources reports that the County Council
had no difficulty in meeting this requirement up to 2020/21 nor are any difficulties
envisaged for the current or future years of the Medium Term Financial Strategy
up to 2023/24. For subsequent years, however, there is potential that the County
Council may not be able to comply with the new requirement as a result of the
potential for the annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) reducing the Capital
Financing Requirement below gross debt. This potential situation will be
monitored closely. This opinion takes into account spending commitments,
existing and proposed Capital Plans and the proposals in the Revenue Budget
2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy report.

This situation, however, could be reversed in future as a result of two key factors:
(i)

externalising some or all of the internally financed CFR together with

(ii)

the potential for the annual Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for debt
repayment reducing the CFR below gross debt because the debt cannot readily
be prematurely repaid without incurring significant penalties (premiums).

This potential situation will be monitored carefully by the Corporate Director – Strategic
Resources.

4
OFFICIAL

Prudential Indicator

Comment

5 Authorised Limit for External Debt
In respect of its external debt, it is recommended that the County Council approves the following Authorised Limits
for its total external debt for the next three financial years.
The Prudential Code requires external borrowing and other long term liabilities (PFI and Finance leases) to be
identified separately.
The authorised limit for 2021/22 will be the statutory limit determined under section 3(1) of the Local Government Act
2003.
Year

Page 69

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

February 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
384.3
176.2
352.2
170.6
392.4
165.4

Total
£m
560.5
522.8
557.8

Borrowing
£m
303.3
340.7
300.2

August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities

Total
£m
479.5
511.3
465.5

(PFI etc)

£m
176.2
170.6
165.4

The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
confirms that these authorised limits are
consistent with the County Council’s current
commitments, updated Capital Plan and the
financing of that Plan, the 2021/22 Revenue
Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy and
with its approved Treasury Management Policy
Statement.
The Corporate Director – Strategic Resources
also confirms that the limits are based on the
estimate of most likely prudent, but not worst
case, scenario with sufficient headroom over and
above this to allow for operational issues (e.g.
unusual cash movements). To derive these
limits a risk analysis has been applied to the
Capital Plan, estimates of the capital financing
requirement and estimates of cash flow
requirements for all purposes.
The updated figures reflect a number of
refinements which are also common to the
Capital Financing Requirement (see Indicator 3)
and Operational Boundary for external debt (see
Indicator 6). Explanations for these changes are
provided under Indicators 3 and 6 respectively.

5
OFFICIAL

Prudential Indicator

Comment

It is recommended that the County Council approves the following Operational Boundary for external debt for the same
period.

The Operational Boundary represents a key
management tool for the in year monitoring of
external debt by the Corporate Director –
Strategic Resources.

6 Operational Boundary for External Debt

The proposed operational boundary for external debt is based on the same estimates as the Authorised Limit (ie
Indicator 5 above) but also reflects an estimate of the most likely prudent, but not worst case, scenario without the
additional headroom included within the Authorised Limit to allow for eg unusual cash flows.
Year

Page 70

2021/22
2022/23
2023/24

February 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
364.3
176.2
332.2
170.6
372.4
165.4

Total
£m
540.5
502.8
537.8

Borrowing
£m
283.3
320.7
280.2

August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
(PFI etc)

£m
176.2
170.6
165.4

Total
£m
459.5
491.3
445.5

The updated figures reflect refinements which
are common to the Capital Financing
Requirement (see Indicator 3 above), together
with
(a)

relative levels of capital expenditure funded
internally from cash balances rather than
taking external debt

(b)

loan repayment cover arrangements and
the timing of such arrangements

These two financing transactions affect external
debt levels at any one point of time during the
financial year but do not impact on the Capital
Financing Requirement.

6
OFFICIAL

Prudential Indicator
7

Comment

Actual External Debt
The County Council's external debt is set out below and consists of external borrowing from the PWLB and money
markets plus other long term liabilities such as PFI and finance leases which are classified as external debt for this
purpose.
Date

Basis
31 Mar 21
31 Mar 22
31 Mar 23
31 Mar 24

Page 71
8

actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

February 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
236.0
151.6
221.8
176.2
208.5
170.6
208.5
165.4

Total
£m
387.6
398.0
379.1
373.9

Basis
actual
estimate
estimate
estimate

Update August 2021
Other
Long Term
Liabilities
Borrowing
(PFI etc)
£m
£m
236.0
151.6
221.8
176.2
208.5
170.6
208.5
165.4

The updated estimates reflect refinements
which are common to the Capital Financing
Requirement (see Indicator 3 above) together
with the relative levels of capital expenditure
internally funded from cash balances rather
than taking external debt.

Total
£m
387.6
398.0
379.1
373.9

It should be noted that actual external debt is not directly comparable to the Authorised Limit (Indicator 5 above) and
Operational Boundary (Indicator 6 above) since the actual external debt reflects a position at one point in time.

Limit of Money Market Loans (Local Indicator)
Borrowing from the money market for capital purposes (as opposed to borrowing from the PWLB) is to be
limited to 30% of the County Council’s total external debt outstanding at any one point in time.
The actual position at 31 March 2021 was 8% (£20m out of a total of £236.0) against an upper limit of 30%

7
OFFICIAL

This limit was introduced as a new Local
Prudential Indicator in 2009/10, although the
30% limit has featured as part of the Borrowing
Policy section of the County Council’s Annual
Treasury Management and Investment
Strategy for many years.

Prudential Indicator

9

Comment

Maturity Structure of Borrowing
The upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of County Council borrowings are as
follows:The amount of projected borrowing maturing in each period as a percentage of total projected
borrowing that is fixed rate:

Period

Page 72

under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 25 years
25 years and within 50 years

Lower
Limit
%
0
0
0
0
10
10

Upper
Limit
%
50
25
50
75
100
100

Actual
1 April 21
%
6
6
4
3
7
74
100

Forecast
1 April 22
%
6
0
5
11
21
57
100

8
OFFICIAL

These limits are reviewed annually and have been updated to reflect
the current maturity structure of the County Council’s debt portfolio.

Prudential Indicator

Comment

10 Total Principal Sums Invested for periods longer than 365 days
The 2020/21 aggregate limit of £40m for ‘non specified’ investments longer than 365 days
is based on a maximum of 20% of estimated ‘core cash funds’ up to2022/23 being made
available for such investments.
The purpose of this prudential limit for principal sums invested for longer than 365 days is
for the County Council to contain its exposure to the possibility of loss that might arise as
a result of it having to seek early repayment or redemption of principal sums invested.

No change to this limit is proposed.

Prior to 1 April 2004, Regulations generally prevented local authorities
from investing for longer than 364 days. As a result of the Prudential
Regime however, these prescriptive regulations were abolished and
replaced with Government Guidance from April 2004.
This Guidance gives authorities more freedom in their choice of
investments (including investing for periods longer than 364 days) and
recognises that a potentially higher return can be achieved by taking
a higher (ie longer term) risk.

Page 73

This flexibility requires authorities to produce an Annual Investment
Strategy that classifies investments as either Specified (liquid,
secure, high credit rating & less than 365 days) or Non Specified
(other investments of a higher risk). Non Specified investments are
perfectly allowable but the criteria and risks involved must be
vigorously assessed, including professional advice, where
appropriate. Therefore, investments for 365 days+ are allowable as
a Non Specified investment under the Government Guidance. The
use of such investments is therefore now incorporated into the County
Council's Annual Treasury Management and Investment Strategy.

9
OFFICIAL

6.0

Legal Implications

6.1

There are no specific legal implications

7.0

Consultation and Responses

7.1

This report has been the subject of full consultation with Directorates and is
agreed by Management Board

8.0

Conclusions and Recommendations

8.1

The recommendations have been made in the body of the report and are
listed again here.
i) The Executive is asked to note:
a) the latest position for the County Council’s 2021/22 Revenue Budget,
as summarised in paragraph 2.1.2.
b) the position on the GWB (paragraphs 2.4.1 to 2.4.3)
c) the position on the ‘Strategic Capacity – Unallocated’ reserve
(paragraphs 2.4.4 to 2.4.6)
d) the position on the County Council’s Treasury Management activities
during the first quarter of 2021/22
ii) The Executive is also asked to recommend to the Chief Executive Officer
that using his emergency delegated powers, he:
e) approves the creation of the Local Government Review transition fund
(paragraphs 2.5.1 to 2.5.7)
f) approves the amendments to the Approved Lending List
g) refers this report to the Audit Committee for their consideration as part
of the overall monitoring arrangements for Treasury Management.
h) approves the refreshed Capital Plan summarised at paragraph 4.2.3;
and
i) agrees that no action be taken at this stage to allocate any additional
capital resources (paragraph 4.5.8)
j) recommends to the County Council that it approves the revised
Prudential Indicators for the period 2021/22 to 2023/24 as set out in
Appendix A

Richard Flinton
Chief Executive
18 August 2021

Gary Fielding
Corporate Director, Strategic Resources

Page 74
OFFICIAL

Agenda Item 5
North Yorkshire County Council
Informal Meeting of Executive Members
31St August 2021
Development of Adult Social Care Provider Services
Report of the Corporate Director – Health and Adult Services
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

To seek approval for the retention of Elderly People’s Home provision at Ashfield (Skipton)
and Silver Birches and the transformation of this provision into Care and Support Hubs

2.0

Executive Summary

2.1

This paper sets out proposals from Health and Adult Services to transform existing Elderly
Persons Home (EPH) provision into locality Care and Support Hubs, based around a local
preventative offer.

3.0

Background

3.1

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the
Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take
any decision which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following
on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020, which allowed for committee meetings to be held remotely, the County
Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May 2021 that, for the present time, in light of the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings
should continue (as informal meetings of the Committee Members), with any formal decisions
required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making
powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after
taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach will be
reviewed in September 2021.

3.2

Under the Care and Support Where I Live Strategy (CASWIL - 2015 and updated 2020 Link),
Health and Adult Services has undertaken a phased programme of Extra Care Housing
(ECH) development which in many cases has involved the replacement of existing Elderly
People’s Home (EPH) capacity.

3.3

This programme has been highly successful, supporting the Council in developing the largest
Extra Care programme in the country whilst realising significant savings through the
replacement of ageing EPH provision.

3.4

Whilst the need for Extra Care Housing remains, changes in the care market and increasing
pressures throughout the health and care system require a review of the assumption that
EPHs will be replaced in parallel with the opening of ECH provision.

3.5

In addition to the need for provision that provides long term care and support there is a clear
and growing need for capacity which is able to support people in the short term, to either
prevent admission to long term health or care services or support people in returning home.

Page 75
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

3.6

As a first step to addressing this need, Station View in Harrogate was converted into a ‘hub’,
comprising a mix of short and long term bed based support with input from partners across
the system. Station View is embedded as a core part of the health and care system in
Harrogate. The success of Station View has led to the exploration of options to expand this
model to other areas of the County.

3.7

New Extra Care schemes at Filey and Skipton are due to open in Autumn 2021. Under the
standard approach set out in CASWIL these new schemes would result in the replacement
of Silver Birches and Ashfield (Skipton) EPHs. Based on the factors set out above, this paper
proposes an alternative future for these settings.

3.8

In parallel to this evolution of the CASWIL strategy, HAS provider services is undertaking a
change process to focus more on providing high cost, complex and time critical aspects of
care. This is a shift away from more generic offer which has been the approach in the past
and which the open market is more capable of providing. This enables in-house provision to
operate competitively in the market whilst offering increased value for money for the Council.

4.0

Proposal

4.1

It is proposed that both Ashfield Skipton and Silver Birches be retained by the Council, for
conversion into locality Care and Support Hubs based on from the successful model at
Station View. This approach reflects the need for additional facilities of this kind as part of
local health economies (e.g. Craven and Scarborough/Filey/Whitby/Ryedale)

4.2

These hubs will offer a flexible range of bed based support, which is responsive to local need.
Initial configurations for both settings will include long and short term capacity for people living
with dementia, as well as a range of short break, interim and rehabilitation capacity.

4.3

Each hub will be flexible to changing local need with the type of capacity available changing
over time. The proposed initial configuration for each hub will be as follows:
Silver Birches

Ashfield, Skipton

Long Term Dementia

Dementia Assessment

Dementia Respite

Dementia Respite

Rehab Beds

Assessment Beds

Interim Beds

Rehab Beds

Short Breaks

Short Breaks / LD Respite
Day Service (OP / LD)

4.4

Alongside Ashfield, HAS also operates an EPH at Neville House in Gargrave which forms
part of the same care and support system.

4.5

Several previous attempts to secure an Extra Care provider for Gargrave have been
unsuccessful. It is therefore proposed to offer the new Extra Care provision at Skipton as the
Extra Care replacement for Neville House. This proposal will provide existing residents with
the option to move to Extra Care. Neville House will remain open whilst further work is
completed on future options for its use.

4.6

Through the autumn of 2021 the HAS Housing Team will engage with local stakeholders and
complete an options appraisal for the future use of Neville House to be presented to the
Executive later in 2021.

Page 76
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

5.0

Issues

5.1

Impact on residents:
5.1.1 All residents of Ashfield, Silver Birches and Neville House will be offered the
opportunity to move to the relevant Extra Care
5.1.2 Where people choose to move, they are able to do so at no financial detriment, the
Council will meet the costs of moving from a furnished to an unfurnished setting.
5.1.3 Where people choose to remain at the EPHs, they will be able to do so. New long
term admissions will be ceased and the long term population of the home will be reduced
over time whilst operationally viable to do so.
5.1.4 Based on initial assessments it is likely that the majority of EPH residents will be
unsuitable for Extra Care with higher levels of nursing support more likely

5.2

Impact on Staffing
5.2.1 As part of these changes, all care and support colleagues currently employed at any
of the three existing EPHs will be offered a guaranteed permanent post with Council. This
may be in roles within the Hubs or in Reablement or other community based services.
5.2.2 The nature of the Hubs will mean that new or additional roles will be required to
deliver the service effectively.

6.0

Policy Implications

6.1

This approach represents a change in the delivery of the Care and Support Where I Live
Strategy which has so far linked the opening of ECH and replacement of EPHs where
appropriate.

6.2

This change reflects the evolving market position since 2015 as well as the change in
strategic direction for Provider Services as set out in Section 3. As such CASWIL continues
to support the overall strategic plan for HAS and remains an integral part of the Councils role
in supporting the market and ensuring people are able to remain independent and living in
their own communities.

7.0

Options Appraisal

7.1

Option 1: Replacement of EPHs aligned to opening of Extra Care
This option is the existing default / do nothing option. This option releases the savings
required under MTFS and divests HAS of the properties at Ashfield, Silver Birches and Neville
House.
This option reduces the overall market capacity for residential and short stay care in both
localities. The care market in Skipton and Filey (as in much of the rest of the county) is limited
and as such the closure of these services could lead to additional cost pressures to locality
budgets or an increase in out of area of more distant placements.
The original MTFS proposal assumed that the majority of residents from the EPH would
transfer to the relevant Extra Care. Reviews undertaken with residents suggest that given the
age and need profile at each setting, only a small number of people are likely to be willing or
able to transfer. This suggests an ongoing need for a more complex level of service, along
with investment in prevention in these localities.

Page 77
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

7.2

Option 2: Retention of EPHs under existing model
This option would see either all three or two of three EPHs retained under the existing long
term care model, securing long term care capacity within the two localities where overall
market capacity is low.
By locking in a model of care that is delivered effectively and at scale in the private sector
this option would not align with the long-term strategic vision for provider services which sees
the service delivering high cost, complex and time critical care.
This option would not realise any savings that are required under MTFS.

7.3

Option 3: Closure of EPHs and Commissioning of Locality Care and Support Hubs
This option would see the closure of the existing EPHs, and a commissioning process
undertaken to specify and procure a Locality Hub model from the commercial sector.
The challenge of this option lies in the maturity of the market and the ability of providers to
operate to a preventative specification, based on short term interventions and reduction in
activity. Whilst it may be that the market is able to address this need in the future it is likely
that a procured solution would require extensive oversight to ensure the ethos was adhered
to.
In addition, the development of two locality Care and Support Hubs requires use of two vacant
care homes which would not be possible to source in the immediate term.
The North Yorkshire care market is currently highly fragile following the COVID pandemic
which further reduces the possibility of a successful procurement approach being successful
at this time.

7.4

Option 4: Transformation of EPHs into Locality Care and Support Hubs
This is the preferred option as set out under section 4.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

The proposal will realise MTFS savings of £485,000 annually through the Extra Care closure
and replacement programme in line with the existing Care and Support Where I Live Strategy.
These savings are comprised of a reduction in the overall base budget to the service and
increased income through changes to the existing bed base.

8.2

The hubs will be funded through existing HAS operational budgets, part of which will be held
as a base budget by provider services and part of which will be held by locality teams and
deployed as needed to ensure most effective use of resources.

8.3

In addition to MTFS savings, evidence from Station View indicates that the preventative
nature of the services through the hubs will have a benefit to locality Care and Support
budgets by reducing or delaying the need for more intensive care. Conservative estimates
from Station View indicate an average annual £15,000 cost avoidance per admission.

8.4

In order to protect locality budgets through a transitional phase, and to ensure the efficacy of
the model, the Hubs will be part funded through transformation funding for 3 years. The model
will be fully reviewed after 2 years and recommendations made on long term sustainability
and need.

8.5

Each Hub will have a flexible mix of long and short stay bed capacity which will generate
income through standard charges. In addition Silver Birches will host Rehab and Interim beds
funded through Improved Better Care Fund (IBCF) whilst Ashfield will offer an Learning
Disability Respite service.

Page 78
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

8.6

Some alterations to the existing buildings will be required. HAS officers are working closely
with colleagues in property services to develop these proposals. Capital works will be funded
from the existing Provider Services and Extra Care capital budgets.

9.0

Legal Implications

9.1

No legal implications have been identified as part of the development of this proposal.

10.0
10.1

Human Resources Implications
HAS colleagues currently employed within Silver Birches and Ashfield will be able to continue
working at the settings as the service is transformed. As the nature of the support offered at
each site changes there may be the need for additional training and development.

10.2

A dedicated HR lead will be part of the transformation project group.

10.3

As set out at 5.2, all HAS colleagues currently employed at Silver Birches, Ashfield and
Neville House will be offered a permanent role within Care and Support as part of this
process.

11.0

Equalities Implications

11.1

An EIA has been completed and is included as Appendix A

12.0

Environmental Impacts/Benefits

12.1

The upgrading of Ashfield and Silver Birches will involve modernisation of windows, insulation
and potentially heating systems, significantly improving the thermal efficiency of the buildings
and reducing their carbon footprint.

13.0 Recommendations
The Executive is asked to
i) Note the proposal to undertake further feasibility studies into the future use of Neville
House EPH whilst continuing to deliver services from the site.
ii) Recommend to the Chief Executive Officer that using his emergency delegated
powers, he approve:
 the retention of Ashfield, Skipton and Siler Birches as locality hubs, and;
 the use of capital and transformation funding to allow for the necessary physical
and operational changes to be made to both sites

Richard Webb
Corporate Director – Health and Adult Services
County Hall
Northallerton
18 August 2021
Report Author – Mike Rudd, Head of Housing, Technology & Sustainability
Presenter of Report – Dale Owens, Assistant Director Prevention and Service Development
Background Documents:
Care and Support Where I Live Strategy

Care_and_support_where_i_live_strategy_(apr_2015).pdf (northyorks.gov.uk)

Page 79
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendices:
Appendix A – Equalities Impact Assessment
Appendix B – Data Protection Impact Assessment

Page 80
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Equality impact assessment (EIA) form:
evidencing paying due regard to protected
characteristics
(Form updated April 2019)

Development of Locality Care and Support Hubs
If you would like this information in another language or
format such as Braille, large print or audio, please contact
the Communications Unit on 01609 53 2013 or email
communications@northyorks.gov.uk.

Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs) are public documents. EIAs accompanying reports
going to County Councillors for decisions are published with the committee papers on our
website and are available in hard copy at the relevant meeting. To help people to find
completed EIAs we also publish them in the Equality and Diversity section of our website.
This will help people to see for themselves how we have paid due regard in order to meet
statutory requirements.
Name of Directorate and Service Area

Health and Adult Services

Lead Officer and contact details

Mike Rudd
Michael.rudd@northyorks.gov.uk
01609 535347

Names and roles of other people involved in
carrying out the EIA

N/A

How will you pay due regard? e.g. working
group, individual officer

Lead officer
Transformation project group

Page 81
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 1

When did the due regard process start?

01/01/2021

Section 1. Please describe briefly what this EIA is about. (e.g. are you starting a new
service, changing how you do something, stopping doing something?)

Conversion of existing in house Elderly People’s Home (EPH) facilities at Silver Birches
in Filey and Ashfield in Skipton, into locality Care and Support Hubs – multi-purpose
facilities with a range of short and long term care options designed to prevent hospital
admissions or support people in returning home rather than entering long term care.
The report top Executive dated 31st August 2021 also proposes further work be done to
determine future uses for Neville House in Gargrave. Depending on the outcome of this
review a further EIA will be completed to identify issues dependent on the
recommendations.

Section 2. Why is this being proposed? What are the aims? What does the authority
hope to achieve by it? (e.g. to save money, meet increased demand, do things in a better
way.)

The proposal is based on evidence from Station View which is a setting with a similar
remit to that proposed for Silver Birches and Ashfield. The experience of Station View
shows that the model of care and support proposed is highly effective in preventing
admission and supporting people to return home.
By providing a flexible model of care and support in localities HAS will be able to support
people to remain independent within their own communities for as long as possible.
This project also forms part of the Extra Care programme where the development of
Extra Care is linked to the replacement of an associated EPH where one exists in close
proximity to the new development. There are significant savings associated with this
programme which this proposal will support. Full financial details are set out in the project
business case.

Section 3. What will change? What will be different for customers and/or staff?

Ashfield and Silver Birches EPHs will be transformed from traditional residential care
homes into locality care and support hubs – settings with a range of short and long term
beds driven by need in the locality.
Long term Care and Support will be provided through new Extra Care developments at
Skipton and Filey.

Page 82
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 2

Section 4. Involvement and consultation (What involvement and consultation has been
done regarding the proposal and what are the results? What consultation will be needed and
how will it be done?)

The model is based on developments at Station View in Harrogate which have seen
hub model implemented with great success in terms of supporting people to remain
independent by reducing or delaying the need for long term care and support.
Staff teams and management at Silver Birches and Ashfield have been engaged in the
development of the proposal to ensure it is deliverable and reflects local need. Existing
residents have been offered the option of moving to new Extra Care schemes in
Skipton and Filey with the benefits of Extra Care explained to residents and their
families.
Should approval be given by Executive in August 2021, further engagement with staff
and residents and their families will be undertaken as the model is further developed
and implemented.

Section 5. What impact will this proposal have on council budgets? Will it be cost
neutral, have increased cost or reduce costs?
Evidence from Station View indicates that developing a local hub with a preventative focus will
reduce or delay the need for long term care and as such reduce the ongoing costs both to
NYCC and the wider health and care system.
The proposal forms part of the overall Extra Care replacement programme and as such will
save a £485,000 in line with MTFS requirements.

Section 6. How
will this
proposal affect
people with
protected
characteristics?
Age

Disability

No
impact

Make
things
better

Make
things
worse

Why will it have this effect? Provide
evidence from engagement, consultation
and/or service user data or demographic
information etc.

X

This service will be focussed on the
prevention and / or delay of people
needing long term care and support
services which is a better outcome for the
individual.
Based on long term trends in service use
this will predominantly be older people or
those with a physical disability.

X

This service will be focussed on the
prevention and / or delay of people
needing long term care and support
services which is a better outcome for the
individual.

Page 83
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 3

Based on long term trends in service use
this will predominantly be older people or
those with a physical disability.
Sex

X

Race

X

Gender
reassignment

X

Sexual
orientation
Religion or belief

X

Pregnancy or
maternity

X

Marriage or civil
partnership

X

Section 7. How
will this
proposal affect
people who…
..live in a rural
area?
…have a low
income?

No
impact

Make
things
better

Make
things
worse

Why will it have this effect? Provide
evidence from engagement, consultation
and/or service user data or demographic
information etc.

X

X

…are carers
(unpaid family
or friend)?

X

The hubs will provide a range of short stay
options including short breaks and
respite, providing additional capacity for
carers to take a break.

Section 8. Geographic impact – Please detail where the impact will be (please tick all that
apply)
North Yorkshire wide
Craven district
X
Hambleton district
Harrogate district

Page 84
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 4

Richmondshire
district
Ryedale district
Scarborough district

X

Selby district
If you have ticked one or more districts, will specific town(s)/village(s) be particularly
impacted? If so, please specify below.
Filey and Craven will be most directly impacted as the locations of the EPHs, however each
will support people from a wider area.

Section 9. Will the proposal affect anyone more because of a combination of protected
characteristics? (e.g. older women or young gay men) State what you think the effect may
be and why, providing evidence from engagement, consultation and/or service user data
or demographic information etc.
The proposal will likely most effect older women, however this is a reflection of the overall
demographic usage of HAS services rather than as a direct result of the proposal itself.

Section 10. Next steps to address the anticipated impact. Select one of the
Tick
following options and explain why this has been chosen. (Remember: we have
option
chosen
an anticipatory duty to make reasonable adjustments so that disabled people can
access services and work for us)
1. No adverse impact - no major change needed to the proposal. There is no
X
potential for discrimination or adverse impact identified.
2. Adverse impact - adjust the proposal - The EIA identifies potential problems
or missed opportunities. We will change our proposal to reduce or remove these
adverse impacts, or we will achieve our aim in another way which will not make
things worse for people.
3. Adverse impact - continue the proposal - The EIA identifies potential
problems or missed opportunities. We cannot change our proposal to reduce or
remove these adverse impacts, nor can we achieve our aim in another way
which will not make things worse for people. (There must be compelling reasons
for continuing with proposals which will have the most adverse impacts. Get
advice from Legal Services)
4. Actual or potential unlawful discrimination - stop and remove the proposal
– The EIA identifies actual or potential unlawful discrimination. It must be
stopped.
Explanation of why option has been chosen. (Include any advice given by Legal Services.)
The proposal will improve access to short term, preventative care and support options which
will enable people to remain at home and in their own communities for longer.

Page 85
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 5

Section 11. If the proposal is to be implemented how will you find out how it is really
affecting people? (How will you monitor and review the changes?)

The transformation project will be reviewed over an initial two year period to ensure
operational effectiveness and value for money. The project will be overseen by the
Healthy People, Healthy Places and Strategic Market Development Boards.

Section 12. Action plan. List any actions you need to take which have been identified in this
EIA, including post implementation review to find out how the outcomes have been achieved in
practice and what impacts there have actually been on people with protected characteristics.
Action
Lead
By when
Progress
Monitoring
arrangements
Updates to HP2 Service
Quarterly
Ongoing
Via
Healthy
and
Market Development
/
People, Healthy
Development
Provider
Places
and
Board
Services
Market
Development
Boards
Review
of Service
April 2023
Via
Healthy
operating model Development
/
People, Healthy
Provider
Places
and
Services
Market
Development
Boards

Section 13. Summary Summarise the findings of your EIA, including impacts,
recommendation in relation to addressing impacts, including any legal advice, and next steps.
This summary should be used as part of the report to the decision maker.
The proposal to develop locality Care and Support hubs will increase the range of care and
support available to keep people living independently in their own homes and communities.
Developments such as these are of particular benefit to older people and people with physical
disabilities as these groups are most likely to access these services.

Page 86
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 6

Section 14. Sign off section
This full EIA was completed by:
Name: Mike Rudd
Job title: Head of Housing, Technology & Sustainability
Directorate: HAS
Signature: M. Rudd
Completion date: 29/07/2021

Authorised by relevant Assistant Director (signature):
Date: 18th August 2021

Page 87
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6
North Yorkshire County Council
Informal Meeting of Executive Members
31st August 2021
Consultation on the Use and Content of a Section 75 Agreement
between NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG
Report of the Corporate Director – Children and Young Peoples Services
1.0

Purpose of Report

1.1

The purpose of this report is to present to Executive the proposal for, and outline of a
Section 75 Agreement between the Council and North Yorkshire Clinical Commissioning
Group (NYCCG) for the delivery of Emotional Health and Wellbeing Services for Children
and Young People aged 9-19.

1.2

The report seeks approval to commence a 60 day consultation in respect of the use and
content of the Section 75.

2.0

Executive Summary

2.1

The Council and NYCCG propose entering into a Commissioning S75 to allow the partners
to work together in the procurement of services to support young people aged 9-19 in respect
of their Emotional Health and Wellbeing.

2.2

This project brings together a range of partners from across the North Yorkshire system in
the delivery of these services. In addition to the S75 arrangement between the Council and
NYCCG, NYCCG will act as lead NHS commissioner on behalf of the Vale of York (VoY)
CCG and Bradford and Craven (BaC) CCG.

3.0

Background

3.1

Under his delegated decision making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme in the
Council’s Constitution, the Chief Executive Officer has power, in cases of emergency, to take
any decision which could be taken by the Council, the Executive or a committee. Following
on from the expiry of the Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus)
(Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales)
Regulations 2020, which allowed for committee meetings to be held remotely, the County
Council resolved at its meeting on 5 May 2021 that, for the present time, in light of the
continuing Covid-19 pandemic circumstances, remote live-broadcast committee meetings
should continue (as informal meetings of the Committee Members), with any formal decisions
required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision making
powers and after consultation with other Officers and Members as appropriate and after
taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members. This approach will be
reviewed in September 2021.

4.0

Section 75 Overview

4.1

The full current draft of the Section 75 Agreement between the Council and North Yorkshire
CCG is appended to this report as Appendix A. This draft represents the current working
position as negotiated by officers from both organisations. This draft is subject to change

Page 89
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

pending the outcome of the proposed consultation and as a result of continued work between
the parties. The following are the key aspects of the draft Agreement:
4.2

Commencement and Duration and Termination

4.2.1 The Agreement will come into effect on 01/04/2022 for an initial period of 3 years with an
option to extend for a further 2 years.
4.2.2 Both parties have the right to terminate the agreement for any reason with 12 months notice.
It is expected that any notification to terminate would be preceded by escalation through the
formal Governance structures of the Section 75 and the Partnership Board.
4.2.3 This termination period would allow adequate time for both parties to pursue alternative
arrangements for service delivery including via procurement.
4.3

Partnership Arrangements

4.3.1 The partners shall enter into a Section 75 agreement as defined in the National Health
Service Act 2006 in order to commission integrated health and social care services to better
meet the needs of the Service Users of North Yorkshire than if the Partners were operating
independently.
4.3.2

North Yorkshire CCG will act as the lead commissioner within the arrangement.

4.3.3

The partners do not propose to establish any kind of pooled fund as a part of this agreement,
however there is no impediment to doing so in the future should this be agreed by both
parties.

4.3.4

The agreement shall in no way detract from the principle that NHS services are free at the
point of use or affect the Council’s power to determine and apply eligibility criteria for services
where this is appropriate.

4.4

Governance

4.4.1

The Section 75 will be managed through a distinct Governance structure which will oversee
the agreement, ensuring value for money and strategic alignment with both parties interests.
The agreement will be actively overseen and monitored through the establishment of an
Integrated Commissioning Group with membership from the Council and CCG.

4.4.2

Within NYCC the Agreement will be reported on a quarterly basis, with issues escalated as
necessary between formal meetings.

4.4.3

The Integrated Commissioning Group will also provide updates to the Partnership Board to
ensure that the service is linking effectively to the range of other services supporting
Emotional Health and Wellbeing.

4.4.4

The draft Terms of Reference are included as Appendix B.

4.5

Annual Development Plan

4.5.1

The Partners shall prepare an Annual Development Plan for the Service which shall:




set out the agreed Aims and Outcomes for the Service and how these have been met in
the preceding year;
describe any changes or development required for the Service;
provide information on how changes in funding or resources may impact the Service;

Page 90
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE



Articulate how the service strategically aligns to the objectives of the partners and the
wider system.

4.6

Performance Management

4.6.1

As the service is secured through a Commissioner Section 75, the Agreement is the only
means by which NYCC can formally request monitoring and service information.

4.6.2

The Section 75 will contain a full Performance Monitoring Schedule to ensure that the Council
is fully appraised of how the service is performing, areas for improvement and risks or
opportunities.

4.7

Financial contributions

4.7.1

The partners shall each contribute their own allocated budget to the service. These
contributions will be set out in the Finance Schedule to the S75 Agreement.

4.7.2

NYCCG as the lead commissioner will manage any in year overspends through
commissioning arrangements.

5.0

Service Overview

5.1

The service will be available to children and young people between the ages of 9-19. For
young people with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) and an Education
Health and Care Plan the service will be available up to the age 25.

5.2

The aim of the service is to improve outcomes for children and young people’s mental health
by strengthening the range of mental health support available to children and young people.
This includes:




5.3

Early interventions for children and young people experiencing mild to moderate
emotional and mental health difficulties. It is anticipated this will be primarily around low
mood and anxiety.
Contribute to schools developing a whole school approach towards emotional and
mental well-being through the delivery of training and consultations.
Contribute to the whole pathway of support within the iThrive model in North Yorkshire
primarily providing support in ‘Getting Advice’ and ‘Getting Help’.

The key features of the service will be:







Clear access and referral arrangements - protocols for referral, early intervention and
support are clearly defined, agreed and communicated between all agencies.
A collaborative model across agencies and with children and young people and their
families – to include co-production approaches, potential joint working on specific
projects and around individual children and young people of groups, and strong working
relationships with the Commissioners. For example, this might include engagement with
CYP on The Go-To website, the Service name and branding. Groups such as the EHWB
delivery group and SEMH locality groups might facilitate joint work with partners.
A consultation model to offer advice to school and college staff - a consultation model
offer to help children and young people to get the right support at the right time in the
right place.
A digital offer of support - a comprehensive digital offer which supports self-care. This
will include a text messaging service and The Go To website and work collaboratively
with other local digital offers including Kooth.
Evidence based time limited support/interventions - offer evidence based time limited
support/interventions to children and young people with mild to moderate mental health

Page 91
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE



issues. These can be delivered through 1:1 work and group work, and will be within NICE
and other guidelines and clinically governed.
Building System Capacity - offer a flexible workforce development and training offer for
schools on children and young people’s mental health.

6.0

Performance Implications

6.1

This arrangement will allow the Council and CCG to work together more effectively in the
delivery of EHWB services to children and young people across North Yorkshire, ensuring
that services are delivered in a joined up and coordinated way.

6.2

The Section 75 will have as a Schedule to the agreement, a full Performance Framework
which will set out the key attributes of the service both in terms of activity and outcomes for
individuals. The key outcomes identified in the service specification are as follows:







Increase access to emotional and mental health support in line with the NHS Long Term
Plan (baseline is NHS access standards via MHSDS).
A seamless pathway of support across the domains of iThrive, primarily in relation to
‘getting advice’ and ‘getting help’.
Improvement in numbers of children and young people reporting good emotional and
mental well-being (baseline is GUNY data).
Children and young people have a good experience of engagement with emotional and
mental health support services, against four criteria:
o Safe
o Involved
o Respected
o Have a purpose
(baseline is to be established at start of contract)
Monitor numbers of school and staff in other community settings reporting increased
confidence and knowledge of approaches to support the emotional and mental health
needs of children and young people.

7.0

Policy Implications

7.1

This arrangement with NYCCG is an example of integrated working across the NHS, Primary
and Social Care. Integration with Health Partners is a key Council priority as well as an
ambition set out in the NHS long term plan in January 2019.

7.2

This proposal supports the strategic priorities of the North Yorkshire Mental Health and
Learning Disabilities Partnership by working to improve the health and well-being of people
across North Yorkshire with mental health issues and/or a learning disability through
partnership working.

8.0

Financial Implications

8.1

The Section 75 will contain a full financial schedule setting out the respective contributions of
the partners. This proposal does not create a pooled fund between the Council and the NHS
Body.

8.2

The total NYCC contribution to the service will be £318,000 per annum for an initial period of
three years. There will then be an option to extend the agreement by a further two years.

8.3

North Yorkshire CCG will contribute £308,840 per annum, Vale of York CCG £93,250 and
Bradford and Craven CCG £30,000.

9.0

Legal Implications

Page 92
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9.1

Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities
Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000, S.I. 617 (“Regulations”) enable NHS bodies to
exercise prescribed local authority health-related functions in conjunction with NHS functions.
The proposal is for NYCC and NYCCG to enter into a commissioning S75 Agreement, which
is considered to improve the way in which these functions are exercised by the parties.

9.2

The NHS and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 stipulate that
the partners may not enter into any partnership agreements under Section 75 (s75) of the
NHS Act 2006 unless they have consulted jointly such persons as appear to them to be
affected by such arrangements. This report seeks approval to commence this consultation.

10.0

Consultation Undertaken and Responses

10.1

This paper requests that Executive consider the proposal for a Section 75 agreement
between the Council and NYCCG and approve a 60 day public consultation on both the use
and content of this agreement. The text of this consultation is included as Appendix C.

10.2

This consultation will be based on the Draft S75 agreement set out at Appendix A and will
invite comments from both the public and other interested parties.

11.0

Impact on Other Services / Organisations

11.1

North Yorkshire CCG will be a party to the agreement as lead commissioner on behalf of
Vale of York and Bradford and Craven CCGs.

12.0

Equalities Implications

12.1

An Equalities Impact Assessment screening tool has been completed and is appended as
Appendix D.

18.0 Recommendations –
The Executive is asked to recommend to the Chief Executive Officer, that using his
emergency delegated powers, he approve:
i)

The commencement of a public consultation on the use of a S75 to facilitate the joint
commissioning of the delivery of Emotional Health and Wellbeing Services for
Children and Young People between the Council and NYCCG;

ii)

The draft Section 75 Agreement.

iii)

That the consultation responses be presented to the Executive in January 2022, and
subject to the outcome of the consultation, a final draft Section 75 agreement be
brought back to Executive for approval.

Stuart Carlton
Corporate Director – Children and Young Peoples Services
County Hall
Northallerton
18 August 2021
Report Authors – Mike Rudd, Head of Housing, Technology & Sustainability and
Victoria Ononeze, Consultant in Public Health

Page 93
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Presenter of Report – Victoria Ononeze, Consultant in Public Health
Appendices:
Appendix A: Draft Section 75 Agreement
Appendix B: Integrated Commissioning Group Draft Terms of Reference
Appendix C: Public Consultation text
Appendix D: Equalities Impact Assessment

Page 94
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix A

Dated

2021

NHS NORTH YORKSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING
GROUP
AND
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

SECTION 75 PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT
in relation to the Targeted Healthy Child Service

© Bevan Brittan LLP
Toronto Square – 7th Floor | Toronto Street | Leeds LS1 2HJ
T 0370 194 1000 F 0370 194 5465
Fleet Place House | 2 Fleet Place | Holborn Viaduct | London EC4M 7RF
T 0370 194 1000 F 0370 194 7800
Kings Orchard | 1 Queen Street | Bristol BS2 0HQ
T 0370 194 1000 F 0370 194 1001
Interchange Place | Edmund Street | Birmingham B3 2TA
T 0370 194 1000 F 0370 194 5001
www.bevanbrittan.com

Page 95
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Contents
Item

Page

1

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION

3

2

COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

6

3

EXTENDING THE INITIAL TERM

6

4

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS

6

5

SERVICES

7

6

ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

7

7

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

8

8

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

8

9

OVERSPENDS AND UNDERSPENDS

8

10

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

9

11

SET UP COSTS

9

12

CONTRACTS (PRE-EXISTING AND FUTURE)

9

13

GOVERNANCE

9

14

QUARTERLY REVIEW AND REPORTING

9

15

ANNUAL REVIEW

10

16

VARIATIONS

10

17

STANDARDS

10

18

HEALTH AND SAFETY

11

19

EQUALITY DUTIES

11

20

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

11

21

DATA PROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHARING

11

22

NOT USED

13

23

CONFIDENTIALITY

14

24

AUDIT

14

25

INSURANCE

14

26

NOT USED

14

27

LIABILITIES AND INDEMNITIES

14

28

COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS

15

29

HEALTHWATCH

16

30

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

16

31

TERMINATION

18

32

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

19

33

PUBLICITY

20

34

NO PARTNERSHIP

20

35

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

20

36

NOTICES

20

37

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

20

38

SEVERABILITY

21

Page 96

39

WAIVER

21

40

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

21

41

FORCE MAJEURE

21

42

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

21

43

FAIR DEALINGS

21

SCHEDULE 1 - AIMS AND OUTCOMES OF THE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD

24

SCHEDULE 2 - SERVICES IN SCOPE

25

SCHEDULE 3 – FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

26

1

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

26

2

VAT

26

3

POOLED FUND

26

4

SUPPORT SERVICES/NON-FINANCIAL CONTIBUTIONS

26

SCHEDULE 4 - GOVERNANCE

27

SCHEDULE 5 - PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

28

SCHEDULE 6 –CCG REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

29

SCHEDULE 7 – DATA SHARING AGREEMENT

30

SCHEDULE 8 - EXIT STRATEGY

31

Page 97
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

THIS DEED is made on

day of

2021

BETWEEN
(1)

NHS NORTH YORKSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP of 1, Grimbald Crag Court, St
James Business Park, Knaresborough, HG5 8QB (the ‘CCG’); and

(2)

NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL of County Hall, Racecourse Lane, Northallerton, DL7 8AD
(the ‘Authority’)

each a ‘Partner’ and together the ‘Partners’
BACKGROUND
(A)

The Authority has responsibility for commissioning and/or providing public health and children social
care services on behalf of North Yorkshire.

(B)

The CCG is responsible for commissioning health services pursuant to the 2006 Act.

(C)

Section 75 of the 2006 Act contains powers enabling NHS Bodies (as defined in section 28(6) of the
2006 Act) to exercise certain local authority functions and for local authorities to exercise various NHS
functions. The Partners are entering into this Agreement in exercise of those powers under section 75
of the 2006 Act and pursuant to the Regulations.

(D)

This Agreement relates to Lead Commissioning Arrangements between the CCG and the Authority in
respect of the Service.

(E)

The Partners are committed to achieving better integration of the NHS Functions and the Authority
Health-Related Functions, and therefore wish to enter into the arrangements under this Agreement.

(F)

The main aims and objectives of the Partners in entering in to this Agreement are, in line with North
Yorkshire Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Partnership Proposed Strategic Priorities, to:

(G)

37330160-7



Bring together commissioners in the procurement of services to support young people
aged 9-19 in respect of their emotional Health and wellbeing, working together to deliver an
integrated and easily accessible service offer which reduces duplication and ensures ease
of access for people using the service and professionals, contributing to the national target
to increase access to mental health services by 35%.



Provide a greater focus on prevention and early intervention.



Provide integrated care closer to home.



Intervene and support people earlier and more effectively in their illness to reduce the
number of admissions for inpatient treatment.



Better use resources across the whole pathway.



Support people to achieve their self-determined health and well-being goals.



Deliver comprehensive mental health and learning disability services, initially prioritising
those in the NHS Long Term Plan and the TCP.

Given the publication of the Health and Care Bill, the Partners recognise that the arrangements may
need to adapt as the intentions around the development of Integrated Care Systems become more
apparent.

Page 98
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

2

AGREED TERMS
1

DEFINITION AND INTERPRETATION

1.1

The definitions and rules of interpretation in this clause apply in this Agreement.
2000 Act means the Freedom of Information Act 2000.
2006 Act means the National Health Service Act 2006.
Agreement means this agreement including its Schedules and Appendices.
Aims and Outcomes means the objectives of the Partners, setting out how the Partnership
Arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way the Functions are exercised, as
described in Schedule 1 F.
Annual Development Plan has the meaning set out in Clause 6.
Authorised Officers means the Authority’s Authorised Officer and the CCGs Authorised Officer as
appointed by each Partner as set out in this Agreement.
Authority Health-Related Functions means those of the health related functions of the Authority
specified in Regulation 6 of the Regulations from time to time as are relevant to the commissioning
of the Service, including but not limited to functions under the Care Act 2014 and the Children Act
2004.
Authority's Authorised Officer means the Commissioning Manager for Health and Inclusion.
Authority's Financial Contribution means the Authority's financial contribution in respect of the
Service for each relevant Financial Year as set out in Schedule 3.
CCG’s Authorised Officer means [x].
CCG Financial Contributions means the CCGs financial contribution in respect of the Service for
each relevant Financial Year as set out in Schedule 3.
Change in Law means the coming into effect or repeal (without re-enactment or consolidation) in
England of any Law, or any amendment or variation to any Law, or any judgment of a relevant court
of law which changes binding precedent in England after the date of this Agreement.
Commencement Date means 1 April 2022.
Data Controller shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Legislation.
Data Subject shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Legislation.
Data Protection Legislation means for the periods in which they are in force in the United
Kingdom, the Data Protection Act 2018 (and regulations made thereunder), the UK GDPR, the
Privacy and Electronic Communications (EC Directive) Regulations 2003 and all applicable laws and
regulations relating to processing of personal data and privacy, including where applicable the
guidance and Codes of Practice issued by the Information Commissioner, in each case as amended
or substituted from time to time.
Dispute Resolution Procedure means the procedure set out in Clause 300.
Financial Contributions means the Authority’s Financial Contribution and the CCG’s Financial
Contribution as set out in Schedule 3.
Financial Year means 1 April to 31 March.

37330160-7

Page 99
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

3

First Financial Year means 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023.
Force Majeure Event means any circumstance not within a Partner’s reasonable control including,
without limitation:
(a)

acts of God, flood, drought, earthquake or other natural disaster;

(b)

terrorist attack, civil war, civil commotion or riots, war, threat of or preparation for war, armed
conflict, imposition of sanctions, embargo, or breaking off of diplomatic relations;

(c)

nuclear, chemical or biological contamination or sonic boom;

(d)

any law or any action taken by a government or public authority, including without limitation
imposing an export or import restriction, quota or prohibition, or failing to grant a necessary
licence or consent;

(e)

collapse of buildings, fire, explosion or accident; and

(f)

any labour or trade dispute, strikes, industrial action or lockouts,

but excluding any pandemic or epidemic as declared by the World Health Organisation (including
Covid-19).
Functions means the NHS Functions and the Authority's Health-Related Functions.
Health Improvement Plan means the local NHS health improvement and modernisation plan which
applies to the CCG.
Indirect Losses means loss of profits, loss of use, loss of production, increased operating costs, loss
of business, loss of business opportunity, loss of reputation or goodwill or any other consequential or
indirect loss of any nature, whether arising in tort or on any other basis.
Information has the meaning given under Section 84 of the 2000 Act.
Information Sharing Protocol means the protocol describing how the Partners will share Information
contained in Schedule 7 of this Agreement.
Initial Term means the period commencing on the Commencement Date and ending on the 31st
March 2025.
Integrated Commissioning Group means the governance group responsible for the oversight and
scrutiny of this Agreement in accordance with the terms of reference as set out in Schedule 4.
Law means any applicable law, statute, bye-law, regulation, order, regulatory policy, guidance or
industry code, rule of court, directives or requirements of any Regulatory Body, delegated or
subordinate legislation, or notice of any Regulatory Body.
Lead Commissioning Arrangements means the arrangements by which one Partner commissions
Services and exercises Functions on behalf of the other in conjunction with their own Functions.
Loss means all damage, loss, liabilities, claims, actions, costs, expenses (including the cost of
legal and/or professional services), proceedings, demands and charges whether arising under
statute, contract or at common law but excluding any Indirect Losses and "Losses" shall be
interpreted accordingly.
NHS Functions means those of the NHS functions of the CCG listed in Regulation 5 of the
Regulations from time to time as are relevant to the commissioning of the Services, including the
CCGs
functions
under
Section
3
of
the
NHS
Act
2006.

37330160-7

Page 100
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

4

NHS Assets shall have the meaning set out in Schedule 2.
Partner means either the CCG or the Authority, and "Partners" shall be construed accordingly.
Partnership Arrangements means the arrangements made between the Partners under this
Agreement.
Personal Data shall have the meaning given to it in the Data Protection Legislation.
Process shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Legislation (and "Processed" and
"Processing" shall be construed accordingly).
Processor shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Legislation.
Quarter means one of the following periods in each Financial Year:
(a)

1 April to 30 June;

(b)

1 July to 30 September;

(c)

1 October to 31 December; and

(d)

1 January to 31 March.

Regulations mean the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations
2000 No 617 (as amended).
Regulatory Body means those government departments and regulatory, statutory and other entities,
committees and bodies that, whether under statute, rules, regulations, codes of practice or otherwise,
are entitled to regulate, investigate or influence the matters dealt with in this Agreement, or any other
affairs of the Partners.
Relevant Transfer means a relevant transfer under TUPE.
Representative means a Partner's employee, agent or subcontractor and any employee of the other
Partner who is seconded to the Partner and is acting in accordance with the Partner's instructions.
Request for Information means a request for Information or an apparent request under the Code of
Practice on Access to Government Information, the 2000 Act or the Environmental Information
Regulations 2004 (SI 2004/3391) (EIR).
Service means the Targeted Healthy Child Service as further set out in Schedule 2 to this Agreement.
Service Provider means a third-party provider of any of the Services, as commissioned by the CCG
from the Commencement Date.
Service Users means individuals who are eligible to receive the Services, as more particularly
described in Schedule 2.
Special Category Data shall have the meaning given in the Data Protection Legislation.
Term means the period of the Initial Term as may be varied by:
(a)

any extensions to this Agreement that are agreed under Clause 3; or

(b)

the earlier termination of this Agreement in accordance with its terms.

TUPE means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006 (SI
2006/246).

37330160-7

Page 101
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

5

UK GDPR means Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 27 April
2016 on the protection of natural persons with regard to the processing of personal data and on the
free movement of such data as it forms part of the law of England and Wales, Scotland and Northern
Ireland by virtue of section 3 of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act of 2018.
VAT Guidance means the guidance published by the Department of Health entitled "VAT
arrangements for Joint NHS and Local Authority Initiatives including Disability Equipment Stores and
Welfare- Section 31 Health Act 1999" as amended or replaced from time to time.
Working Day means any day other than Saturday, Sunday, a public or bank holiday in England.
1.2

Clause, Schedule and paragraph headings shall not affect the interpretation of this Agreement.

1.3

The Schedules form part of this Agreement and shall have effect as if set out in full in the body of this
Agreement. Any reference to this Agreement includes the Schedules.

1.4

Words in the singular include the plural and vice versa.

1.5

A reference to one gender includes a reference to the other genders.

1.6

A reference to a statute or statutory provision is a reference to it as it is in force for the time being,
taking account of any amendment, extension or re-enactment and includes any subordinate legislation
for the time being in force made under it.

1.7

A reference to writing or written includes faxes and e-mail.

1.8

Any obligation in this Agreement on a person not to do something includes an obligation not to agree
or allow that thing to be done.

1.9

A reference to a document is a reference to that document as varied or novated (in each case, other
than in breach of the provisions of this Agreement) at any time.

1.10

References to clauses and Schedules are to the clauses and Schedules of this Agreement.
References to paragraphs are to paragraphs of the relevant Schedule

2

COMMENCEMENT AND DURATION

2.1

This Agreement shall take effect on the Commencement Date and shall continue for the Term, subject
to earlier termination in accordance with Clause 31 or at Law.

3

EXTENDING THE INITIAL TERM

3.1

The Partners may, by written agreement, extend the Agreement for a period of two (2) years beyond
the Initial Term, subject to approval of the Partners.

3.2

Such agreement to extend the Agreement under Clause 3.1 must be reached at least 6 months before
the end of the Initial Term. The CCG will be responsible for giving notice to the Service Provider to
extend the Services contract in line with the relevant contractual requirements.

4

PARTNERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS

4.1

The Partners enter into these Partnership Arrangements under Section 75 of the 2006 Act to
commission integrated health and social care services to better meet the needs of the Service Users
of North Yorkshire than if the Partners were operating independently.

4.2

The specific Aims and Outcomes of the Partnership Arrangements are described in Recital F.

4.3

The Partnership Arrangements shall comprise Lead Commissioning Arrangements as follows:

37330160-7

Page 102
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

6

4.3.1

Lead commissioning by the CCG whereby the Authority is arranging with the CCG and the
CCG agrees to exercise on the Authority’s behalf, the Authority Health Related Functions
in conjunction with the NHS Functions in respect of the Service.

4.4

In accordance with Regulation 4(2) of the Regulations, the Partners have carried out a joint
consultation on the proposed Partnership Arrangements with Service Users, and other individuals and
groups who appear to them to be affected by the Partnership Arrangements.

4.5

The Partners are satisfied that the Partnership Arrangements fulfil the objectives set out in the Health
Improvement Plan.

4.6

Nothing in this Agreement shall detract from the principle that NHS services are free at the point of
delivery and may not be charged for.

4.7

Nothing in this Agreement shall prejudice or affect:
4.7.1

the rights and powers, duties and obligations of the Partners in the exercise of their
functions as public bodies or in any other capacity;

4.7.2

the powers of the Authority to set, administer and collect charges for any Authority HealthRelated Function; or

4.7.3

the Authority's power to determine and apply eligibility criteria for the purposes of
assessment under the Community Care Act 1990.

5

SERVICES

5.1

The CCG is responsible for making arrangements for commissioning the Service with a Service
Provider and where appropriate, mandating a sub-contractor.

5.2

The CCG shall be accountable to the Authority for the Authority Health Related Functions for the
benefit of Service Users.

5.3

The CCG will:
5.3.1

ensure the proper discharge of the Partners' Functions;

5.3.2

use reasonable skill and care in commissioning the Service and exercising the Partners’
Functions, and in accordance with best practice guidance;

5.3.3

commission the Service in accordance with the Aims and Outcomes of the Service as set
out in Schedule 1; the performance management framework as set out in Schedule 5; the
provisions of this Agreement; and the Authorities applicable policies set out in Schedule 2;

5.3.4

commission the Service in accordance with its standing orders or other rules on contracting;
and

5.3.5

act in accordance with all applicable Law.

6

ANNUAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

6.1

The Partners shall prepare and agree an Annual Development Plan for the Service as at the
Commencement Date in respect of the First Financial Year.

6.2

The Annual Development Plan will be reviewed and updated as required at least four weeks before
the start of each Financial Year (excluding the First Financial Year). The Annual Development Plan
shall:
6.2.1

37330160-7

set out the agreed Aims and Outcomes for the Service;

Page 103
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

7

6.2.2

describe any changes or development required for the Service;

6.2.3

provide information on how changes in funding or resources may impact the Service; and

6.2.4

include details of the estimated contributions due from each Partner for the Service.

6.3

The Annual Development Plan may be varied by written agreement between the Partners. Any
variation that increases or reduces the number or level of the Service in the scope of the Agreement
may require the Partners to make corresponding adjustments to the Financial Contributions set out in
Schedule 3 which will be agreed in line with Clause 16 of this Agreement.

6.4

If the Partners cannot agree the contents of the Annual Development Plan, the matter shall be dealt
with in accordance with Clause 30. Pending the outcome of the dispute resolution process or
termination of the Agreement under Clause 31, the Partners shall make available amounts equivalent
to the Financial Contributions for the previous Financial Year.

7

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT

7.1

The CCG is responsible for contract management of the Service Provider in respect of the Service in
line with the performance management framework set out in Schedule 5.

8

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

8.1

The financial arrangements in respect of the delivery of this Agreement shall be as described in
Schedule 3, which may be amended from time to time in accordance with Clause 16.

9

OVERSPENDS AND UNDERSPENDS

9.1

The CCG shall arrange for the discharge of the Authority Health-Related Functions and the NHS
Functions within the Financial Contributions available in each Financial Year, as set out in Schedule
3 of this Agreement.

9.2

The CCG shall manage any in-year overspends within its commissioning arrangements for the
Service. The CCG shall make the Authority aware of any potential overspend as soon as it becomes
aware of this possibility. The CCG will highlight reasons for the overspend, both current and projected,
and make recommendations for action to bring the relevant Financial Contributions back to balance.

9.3

The Authority shall not be responsible for any such overspends, unless approved in writing by the
Authority prior to incurring such overspend.

9.4

If, at the end of the Financial Year or on termination or expiry of this Agreement, it becomes apparent
that there has been an overspend:
9.4.1

Such overspend will be met by the CCG if such overspend has not been approved by the
Authority in line with Clause 9.3; or

9.4.2

If such overspend has been approved by the Authority in accordance with Clause 9.3, it
will be met jointly by the Partners proportionately to their respective Financial Contributions.

9.5

The CCG shall make the Authority aware of any potential underspend in relation to Financial
Contributions, prior to the end of each Financial Year. The CCG shall highlight reasons for the
underspend and identify any part of that underspend which is already contractually committed.

9.6

The benefit of any underspend at the end of the Financial Year or on termination or expiry of this
Agreement (whichever is appropriate) shall:
9.6.1

37330160-7

if the Partners agree, be applied to the Services, as the Integrated Commissioning Group
shall determine;

Page 104
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

8

9.6.2

if the Partners agree, be deducted proportionately from the Partners' Financial
Contributions for the following Financial Year; or

9.6.3

if the Partners cannot agree, be returned to the Partners in proportion to their Financial
Contribution for the Financial Year.

10

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

10.1

The Financial Contributions shall be directed exclusively to revenue expenditure. Any arrangements
for the sharing of capital expenditure shall be made separately and in accordance with section 256 (or
section 76) of the 2006 Act and Directions made thereunder.

11

SET UP COSTS

11.1

Each Partner shall bear its own costs of the establishment of the Partnership Arrangements under this
Agreement.

12

CONTRACTS (PRE-EXISTING AND FUTURE)

12.1

The CCG shall enter into such contracts with third parties as it sees fit for the purpose of facilitating
the discharge of the Functions, subject to the agreement of the Authority.

13

GOVERNANCE

13.1

The CCG shall nominate the CCG Authorised Officer, who shall be the main point of contact for the
Authority and shall be responsible for representing the CCG and liaising with the Authority's Authorised
Officer in connection with the Partnership Arrangements.

13.2

The Authority shall nominate the Authority's Authorised Officer, who shall be the main point of contact
for the CCG and shall be responsible for representing the Authority and liaising with the CCG’s
Authorised Officer in connection with the Partnership Arrangements.

13.3

The CCG Authorised Officer and the Authority Authorised Officer shall be responsible for referring
matters to the Integrated Commissioning Group for a decision/recommendation, unless they indicate
that the decision is one that must be referred to the CCGs Governing Body and/or the Authority’s
Cabinet.

13.4

The Partners shall each appoint officers to the Integrated Commissioning Group in accordance with
Schedule 4. The terms of reference of the Integrated Commissioning Group are set out in Schedule
4.

13.5

The governance arrangements set out in this Clause 13 and Schedule 4 shall be subject to review 6
months from the Commencement Date.

13.6

Any changes which are necessary following that review, including the establishment of additional
governance arrangements, shall be agreed in accordance with Clause 16.

14

QUARTERLY REVIEW AND REPORTING

14.1

The Partners shall carry out a quarterly review of the Partnership Arrangements within 30 days of the
end of each Quarter.

14.2

The CCG shall submit a quarterly report to the Integrated Commissioning Group setting out:

37330160-7

14.2.1

the performance of the Partnership Arrangements, including any reporting requirements as
set out in Schedule 6, in the preceding Quarter; and

14.2.2

any forecast overspend or underspend of the Financial Contributions.

Page 105
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

9

15

ANNUAL REVIEW

15.1

The Partners agree to carry out a review of the Partnership Arrangements within two months of the
end of each Financial Year (excluding the First Financial Year) (“Annual Review”), which will include:
15.1.1

consideration of the agreed Annual Development Plan for the next Financial Year;

15.1.2

the performance of the Partnership Arrangements against the Aims and Outcomes and
quality framework;

15.1.3

the performance of the Service against the service levels and other targets contained in
the relevant commissioning contract entered into with the Service Provider;

15.1.4

plans to address any underperformance in the Service;

15.1.5

staff levels and staff turnover;

15.1.6

comments, compliments and complaints;

15.1.7

actual expenditure compared with agreed Financial Contributions, and reasons for and
plans to address any actual or potential underspends or overspends, and evidence of value
for money;

15.1.8

review of plans and performance levels for the following year; and

15.1.9

plans to respond to any changes in policy or legislation applicable to the Service or the
Partnership Arrangements.

15.2

The CCG shall prepare an annual report, detailing the points in Clause 15.1 above, following the
Annual Review for submission to the Partners and the Integrated Commissioning Board. Following
submission of the report, the Partners will agree any required amendments to the Annual Development
Plan.

16

VARIATIONS

16.1

This Agreement may be varied by the Partners at any time by agreement in writing in accordance with
the Partners' internal decision-making processes.

17

STANDARDS

17.1

The Partners shall collaborate to ensure that the Partnership Arrangements are discharged in
accordance with:
17.1.1

the service standards set out in Schedule 2 and Schedule 5;

17.1.2

the prevailing standards of clinical governance;

17.1.3

the CCG’s standing orders;

17.1.4

The Authority’s internal governance process as set out in its Constitution; and

17.1.5

the requirements specified by the Care Quality Commission and any other relevant external
regulator.

17.2

The Partners shall develop operational guidance and procedures to reflect compliance with this Clause
17.

17.3

The Partners shall ensure that each employee is appropriately managed and supervised in
accordance with all relevant prevailing standards of professional accountability.

37330160-7

Page 106
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

10

18

HEALTH AND SAFETY

18.1

The CCG shall (and shall use reasonable endeavours to ensure its Representatives) comply with the
requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 and any other acts, orders, regulations
and codes of practice relating to health and safety, which may apply to the Service and persons
working on the Services.

18.2

The CCG shall ensure that its health and safety policy statement (as required by the Health and Safety
at Work etc Act 1974), together with related policies and procedures, are made available to the
Authority on request.

18.3

The CCG shall notify the Authority if any incident occurs in the performance of the Services, where
that incident causes any personal injury or damage to property that could give rise to personal injury.

19

EQUALITY DUTIES

19.1

The Partners acknowledge their respective duties under equality legislation to eliminate unlawful
discrimination, harassment and victimisation, and to advance equality of opportunity and foster good
relations between different groups.

19.2

The CCG agrees to adopt and apply policies in its commissioning of the Authority Health-Related
Functions and NHS Functions, to ensure compliance with their equality duties.

19.3

The CCG shall take all reasonable steps to secure the observance of this Clause 19 by all servants,
employees or agents of the CCG and all Service Providers employed in delivering the Service
described in this Agreement.

20

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION

20.1

The Partners acknowledge that each is subject to the requirements of 2000 Act and the EIR, and shall
assist and co-operate with one another to enable each Partner to comply with these information
disclosure requirements, where necessary.

20.2

Subject to the rest of this Clause 20, the Partners acknowledge that the decision on whether any
exemption to the general obligations of public access to information applies to any request for
information received under the FOIA or EIR is a decision ultimately for the Partner to whom the request
is made (“the Receiving Party”).

20.3

Where the Receiving Party receives a request for information in relation to this Agreement or the
Services which are provided under this Agreement:

21

20.3.1

The Receiving Party will promptly invite representations from the other Partner on the
content of and application of any exemptions under the 2000 Act or EIR in any response
to the individual making the request for information before the response to the request is
issued;

20.3.2

The other Partner shall respond to the request for representations from the Receiving Party
promptly taking into account any timescales under 2000 Act and the EIR;

20.3.3

The Receiving Party shall take into account any representations made by the other Partner
before the response to the Request for Information is issued; and

20.3.4

Both Partners accept and acknowledge that the final decision regarding the disclosure of
information under 2000 Act and EIR rests with the Receiving Party.

DATA PROTECTION AND INFORMATION SHARING
Data Protection

37330160-7

Page 107
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

11

21.1

Each Partner shall (and shall procure that any of its Representatives involved in the provision of the
Service shall) comply with any notification requirements under Data Protection Legislation.

21.2

Both Partners shall process data lawfully and duly observe all their obligations under Data Protection
Legislation, which arise in connection with this Agreement.

21.3

The Partners acknowledge that they each may be a Data Controller in respect of any Personal Data
which is obtained or processed in respect of complaints, member and MP enquiries on behalf of
constituents and decisions on individualised placements and packages of care.

21.4

The Partners agree that, for the purposes of services delivered under this Agreement, they do not
intend to share Personal Data apart from that which is listed at Clause 21.3. The Partners have
therefore agreed that a Data Sharing Agreement shall be entered into setting out their responsibilities
in relation to Personal Data and Special Category Data.

21.5

The Partners will be individually responsible for their own compliance with the Data Protection
Legislation and will each be separately responsible for processing of Personal Data and informing the
Data Subjects of the processing purposes in respect of any Personal Data which they hold for the
purpose of Clause 21.3.

21.6

The Partners agree that they will take the necessary technical and organisational measures against
unauthorised or unlawful processing of Personal Data and against accidental or malicious loss or
destruction of or damage to Personal Data to the standard required by the Data Protection Legislation
and having regard to the type of Personal Data set out at Clause 21.3.

21.7

On the termination of this Agreement in accordance with Clause 31, the Partners will each confirm to
the other what Personal Data it holds in relation to Clause 21.3 within five Working Days of the
termination date, and notify the other Partner of the proposed retention period for that data.

21.8

A Partner must report any security incidents relating to Personal Data to the other Partner promptly
and within 48 hours of discovery of the incident. The Partners agree that any security incident that is
likely to affect the rights and freedoms of an individual must be reported to the Information
Commissioners Office within 72 hours of the incident being discovered and the other Partner must be
informed when an incident is reported to the Information Commissioner.
Information Governance

21.9

To the extent the Partners are permitted to do so by Law the Partners shall share information about
Service Users to improve the quality of care and enable integrated working.

21.10

Both Partners must complete and publish an annual information governance assessment and must
demonstrate satisfactory compliance as defined in the Data Security and Protection Incident Reporting
Tool (or any successor framework), as applicable to the Services and organisations.

21.11

The Partners must:

21.12

37330160-7

21.11.1

Nominate an Information Governance Lead.

21.11.2

Nominate a Caldicott Guardian and Senior Information Risk Owner.

21.11.3

Ensure that each Partner is kept informed at all times of the identities and contact details
of the Information Governance Lead, Caldicott Guardian and the Senior Information Risk
Owner via the Data Security and Protection Incident Reporting Tool (or any successor
framework).

The Partners must adopt and implement the recommendations made by the National Data Guardian
and must comply with further guidance issued by the Department of Health, NHS England and/or NHS
Digital pursuant to or in connection with those recommendations. The Partners must be able to
demonstrate their compliance with those recommendations in accordance with the requirements and

Page 108
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

12

timescales set out in such guidance including its adherence to data security standards and
requirements for enabling patient choice.
21.13

The Partners must, at least once in each contract year, audit their practices against quality statements
regarding data sharing set out in NICE clinical guidance 138.

21.14

The Partners must ensure that their Data Security and Protection Incident Reporting Tool (or any
successor framework) submission is audited in accordance with Information Governance Audit
Guidance where applicable.

21.15

The Partners must report and publish any data breach and any Information Governance Breach in
accordance with the IG Guidance for Serious Incidents.

21.16

The Partners must have in place a communications strategy and implementation plan to ensure that
Service Users are provided with, or have made readily available to them, the relevant information
specified in Data Protection Legislation (being ‘fair processing information’ or privacy notices’) and for
the dissemination of nationally produced patient information materials.

21.17

In relation to Personal Data processed by the Partners in the course of delivering Services, the
Partners must publish, maintain and operate:
21.17.1

Policies relating to confidentiality, data protection and information disclosures that comply
with the Law, the Caldicott principles and good practice;

21.17.2

Policies that describe the personal responsibilities of staff for handling Personal Data;

21.17.3

A policy that supports the Partners’ obligations under the NHS Care Records Guarantee;
and

21.17.4

Agreed protocols to govern the sharing of Personal Data with partner organisations.

21.18

Where information is required for the purposes of quality management of care processes, the Partners
must consider whether the request can be met using anonymised and aggregated data which does
not contain Personal Data. Where Personal Data is required, the Partners must ensure there is a
lawful basis for processing.

21.19

If either Partner is to engage any subcontractor (to be agreed by all Partners prior to any such
engagement(s)) to deliver any part of the Services and the subcontractor is to access Personal Data
or Confidential Information or interact with Service Users, the Partner engaging the sub-contractor
must impose on its subcontractor obligations that are no less onerous than the obligations imposed in
this Agreement.

21.20

If either Partner is to require any subcontractor to process Personal Data on its behalf, the Partner
must:

22

37330160-7

21.20.1

Require the subcontractor to provide sufficient guarantees in respect of its technical and
organisational security measures governing the data processing to be carried out and take
reasonable steps to ensure compliance with those measures;

21.20.2

Ensure that the subcontractor is engaged under the terms of a written agreement requiring
the subcontractor to:
(a)

Process such Personal Data only in accordance with the Partner engaging the subcontractor instructions; and

(b)

Allow rights of audit and inspection in respect of relevant data handling systems.

NOT USED

Page 109
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

13

23

CONFIDENTIALITY

23.1

The Partners agree to keep confidential all documents relating to or received from the other Partner
under this Agreement that are labelled as confidential or are provided in conditions imparting an
obligation of confidence (“Confidential Information”).

23.2

The Partners shall keep the other Partner’s Confidential Information confidential and shall not:
23.2.1

Use such Confidential Information except for the purpose of exercising its rights under this
Agreement; or

23.2.2

Disclose any Confidential Information in whole or in part to any third party except as
expressly permitted by this Clause 23.

23.3

The Partners agree not to disclose any Confidential Information in whole or in part to any third party
unless the Partner wishing to disclose the information (“the Disclosing Partner’) informs the other
Partner in writing and the other Partner agrees for the confidential Information to be disclosed. The
Disclosing Partner shall use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that the third party keeps the
confidential information confidential and does not use the confidential information for any other
purpose than for the purpose that the disclosure was made.

23.4

Notwithstanding Clause 23.3 above, the Partners may disclose Confidential Information to the extent
required by Law, by any governmental or other Regulatory Body or by a court or other authority of
competent jurisdiction provided that, to the extent that it is legally permitted to do so, the Disclosing
Partner gives the other Partner as much notice of such disclosure as possible where notice of
disclosure is not prohibited, and the Disclosing Partner takes into account the reasonable requests of
the other Partner in relation to the content of such disclosure.

24

AUDIT

24.1

The CCG shall provide to the Authority body any reports required concerning the Authority Health
Related Functions on reasonable notice. The Partners shall agree an annual audit schedule pertaining
to elements of the Authority Health Related Functions to determine compliance and quality.

24.2

The Partners shall co-operate in the provision of Information, and access to premises and staff, to
ensure compliance with any statutory inspection requirements, or other monitoring or scrutiny
functions. The Partners shall implement recommendations arising from these inspections, where
appropriate.

25

INSURANCE

25.1

The Partners shall effect and maintain a policy or policies of insurance or equivalent indemnity cover,
providing an adequate level of cover for liabilities arising under any indemnity in this Agreement.

26

NOT USED

27

LIABILITIES AND INDEMNITIES

27.1

If a Partner (“First Partner”) incurs a Loss arising out of or in connection with this Agreement or in
relation to the Services being commissioned under the terms of this Agreement as a consequence of
any act or omission of another Partner (“Other Partner”) which constitutes negligence, fraud or a
breach of contract in relation to this Agreement or the contract under which the Services are to be
provided then the Other Partner shall be liable to the First Partner for that Loss and shall indemnify
the First Partner accordingly.

27.2

Clause 27.1 shall not apply if such act or omission occurred as a consequence of the Other Partner
acting in accordance with the instructions or requests of the First Partner.

37330160-7

Page 110
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

14

27.3

27.4

If any third party makes a claim or intimates an intention to make a claim against either Partner, which
may reasonably be considered as likely to give rise to liability under this Clause then the Partner that
may claim against the other indemnifying Partner will:
27.3.1

as soon as reasonably practicable give written notice of that matter to the Other Partner
specifying in reasonable detail the nature of the relevant claim;

27.3.2

not make any admission of liability, agreement or compromise in relation to the relevant
claim without the prior written consent of the Other Partner (such consent not to be
unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed); and

27.3.3

give the other Partner and its professional advisers reasonable access to its premises and
personnel and to any relevant assets, accounts, documents and records within its power
or control so as to enable the indemnifying Partner and its professional advisers to examine
such premises, assets, accounts, documents and records and to take copies at their own
expense for the purposes of assessing the metis of and if necessary, defending the relevant
claim.

In respect of the indemnities given in this Clause 27:
27.4.1

the indemnified Partner shall give written notice to the indemnifying Partner as soon as is
practicable of the details of any claim or proceedings brought or threatened against it in
respect of which a claim will or may be made under the relevant indemnity;

27.4.2

the indemnifying Partner shall at its own expense have the exclusive right to defend
conduct and/or settle all claims and proceedings to the extent that such claims or
proceedings may be covered by the relevant indemnity provided that where there is an
impact upon the indemnified Partner, the indemnifying Partner shall consult with the
indemnified Partner about the conduct and/or settlement of such claims and proceedings
and shall at all times keep the indemnified Partner informed of all material matters; and

27.4.3

the indemnifying and indemnified Partner shall each give to the other all such co-operation
as may reasonably be required in connection with any threatened or actual claim or
proceedings which are or may be covered by a relevant indemnity.

27.5

Each Partner shall at all times take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any Loss for which
one party is entitled to bring a claim against the other pursuant to this Agreement.

27.6

Neither Partner shall be liable to the other Partner for claims by third parties arising from any acts or
omissions of the other Partner in connection with the Services before the Commencement Date.

27.7

Each Partner shall, at all times, take all reasonable steps to minimise and mitigate any Loss or damage
for which the relevant Partner is entitled to bring a claim against the other Partner under this
Agreement.

28

COMPLAINTS AND INVESTIGATIONS

28.1

During the Term of the Agreement, complaints can be made to either Partner to this Agreement and
will be dealt with through that Partner’s usual complaints process in line with the statutory complaints
procedure of that Partner but where the complaint relates to both Partners, or a sub-set thereof, they
will work together to provide a joint response.

28.2

Where a complaint cannot be handled in any way described above or relates to the operation of the
arrangements made pursuant to this Agreement or the content of this Agreement, then the
Responsible Officers, or their nominated deputies will set up a complaints subgroup to examine the
complaint and recommend remedies.

28.3

The Partners shall each fully comply with any investigation by the Ombudsman, including providing
access to Information and making staff available for interview.

37330160-7

Page 111
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

15

29

HEALTHWATCH

29.1

The Partners shall promote and facilitate the involvement of Service Users, carers and members of
the public in decision-making concerning the Partnership Arrangements.

29.2

The CCG shall ensure the effective discharge of it’s and the Authority’s obligations in the establishment
of Local HealthWatch.

29.3

The CCG shall ensure its contracts with Service Providers require co-operation with Local
HealthWatch as appropriate.

30

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

30.1

The Partners will use their best efforts to negotiate in good faith and settle any dispute that may arise
out of or relate to this Agreement.

30.2

In the event of a dispute over the application or interpretation of this Agreement, the dispute may be
referred by the Partners in writing as follows:
30.2.1

in the first instance to the Authorised Officers or their nominated deputy to resolve through
ordinary negotiations within ten (10) days;

30.2.2

in the second instance (if resolution by the Authorised Officers cannot be reached in line
with Clause 30.2.1) to, the Integrated Commissioning Group. The members of the
Integrated Commissioning Group shall use their best endeavours to resolve such disputes
through ordinary negotiations within sixty (60) days;

30.2.3

in the third instance (if resolution by the Integrated Commissioning Group cannot be
reached in line with Clause 30.2.2) to, the Chief Executives or relevant Director within each
organisation who shall co-operate in good faith to resolve the dispute as amicably as
possible within 30 days of service of the notice.

30.3

If the dispute is not resolved within thirty (30) days following a referral under Clause 30.2.3, the
Partners shall attempt in good faith to resolve the dispute through the model mediation procedure of
the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR).

30.4

If the Partners are unable to agree on the joint appointment of a mediator within five (5) days, they
shall make a joint application to CEDR to nominate the mediator.

30.5

The mediator, after consultation with the Partners where appropriate, will:

30.6

37330160-7

30.5.1

attend any meetings with either of the Partners preceding the mediation, if requested or if
the mediator decides this is appropriate and the Partners agree;

30.5.2

read before the mediation each case summary and all the documents sent to him;

30.5.3

chair, and determine the procedure for the mediation;

30.5.4

assist the Partners in drawing up any written settlement agreement; and

30.5.5

abide by the terms of CEDR's model mediation procedure and CEDR’s code of conduct for
mediators.

The mediator (and any member of the mediator’s firm or company) will not act for either of the Partners
individually in connection with the dispute in any capacity during the Term. The Partners accept that
in relation to the dispute neither the mediator nor CEDR is an agent of, or acting in any capacity for,
either of the Partners. Furthermore, the Partners and the mediator accept that the mediator (unless
an employee of CEDR) is acting as an independent contractor and not as an agent or employee of
CEDR.

Page 112
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

16

30.7

CEDR, in conjunction with the mediator, will make the necessary arrangements for the mediation
including, as necessary:
30.7.1

nominating, and obtaining the agreement of the Partners to, the mediator;

30.7.2

organising a suitable venue and dates;

30.7.3

organising exchange of the case summaries and documents;

30.7.4

meeting with either of the Partners (and the mediator if appointed), either together or
separately, to discuss any matters or concerns relating to the mediation; and

30.7.5

general administration in relation to the mediation.

30.8

If there is any issue about the conduct of the mediation upon which the Partners cannot agree within
a reasonable time, CEDR will, at the request of either Partner, decide the issue for the Partners, having
consulted with them.

30.9

The Partners agree to notify the mediator of any of the relevant timescales which they wish to observe.

30.10

Each Partner will state the names of:

30.11

30.10.1

the person(s) who will be the lead negotiator(s) for that Partner, who must have full authority
to settle the dispute; and

30.10.2

any other person(s) (such as professional advisers, colleagues or sub-contractors) who will
also be present at, and/or participating in, the mediation on that Partner’s behalf.

Each Partner will send to CEDR at least 2 (two) weeks before the mediation, or such other date as
may be agreed between the Partners and CEDR, sufficient copies of:
30.11.1

its case summary; and

30.11.2

all the documents to which the case summary refers and any others to which it may want
to refer in the mediation.

30.12

In addition, each Partner may send to the mediator (through CEDR) and/or bring to the mediation
further documentation which it wishes to disclose in confidence to the mediator but not to the other
Partner, clearly stating in writing that such documentation is confidential to the mediator and CEDR.

30.13

The mediator will be responsible for sending a copy of each Partner's case summary and supporting
documents to the other simultaneously.

30.14

The Partners should try to agree:
30.14.1

the maximum number of pages of each case summary; and

30.14.2

a joint set of supporting documents or the maximum length of each set of supporting
documents.

30.15

The mediation will take place at the time and place arranged by CEDR.

30.16

The mediator will chair, and determine the procedure at, the mediation.

30.17

No recording or transcript of the mediation will be made.

30.18

If the Partners are unable to reach a settlement in the negotiations at the mediation, and only if both
the Partners so request and the mediator agrees, the mediator will produce for the Partners a nonbinding recommendation on terms of settlement. This will not attempt to anticipate what a court might

37330160-7

Page 113
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

17

order but will set out what the mediator suggest are appropriate settlement terms in all of the
circumstances.
30.19

Any settlement reached in the mediation will not be legally binding until it has been reduced to writing
and signed by, or on behalf of, the Partners. The mediator will assist the Partners in recording the
outcome of the mediation.

30.20

The mediation will terminate when:

30.21

30.20.1

a Partner withdraws from the mediation;

30.20.2

a written settlement agreement is concluded;

30.20.3

the mediator decides that continuing the mediation is unlikely to result in a settlement; or

30.20.4

the mediator decides he should retire for any of the reasons in CEDR's code of conduct.

Every person involved in the mediation will keep confidential and not use for any collateral or ulterior
purpose:
30.21.1

information that the mediation is to take place or has taken place, other than to inform a
court dealing with any litigation relating to the dispute of that information; and

30.21.2

all information (whether given orally, in writing or otherwise) arising out of, or in connection
with, the mediation including the fact of any settlement and its terms.

30.22

All information (whether oral or documentary and on any media) arising out of, or in connection with,
the mediation will be without prejudice, privileged and not admissible as evidence or disclosed in any
current or subsequent litigation or other proceedings whatsoever. This does not apply to any
information, which would in any event have been admissible or disclosed in any such proceedings.

30.23

Clauses 30.21 and 30.22 shall not apply insofar as any such information is necessary to implement
and enforce any settlement agreement arising out of the mediation.

30.24

Neither of the Partners will call the mediator or CEDR (or any employee, consultant, officer or
representative of CEDR) as a witness, consultant, arbitrator or expert in any litigation or other
proceedings whatsoever. The mediator and CEDR will not voluntarily act in any such capacity without
the written agreement of both the Partners.

30.25

CEDR’s fees (which include the mediator’s fees) and the other expenses of the mediation will be borne
equally by the Partners. Payment of these fees and expenses will be made to CEDR in accordance
with its fee schedule and terms and conditions of business.

30.26

Each Partner will bear its own costs and expenses of its participation in the mediation.

30.27

Neither the mediator nor CEDR shall be liable to the Partners for any act or omission in connection
with the services provided by them in, or in relation to, the mediation, unless the act or omission is
shown to have been in bad faith.

31

TERMINATION

31.1

Without prejudice to other rights and remedies at Law, and unless terminated under Clause 31.2 or
31.3, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 12 months' written notice to
the other Partner.

31.2

Subject to Clause 31.3, either Partner may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving 6 months'
written notice to the other Partner, if for budgetary reasons:

37330160-7

Page 114
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

18

31.3

31.2.1

it is no longer able to make its Financial Contributions or otherwise contribute sufficient
resources to the Partnership Arrangements (or any part of them); or

31.2.2

it is of the reasonable opinion that in light of the proposed Financial Contribution the
Partnership Arrangements (or any part of them) are no longer viable.

Either Partner (for the purposes of this Clause 31.3, the First Partner) may terminate this Agreement
with immediate effect by the service of written notice on the other Partner (for the purposes of this
Clause 31.3, the Other Partner) in the following circumstances:
31.3.1

if the Other Partner is in breach of any material obligation under this Agreement, provided
that, if the breach is capable of remedy, the First Partner may only terminate this Agreement
under clause 31.3, if the Other Partner has failed to remedy the breach within 28 days of
receipt of notice from the First Partner (Remediation Notice) to do so;

31.3.2

there is a Change in Law that prevents either Partner from complying with its obligations
under this Agreement; or

31.3.3

following a failure to resolve a dispute under Clause 30.

31.4

The provisions of Clause 322 shall apply on termination of this Agreement.

32

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION

32.1

On the expiry of the Term, or if this Agreement is terminated in whole or in part for any reason:
32.1.1

the Partners will comply with the exit strategy set out in Schedule 8;

32.1.2

premises and assets shall be returned to the contributing Partner in accordance with the
terms of their leases, licences or agreed schedule of condition;

32.1.3

assets purchased from the Financial Contributions shall be returned to the Partner from
whose Financial Contribution the purchase was made;

32.1.4

responsibility for the Authority’s Functions exercised under the Agreement will be returned
to the Authority; and

32.1.5

The CCG shall transfer to the Authority all records in its possession relating to the Authority
Health Related Functions.

32.2

Overspends on termination of the Agreement shall be dealt with in accordance with Clause 9.4.

32.3

Subject to Clause 32.4, underspends on termination of the Agreement shall be dealt with in
accordance with Clause 9.6.

32.4

The CCG shall be entitled to direct any underspends to the following purposes:

32.5

37330160-7

32.4.1

to meet obligations under existing contracts;

32.4.2

to defray the costs of making any alternative arrangements for Service Users; and

32.4.3

to meet the costs of any redundancies arising from the termination of the Partnership
Arrangements.

The provisions of the following clauses shall survive termination or expiry of this Agreement:
32.5.1

Clause 20;

32.5.2

Clause 21;

Page 115
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

19

32.5.3

Clause 23;

32.5.4

Clause 24;

32.5.5

Clause 27;

32.5.6

Clause 28;

32.5.7

Clause 32; and

32.5.8

Clause 42.

32.6

The Partners shall continue to co-operate with each other or their statutory successors following the
termination of this agreement (for any reason) with a view to ensuring the continuity of delivery of the
Services, the continuation, renewal or re-procurement of the Service, any commissioning
arrangements relating to them and the continued provision of public health services to the population
of North Yorkshire, including but not limited to the provision of TUPE information where required for a
re-procurement.

33

PUBLICITY

33.1

The Partners shall co-operate when issuing any public statement, press release or social media
communication relating to the terms of this Agreement or any activity undertaken under it or discretion
exercised by reference to it to the intent that both Partners agree such statement or release which
should represent the agreed position of both Partners in relation to such matters.

34

NO PARTNERSHIP

34.1

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as constituting a legal partnership between the Partners
or as constituting either Partner as the agent of the other for any purpose whatsoever, except as
specified by the terms of this Agreement.

35

THIRD PARTY RIGHTS

35.1

No one other than a Partner to this agreement, their successors and permitted assignees, shall have
any right to enforce any of its terms.

36

NOTICES

36.1

Notices shall be in writing and shall be sent to the other Partner marked for the attention of the
Authorised Officers or another person duly notified by the Partners for the purposes of serving notices
on that Partner, at the address set out for the Partner in this Agreement.

36.2

All formal Notices relating to this Agreement shall be given by hand, pre-paid first class post (or in
accordance with the Postal Services Act 2000 if applicable) or email confirmed by pre-paid letter to
the addressee at the address given in this Agreement or such other address as the addressee shall
have for the time being notified to the other Partner giving notice and such notice shall be deemed to
have been delivered either upon delivery if by hand or if by letter at the expiration of forty eight (48)
hours after posting or if by email the next Working Day.

37

ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

37.1

Subject to Clauses 37.2 and 37.3, this Agreement and any right and conditions contained in it may not
be assigned or transferred by either Partner without the prior written consent of the other Partner,
except to any statutory successor to the relevant function.

37.2

The Partners recognise the upcoming changes to the structure of the NHS and agree that the CCG
shall be entitled to novate, assign in whole or in part any right or condition under this Agreement to

37330160-7

Page 116
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

20

NHS England or any other NHS Body or any other entity replacing the CCG or who has become
responsible for the exercise of any or all of the NHS Functions.
37.3

The Authority may assign, novate, or otherwise dispose of its rights and obligations under this
Agreement without the consent of the CCG, provided that assignment, novation or disposal is limited
to any legal entity with which the Authority merges or which is a successor body of the Authority by
reason of statutory reorganisation.

38

SEVERABILITY

38.1

If any term, condition or provision contained in this Agreement shall be held to be invalid, unlawful or
unenforceable to any extent, such term, condition or provision shall not affect the validity, legality or
enforceability of the remaining parts of this Agreement.

39

WAIVER

39.1

The failure of either Partner to enforce any of the provisions of this Agreement at any time or for any
period of time shall not be construed to be a waiver of any such provision and shall in no matter affect
the right of that Partner thereafter to enforce such provision.

39.2

No waiver in any one or more instances of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed
to be a further or continuing waiver of such provision in other instances.

40

ENTIRE AGREEMENT

40.1

This Agreement, the Schedules and the documents annexed to it or otherwise referred to in it contain
the whole agreement between the Partners relating to the subject matter of it and supersede all prior
agreements, arrangements and understandings between the parties relating to that subject matter.

41

FORCE MAJEURE

41.1

No Partner shall be entitled to bring a claim for a breach of obligations under this Agreement by the
other Partner or incur any liability to the other Partner for any losses or damages incurred by that
Partner to the extent that a Force Majeure Event occurs, and it is prevented from carrying out its
obligations by that Force Majeure Event.

41.2

On the occurrence of a Force Majeure Event, the affected Partner shall notify the other Partner as
soon as practicable. Such notification shall include details of the Force Majeure Event, including
evidence of its effect on the obligations of the affected Partner and any action proposed to mitigate its
effect.

41.3

As soon as practicable, following notification as detailed in Clause 41.2, the Partners shall consult with
each other in good faith and use all best endeavours to agree appropriate terms to mitigate the effects
of the Force Majeure Event and, subject to Clause 41.4, facilitate the continued performance of the
Agreement.

41.4

If the Force Majeure Event continues for a period of more than sixty (60) days, either Partner shall
have the right to terminate the Agreement by giving fourteen (14) days written notice of termination to
the other Partner. For the avoidance of doubt, no compensation shall be payable by either Partner as
a direct consequence of this Agreement being terminated in accordance with this Clause 41.

42

GOVERNING LAW AND JURISDICTION

42.1

Subject to Clause 30, this Agreement and any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with it or
its subject matter shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law of England and
Wales, and the Partners irrevocably agree that the courts of England shall have exclusive jurisdiction
to settle any dispute or claim that arises out of or in connection with this Agreement.

43

FAIR DEALINGS

37330160-7

Page 117
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

21

43.1

37330160-7

The Partners recognise that it is impracticable to make provision for every contingency which may
arise during the life of this Agreement and they declare it to be their intention that this Agreement shall
operate between them with fairness and without detriment to the interests of either of them and that if,
in the course of the performance of this Agreement, unfairness to either of them does or may result
then the other shall use its reasonable endeavours to agree upon such action as may be necessary
to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness.

Page 118
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

22

This document has been executed as a deed and is delivered and takes effect on the date stated at the
beginning of it.
EXECUTED as a DEED
by the affixing of the COMMON SEAL of
NORTH YORKSHIRE CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUP
in the presence of authorised signatory:

___________________________

AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

EXECUTED as a DEED
by the affixing of the COMMON SEAL of
NORTH YORKSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
in the presence of authorised signatory:

___________________________

AUTHORISED SIGNATORY

37330160-7

Page 119
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

23

SCHEDULE 1 - AIMS AND OUTCOMES OF THE STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD
North Yorkshire Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Partnership Proposed Strategic Priorities
‘Our vision:
To improve the health and well-being of people across North Yorkshire with mental health issues and/or a
learning disability through partnership working.
Principles and Objectives of the North Yorkshire Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Partnership:
The key principles for the partnership are:










Mental Health is as important as physical health
We will be ambitious for the people we serve and the staff we employ
We are equals in our partnership
We will do the work once – duplication of systems, processes and work should be avoided as
wasteful and potential source of conflict
We will undertake shared analysis of problems and issues as the basis of taking action
We will apply subsidiarity principles in all that we do – with services being delivered at the
appropriate level and as near to local as possible
We will be honest that some specialist mental health services need to be delivered at a
countywide, or even larger, footprint
We will build constructive relationships with communities, groups and organisations to tackle the
wide range of issues which have an impact on people’s mental health and wellbeing.
We will take a shared approach to managing risks

The Strategic Partnership Board will ensure that the individual is at the centre of care, with service provision
wrapped around the person no matter where they are located.
The key objectives are as follows:







37330160-7

Greater focus on prevention and early intervention
Provision of integrated care closer to home
Intervening and supporting people earlier and more effectively in their illness to reduce the
number of admissions for inpatient treatment
Better use of resources across the whole pathway
Supporting people to achieve their self-determined health and well-being goals.
Delivery of comprehensive mental health and learning disability services, initially prioritising
those in the NHS Long Term Plan and the TCP’

Page 120
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

24

SCHEDULE 2- SERVICES IN SCOPE

37330160-7

Page 121
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

25

SCHEDULE 3 – FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS
1

FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTIONS

1.1

The CCG Financial Contribution in respect of the Services for each Financial Year is £308,840.

1.2

The Authority’s Financial Contribution in respect of the Services for each Financial Year is £318,840.

1.3

Each Partners Financial Contribution is not subject to inflation or any other increase over the Term
unless agreed in writing by the Partners.

1.4

The Authority’s Financial Contribution for each Financial Year will be paid quarterly in advance in four
equal instalments.

1.5

The Partners shall agree the level of Financial Contribution for each Partner for the following Financial
Year by 31 December. Such annual contributions will be evidenced in writing by insertion into this
Schedule 3 as an agreed variation under Clause 16.

1.6

Each Partner shall pay its own costs and expenses incurred from time to time in the negotiation and
management of this Agreement, save as expressly otherwise provided in this Agreement.

2

VAT

2.1

As at the Commencement Date, the Services are exempt from VAT and VAT is therefore not payable
in additional to the Financial Contributions.

3

POOLED FUND

3.1

For the avoidance of doubt, it is not the intention of the Partners through this Agreement to establish
a Pooled Fund, although there is nothing in this Agreement that precludes the Partners from doing so
if subsequently agreed in accordance with Clause 16. If the Partners do agree to establish a Pooled
Fund, the Partners recognise that this Agreement will require amendments to ensure compliance with
the Regulations.

4

SUPPORT SERVICES/NON-FINANCIAL CONTIBUTIONS

4.1

There is no non-financial contributions or shared support services under this Agreement.

37330160-7

Page 122
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

26

SCHEDULE 4- GOVERNANCE

37330160-7

Page 123
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

27

SCHEDULE 5- PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Reporting Period

Format of Report

Timing and Method for
delivery of Report

Activity and Finance Report (note that, if appropriately
designed, this report may also serve as the reconciliation
account to be sent by the Provider under SC36.22)

Quarterly

Quarterly report

Service Quality Performance Report, detailing performance
against Operational Standards, National Quality
Requirements, Local Quality Requirements, Never Events and
the duty of candour
3. Complaints monitoring report, setting out numbers of
complaints received and including analysis of key themes in
content of complaints
4. Summary report of all incidents requiring reporting
Local Requirements Reported Locally

Quarterly

Quarterly report

15th July 22
14th Oct 22
13th Jan 22
14th Apr 22
As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

5 Number of referrals into service
6. Number of children referred onto specialist CAMHS
7. % of children seen for treatment within 6 weeks of referral
(MHSDS). Data flow from the service to MHSDS in line with
reporting requirements
8. Number of professional consultations taken place
9. % of training delegates reporting increase in
knowledge/confidence as a result of the training session
10. % of children reporting excellent or good of their experience of
the service (Service user questionnaire)
11. Number of texts sent to the text messaging service, including
primary reason for contact

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly report
Quarterly report
Quarterly report

As above
As above
As above

Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly report
Quarterly report

As above
As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

National Requirements Reported Locally
1.

2.

Page 124

28
37330160-7

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

SCHEDULE 6 –CCG REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. Reporting Requirements
Reporting Period

Format of Report

Timing and Method for
delivery of Report

Activity and Finance Report (note that, if appropriately
designed, this report may also serve as the reconciliation
account to be sent by the Provider under SC36.22)

Quarterly

Quarterly report

Service Quality Performance Report, detailing performance
against Operational Standards, National Quality
Requirements, Local Quality Requirements, Never Events and
the duty of candour
7. Complaints monitoring report, setting out numbers of
complaints received and including analysis of key themes in
content of complaints
8. Summary report of all incidents requiring reporting
Local Requirements Reported Locally

Quarterly

Quarterly report

15th July 22
14th Oct 22
13th Jan 23
14th Apr 23
As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

6 Number of referrals into service
12. Number of children referred onto specialist CAMHS
13. % of children seen for treatment within 6 weeks of referral
(MHSDS). Data flow from the service to MHSDS in line with
reporting requirements
14. Number of professional consultations taken place
15. % of training delegates reporting increase in
knowledge/confidence as a result of the training session
16. % of children reporting excellent or good of their experience of
the service (Service user questionnaire)
17. Number of texts sent to the text messaging service, including
primary reason for contact

Quarterly
Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly report
Quarterly report
Quarterly report

As above
As above
As above

Quarterly
Quarterly

Quarterly report
Quarterly report

As above
As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

Quarterly

Quarterly report

As above

National Requirements Reported Locally
5.

6.

Page 125

29
37330160-7

OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

SCHEDULE 7– DATA SHARING AGREEMENT

37330160-7

Page 126
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

30

SCHEDULE 8 - EXIT STRATEGY
1

EXIT STRATEGY

1.1

No less than 6 months prior to the end of the Term, both Partners shall establish a process for the
effective transition of the Service to any successor arrangements.

1.2

The process referred to at paragraph 1.1 of this Schedule 8 shall consider:

37330160-7

1.2.1

how to most effectively, and with minimal disruption to people accessing the Service,
facilitate the transfer of Service provision to a successor service / provider;

1.2.2

what data, personal information or Service level intelligence will be required by a successor
provider to operate effectively from the start date of any future contract / arrangement;

1.2.3

how Service Users will be communicated with on the nature of any change and the impact
on the service they currently receive; and

1.2.4

if necessary, how separately commissioned services from the Authority and CCG will work
together in the best interests of Service Users, and how determinations will be made for
the division of workload from a single to multiple services.

Page 127
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

31

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B
[insert on Local Authority and CCG headed paper]
Integrated Commissioning Group
Terms of Reference
1

INTRODUCTION

1.1

North Yorkshire County Council (the ‘Council’) and NHS North Yorkshire Clinical Commissioning
Group (the ‘CCG’) (together the ‘Partners’) have agreed to the establishment of an Integrated
Commissioning Group (the ‘Board’). The intention of the Board is to facilitate joint decision making
in respect of the commissioning of health and social care services that form part of the arrangements
under the Section 75 Agreement dated [X].

1.2

The Board is not a committee-in common or a committee of the CCG or the Council.

1.3

The Board does not replace the statutory responsibility of the Council and the CCG, which continue to
exist as independent statutory agencies. However, both organisations wish to ensure that the Board
is recognised as the place where decisions are made jointly and in partnership in respect of the
services within scope of the Section 75 Agreement about the services.

2

BOARD RESPONSIBILTIES

2.1

The Board will be responsible for:
2.1.1

Overseeing and taking decisions as required in respect of the commissioning of services
within scope of the Section 75 Agreement.

3

AIMS AND OUTCOMES

3.1

The Board, in making decisions, will work to the following aims and intended outcomes of the
partnership arrangements:

4

3.1.1

Improve the quality and efficiency of the services;

3.1.2

Meet the national conditions and local objectives;

3.1.3

Create the foundations that empower greater levels of innovation and best practice across
North Yorkshire;

3.1.4

Ensure the collective resources of the Partners are spent on a shared understanding of
collective need;

3.1.5

Expand and embed the good practice delivered through the COVID-19 pandemic through
formalising and strengthening partnership working;

3.1.6

Improve prevention of health and care needs arsing, early intervention and steps to avoid
people’s needs from escalating;

3.1.7

Remove duplication from the system to improve people’s experience;

3.1.8

Commission services that build on both individual’s strengths and our strengths across the
system;

3.1.9

Enable cross organisational working that finds solutions to move forward together; and

3.1.10

Deliver greater productivity and increased efficiency.

MEMBERSHIP

Page 129
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
4.1

The voting membership of the Board is made up as follows:
4.1.1

Commissioning Manager for Health and Inclusion for the Council;

4.1.2

Consultant in Public Health for the Council;

The following may attend meetings by invitation only and as non-voting members:
4.1.3

Representatives of the provider of the services and any sub-contractor they may appoint
under the commissioning contract;

4.1.4

Representatives from Vale of York CCG; and

4.1.5

Representatives from Bradford and Craven CCG.

4.2

Other members of the CCG or partner organisations may also be invited to attend meetings as required
and as agreed by both Partners. Any invited attendee who is not a member or appointed deputy does
not have a say in decision making i.e. their agreement is not required for the Board to make a decision.

4.3

The Chair of the Board will rotate every 6 months between The Council and the CGG.

4.4

Where a member of the Board is unable to attend a meeting, a deputy will be nominated to attend on
their behalf by the relevant organisation. Where a deputy is appointed, the relevant Partner will ensure
that the deputy has appropriate authority to take decisions as required and that the appointment is
recorded in writing and sent to the Chair ahead of the scheduled meeting.

5

MEETINGS

5.1

Meetings will be held on a monthly basis and will be convened to take place directly after the meeting
of the North Yorkshire Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Strategic Partnership, following a
declaration that the North Yorkshire Mental Health and Learning Disabilities Strategic Partnership
meeting is concluded.

5.2

Meetings may be held and decisions may be taken by electronic means when required.

5.3

The process at paragraph 9.5 below should be adopted for urgent decisions or decisions required
outside of formal meetings.

6

AGENDA SETTING

6.1

The agenda will be agreed by the Chair of the Board. The agenda will include details of any decisions
to be made by the Board.

6.2

The agenda together with any supporting papers will be circulated one week in advance of the meeting
to the members.

7

CHAIR OF MEETING

7.1

At any meeting of the Board, the Chair, if present, shall preside and the Vice Chair will preside in the
Chair’s absence.

8

QUORUM & CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

8.1

In order for any meeting of the Board to be quorate, there must be at least 2 Council members and 2
CCG members from each organisation in attendance.

8.2

Members are required to declare any relevant interests at Board meetings where they are in
attendance and the Chair shall be responsible for managing conflicts of interest that arise in a meeting.

Page 130
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
8.3

Where a member(s) is required to withdraw from a meeting due to a conflict of interest or for any other
reason that does not affect the quorum then the meeting can proceed as normal.

8.4

If the quorum falls below the required amount as a result of a conflict of interest, any decision will be
discussed but all decisions will be delayed until the next meeting.

8.5

Where a conflict of interest is identified, the conflict and the action will be recorded in the minutes of
the meeting and, where appropriate, the register of interests updated accordingly. Copies of relevant
declarations shall be shared with the CCG and/or the Council.

9

DECISION MAKING

9.1

Any resolution must be agreed between the members by consensus and each organisation shares
one vote to be exercised by the officer with the relevant delegated authority. Each organisation must
ensure that a member with the relevant delegated authority to make the decision in question (in line
with its own constitution and scheme of delegation) is present. In circumstances where this is not
possible, the decision will be deferred. The Council will ensure the appropriate approval process is
followed in respect of any decisions that constitute Key Decisions.

9.2

In order for a resolution to be passed, both votes must be in favour.

9.3

Decisions must only be taken after appropriate debate has taken place within the Board forum and
when members are satisfied that sufficient feedback has been sought from the public and/or service
users, which may involve either engagement or consultation on the issues, or a presentation on the
views of services users at the meeting as the Chair considers appropriate.

9.4

In the event that a decision is supported by the representatives of only one organisation the issue shall
be adjourned, and the Accountable Officer of the CCG and the Chief Executive of the Council shall
meet to discuss how the disagreement may be resolved, and shall bring the matter back to the next
meeting of the Board.

9.5

In urgent and exceptional cases only, and where an urgent decision is required prior to the next Board
meeting, the Chair will arrange for the notice of the resolution to be determined together with any
supporting paper to be sent to members by email. The email will ask for a response to be sent to the
Chair by a specified date. Any decisions made in this way will only be valid if the number of responses
is greater than or equal to the number required for quorum as required at paragraph 9.1 (above) is
met. Responses may be received via email or signed written communication and should be received
within the specified timescale and members should clearly state whether they are authorised to vote
and if so what their vote is.

9.6

If a decision(s) is made using the process outlined at paragraph 9.5 above, the Chair, or other
individual, as appropriate will retain all correspondence pertaining to the decision for audit purposes
and report any decisions made at the next meeting. A clear summary of the issue and decision agreed
will be recorded in the minutes of this meeting.

10

REPORTING

10.1

The minutes of the Board will be formally recorded.

10.2

The Board will be supported by the [x] whose duties will include:
10.2.1

agreement of the agenda for meetings;

10.2.2

collation of papers;

10.2.3

taking minutes and keeping a record of matters arising and issues to be carried forward;

10.2.4

take steps to ensure quorum;

Page 131
OFFICIAL

Appendix B
10.2.5

sending minutes and reports for the Governing body.

11

AUTHORITY OF THE BOARD

11.1

The Board is authorised to investigate any activity within these Terms of Reference and in line with
the Board’s primary purpose of appropriately managing delegated areas which meet the needs for and
on behalf of the local population within the available delegated resources.

12

CONDUCT OF THE BOARD

12.1

The Board will conduct its business in line with the Nolan Principles (the Seven Principles of Public
Life) –
12.1.1

Selflessness;

12.1.2

Integrity;

12.1.3

Objectivity;

12.1.4

Accountability;

12.1.5

Openness;

12.1.6

Honesty; and

12.1.7

Leadership.

13

DISPUTE RESOLUTION

13.1

Should a dispute arise within the Board that cannot be resolved informally within the Board itself, the
following processes will be adopted:
13.1.1

for disputes that are within the scope of the Section 75 Agreement, the Board will refer to
the Section 75 dispute resolution procedures.

14

REVIEW OF THESE TERMS OF REFERENCE

14.1

The CCG and Council will jointly undertake a six month review of these Terms of Reference,
membership and performance. Thereafter, an annual review will take place at the end of each financial
year.

Page 132
OFFICIAL

Appendix C
CONSULTATION on entering into a Section 75 Partnership Agreement between North
Yorkshire County Council and North Yorkshire Clinical Commissioning Group for a
Targeted and School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service in North Yorkshire

OVERVIEW
Topic of Consultation

North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) wishes to put in place a
formal partnership agreement with North Yorkshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (NYCCG) to jointly commission a Targeted
and School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service in North Yorkshire.
Section 75 of the National Health Service Act 2006 enables
Councils and NHS bodies to work in partnership. The proposed
partnership will be for a period of 3+2 years.
This is referred to as a ‘Section 75 Partnership Agreement’.
The NHS and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements
Regulations 2000 stipulate that “the partners may not enter into any
partnership agreements [under Section 75 (s75) of the NHS Act
2006] unless they have consulted jointly such persons as appear to
them to be affected by such arrangements”.

Scope

Who is being consulted /
Stakeholders who may be
affected

This consultation sets out a proposal to put in place a formal
partnership agreement (S75 Agreement) between North Yorkshire
County Council and North Yorkshire CCG to jointly commission a
Targeted and School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service in North
Yorkshire
North Yorkshire County Council and North Yorkshire CCG are
consulting with all interested stakeholders
This is a 60 day consultation beginning on 10th September 21 and
ending on 8th November 2021.
If you have any questions about this consultation please read the
frequently asked questions below or please email
EmotionalHealth.AndWellbeing@northyorks.gov.uk

Who is consulting
Duration
Enquiries

How to respond
Compliance with government
& local practice on
consultation

North Yorkshire County Council and North Yorkshire CCG
This is a 60 day consultation beginning on
10th September 2021 and ending 8th November 2021
For any questions about this consultation please access the
Frequently Ask Questions here (insert link). For further queries
please email EmotionalHealth.AndWellbeing@northyorks.gov.uk
If you would like to make any comments or share your views
regarding these arrangements please complete the survey here
(insert link).
The consultation has been set at 60 days which is considered
sufficient time to enable stakeholders to respond. The proposal is
to put in place formal partnership working for the service in North
Yorkshire through a Section 75 Agreement. The Section 75
Agreement would be in place, subject to the outcome of the
consultation from 1 April 2022.

Page 133
OFFICIAL

Appendix C

1. Summary
North Yorkshire County Council (NYCC) wishes to enter into a formal partnership agreement with
North Yorkshire CCG (NYCCG) to jointly commission a Targeted and School Based Emotional
Wellbeing Service in North Yorkshire on the Council’s behalf. In keeping with good practice and
NHS Act requirements, the Council and the CCG , as potential partners, are required to consult
with stakeholders who may be affected by such an agreement being in place.
We have a shared vision to provide an integrated approach to the provision of prevention and early
intervention measures to address children’s emotional wellbeing and prevent issues escalating.
Both organisations believe that by coordinating this offer and integrating commissioning activity
it will help facilitate the best use of resources and ensure that as many young people benefit from
this support as possible.
To do this, the Council and the CCG, as potential partners, would like to consult with any
stakeholders who may be affected by the partnership being put in place.
The CCG and the County Council are keen to hear what you think of the proposal to use a Section
75 agreement to deliver this service.
2. Background
NYCC and NYCCG are committed to improving children’s’ emotional wellbeing.
The Care Quality Commission (CQC) carried out a mental health thematic review in North
Yorkshire during September 2017 which indicated a requirement for clearer entry points to
emotional mental health support. Feedback gathered from professionals, family and children as
part of the engagement supported this view. By NYCC working with CCGs in North Yorkshire to
jointly commission this work we will be taking steps to ensure that:




future services are more closely aligned;
seamless pathways between services are promoted, breaking down barriers between
services including universal, targeted and specialist services;
the services are aligned with the proposals in the Transforming Children and Young
People Mental Health Provision Green Paper which provides a significant step towards a
new joined up approach to mental health support.

3. Benefits of a partnership approach
The advantages that such an arrangement aims to bring are:
 better planning and commissioning to the meet the needs of the local population;
 a shared vision of the benefits that the partnership is intended to achieve;
 jointly agreed objectives of what the partnership wants to achieve;
 to seek best use of resources for the local population;
 streamlining service;
 reducing bureaucracy;
 mutual learning to inform service improvement.

Please tell us your views

Page 134
OFFICIAL

Appendix C

Before a partnership agreement can be put in place, the Council and the CCG are required to
consult with any stakeholders who may be affected by the arrangement. It is important that we
gather and listen to feedback about the proposal and ensure all considerations have been taken
into account. In undertaking this consultation, we are required to follow good practice guidance.
If the proposal being consulted on is supported, North Yorkshire County Council and North
Yorkshire CCG will use the legislation to put in place a formal partnership agreement to jointly
commission a Targeted and School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service in North Yorkshire. The
partnership agreement acts as a mechanism to do this.
NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG are keen to hear your comments and feedback on the proposal
to enter into a partnership agreement. Any member of the public and interested organisations can
comment on the proposal.
We have tried to ensure giving feedback is as easy as possible by a range of different methods
as follows:
Please let us know what you think by completing the survey <insert link>
Please note we will not be able to offer an individual response to your feedback.
You can request a hard copy of the survey by emailing healthychild@northyorks.gov.uk or by
writing to:
Central Admin Team
North Yorkshire County Council
County Hall
Northallerton
North Yorkshire
DL7 8AE
If you would like the information on this page and the survey in a different format, please email
healthychild@northyorks.gov.uk or write to the address above.
If you want this information in another language you can translate it by XXXXXXXXXXXXXX
Deadline for your Feedback
The consultation is open from 10th September 2021 and ending on 8th November 2021. The
deadline for feedback is Midnight on 8th November 2021. We will not be able to consider
feedback after this date.
After the consultation closes
At the end of the consultation period both organisations will review the feedback and produce a
summary report showing the themes and issues raised, which will be reviewed by the County
Council Executive for a decision. Responses from individuals will be anonymised.

A summary of the consultation responses and next steps will be available to view on this page
and on the NYCCG website.
Please contact us using one of the methods outlined above to request details as hard copies.

Page 135
OFFICIAL

Appendix C

Consultation Questions:
Please answer the following questions, by completing the online survey at
www.northyorks.gov.uk/XXXXXXXXXXX

1. In what role are you completing this survey? (Please tick all that apply)
 I am responding on behalf of an organisation/in my professional role
 I am a member of the public who lives in North Yorkshire
2. Do you agree that North Yorkshire County Council should jointly commission this
service through a partnership agreement with North Yorkshire CCG?
Yes/No/Don’t Know (Please select one)
2.1 Please explain the reasons for your answer
3. Please feel free to provide any relevant supporting information to accompany your
previous answer relating to the Section 75.

References
Section 75 of Health Act 2006 can be accessed at:
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/41/section/75
Real Involvement, section 242(1B) of the NHS Act 2006, the duty to involve and good
involvement practice, Department of Health Guidance which can be accessed at:
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20130107105354/http:/www.dh.gov.uk/prod_cons
um_dh/groups/dh_digitalassets/@dh/@en/documents/digitalasset/dh_089785.pdf
HM Government Code of Practice on Consultation can be accessed at:
http://www.dh.gov.uk/health/category/publications/consultations/

Frequently asked questions
Q1 What is this consultation about?

Page 136
OFFICIAL

Appendix C
This consultation is about NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG entering into a Section 75 Partnership
Agreement to deliver a Targeted and School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service in North
Yorkshire.
Q2. Why do we need to put formal agreements in place?
Local Authorities and CCGs operate under different legislation, so there is specific statutory
provision that is designed to enable joint working between the two parties. Section 75 of the
National Health Service Act 2006 states that Local Authorities and NHS bodies (including CCGs)
can enter into partnership arrangements to provide a more streamlined service and to pool
resources, if such arrangements are likely to lead to an improvement in the way their functions
are exercised. The NHS and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000
stipulate that partners entering into any partnership agreements [under Section 75 (s75) of the
NHS Act 2006] must consult with the public before putting this arrangement in place.
NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG are committed to the provision of high quality prevention and
early intervention services addressing childrens’ emotional wellbeing. The arrangement aims to
provide joined up provision that is easy to access and is well-co-ordinated to meet local need.
The Partnership Agreement (referred to as “Section 75 Partnership Agreement”) provides us with
a mechanism to formalise arrangements to support improved flexibility and greater efficiency,
better integration and, in turn, improve outcomes for children, young people and families.
Q3. What difference will the partnership agreement make to people who use services?
The agreement will better enable both partners to continue to work together to improve the
planning and delivery of childrens’ emotional wellbeing services.
Q4. How will you consult with stakeholders and when?
The consultation will start on 10th September 2021 and conclude on 8th November 2021. Every
effort will be made to ensure stakeholders have the opportunity to find out about the proposal and
give feedback. We are making contact with known networks and those who represent
stakeholders to provide relevant information and offer a full briefing if required. The consultation
is for 60 days and we hope this will give stakeholders the opportunity to comment.
Q5. How will this partnership agreement improve services for people who use them?
It is proposed the length of partnership agreement will be 5 years allowing us to take a more
flexible, local and tailored approach to delivering services and be more responsive to the needs
of service users. It will allow flexible change and continuous review and help transform the
service using the resources available.
Q6. Will this consultation or proposed agreement affect service delivery models?
NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG are already working together to improve how services for
children, young people and families are provided and we will continue to engage with
stakeholders to inform this work. The proposal is to use the agreement to deliver a Targeted and
School Based Emotional Wellbeing Service.
Q7. How will any formal agreement be monitored?
NYCC and North Yorkshire CCG already have in place regular meetings as part of the Mental Health and
Learning Disability Partnership. This provides the opportunity to review how the services are performing
and identify opportunities to work more effectively across the system. One of the benefits of developing this
partnership agreement is the flexibility this presents in terms of acting on further opportunities for improved

Page 137
OFFICIAL

Appendix C
delivery, efficiency and outcomes for children, young people and families. Both organisations propose to
implement regular review points for the partnership.

Q8. What are the next steps?
Consultation responses and feedback will be collated and reviewed by NYCC and North
Yorkshire CCG at the end of the consultation period. A summary report showing the themes and
issues raised will be published on this page, and at
https://www.northyorkshireccg.nhs.uk/XXXXXXX

Page 138
OFFICIAL

Appendix D

Initial equality impact assessment screening form
This form records an equality screening process to determine the relevance of equality to a
proposal, and a decision whether or not a full EIA would be appropriate or proportionate.
Directorate
Service area
Proposal being screened

Children and Young Peoples Services
Emotional Health and Wellbeing
Commissioning of Emotional Health and Wellbeing (EHWB)
Services for ages 9-19 via a Section 75 Agreement with
North Yorkshire CCG

Officer(s) carrying out screening
What are you proposing to do?

Mike Rudd – Head of Housing, Technology & Sustainability
The Council will enter into a Section 75 Agreement with the
North Yorkshire CCG for the commissioning of services to
support children and young people aged 9-19 who are
experiencing problems with their emotional health and
wellbeing.
This arrangement will allow the Council and CCG to work
together more effectively in the delivery of EHWB services
to children and young people across North Yorkshire,
ensuring that services are delivered in a joined up and
coordinated way.

Why are you proposing this? What
are the desired outcomes?

The service will:
 Increase access to emotional and mental health
support in line with the NHS Long Term Plan (baseline
is NHS access standards via MHSDS).
 A seamless pathway of support across the domains
of iThrive, primarily in relation to ‘getting advice’ and
‘getting help’.
 Improvement in numbers of children and young people
reporting good emotional and mental well-being
(baseline is GUNY data).
 Children and young people have a good experience
of engagement with emotional and mental health
support services, against four criteria:
o Safe
o Involved
o Respected
o Have a purpose
(baseline is to be established at start of contract)
 Monitor numbers of school and staff in other
community settings reporting increased confidence
and knowledge of approaches to support the emotional
and mental health needs of children and young people.
Does the proposal involve a
The contract value of this service will be £318,000 per year.
significant commitment or removal
of resources? Please give details.
Impact on people with any of the following protected characteristics as defined by the
Equality Act 2010, or NYCC’s additional agreed characteristics
As part of this assessment, please consider the following questions:
 To what extent is this service used by particular groups of people with protected characteristics?
 Does the proposal relate to functions that previous consultation has identified as important?
 Do different groups have different needs or experiences in the area the proposal relates to?

Page 139
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

Appendix D

If for any characteristic it is considered that there is likely to be an adverse impact or you have
ticked ‘Don’t know/no info available’, then a full EIA should be carried out where this is
proportionate. You are advised to speak to your Equality rep for advice if you are in any doubt.
Protected characteristic

Potential for adverse impact
Yes

No

Don’t
know/No
info
available

Age
X
Disability
X
Sex
X
Race
X
Sexual orientation
X
Gender reassignment
X
Religion or belief
X
Pregnancy or maternity
X
Marriage or civil partnership
X
NYCC additional characteristics
People in rural areas
X
People on a low income
X
Carer (unpaid family or friend)
X
Does the proposal relate to an area where there are known
inequalities/probable impacts (e.g. disabled people’s access to public transport)?
n/a
Please give details.
Will the proposal have a significant effect on how other organisations
operate? (e.g. partners, funding criteria, etc.). Do any of these organisations
support people with protected characteristics? Please explain why you have
n/a
reached this conclusion.
Decision (Please tick one option)
EIA not
X
Continue to full
relevant or
EIA:
proportionate:
Reason for decision
The proposal is unlikely to have a negative impact
on any protected characteristic.
Signed (Assistant Director or equivalent)
Victoria Ononeze Public Health Consultant
Date

18/08/2021

Page 140
OFFICIAL - SENSITIVE

FORWARD PLAN
The decisions likely to be taken by North Yorkshire County Council in the following 12 months are set out below:

Publication Date:

23 August 2021

Period covered by Plan:

31 August 2022

Last updated:

23 August 2021

PLEASE NOTE:-

Page 141

During the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, following the expiry of the legislation permitting remote committee meetings, remote live-broadcast committee meetings will
continue, but with any formal decisions required being taken by the Chief Executive Officer under his emergency decision-making powers in the Officers’ Delegation Scheme,
following consultation with Officers and Members as appropriate and after taking into account any views of the relevant Committee Members.
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Meetings and Access to information)(England) Regulations 2012, at least 28 clear days’ notice,
excluding the day of notification and the day of decision taking, must be published on the Forward Plan of any intended key decision. It is also a requirement that 28 clear
days’ notice is published of the intention to hold a Executive meeting or any part of it in private for the consideration of confidential or exempt information. For further
information and advice please contact the Democratic Services and Scrutiny Manager on 01609 533531.

Agenda Item 7

OFFICIAL
Page 1

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

Description of
Matter – including
if the report
contains any
exempt
information and
the reasons why

Key
Decision

Executive

Q1 Budget
Report

No

31 Aug
2021

Executive

Healthy Child
Programme Emotional
Health and
Wellbeing

Yes

31 Aug
2021

Executive

Development of
Adult Social
Care Provider
Services

Yes

31 Aug
2021

Decision Taker
(membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Decision
Required

YES/NO

Page 142

Financial
report incl:
Revenue Plan;
Capital Plan;
Treasury
Management &
Prudential
Indicators.
To request
approval of the
Emotional
Health and
Wellbeing draft
section 75 and
a decision to
consult on the
content and
use of the draft
Section 75 with
North
Yorkshire CCG
To inform
Executive of
the proposed
development
of adult social
care provider
services.

Consultees
(i.e. the
principal
groups to be
consulted)

Consultation
Process
(i.e. the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034 9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Gary Fielding,
Corporate Director
for Strategic
Resources
gary.fielding@northy
orks.gov.uk

North
Yorkshire
Clinical
Commission
ing Group

Published via
the Council’s
website

Victoria Ononeze,
Public Health
Consultant, Michael
Rudd, Head of
Housing Marketing
Development
(Commissioning),
Health and Adult
Services
01609 535347,

Local
Meetings and
Michael Rudd, Head
Stakeholders communications of Housing Marketing
Development
(Commissioning),
Health and Adult
Services
01609 535347

OFFICIAL
Page 2

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

21 Sep
2021

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

Redeployment of
land to the north
and south of
Crosshills Lane,
Selby

Yes

21 Sep
2021

Executive

Lowering the age
range of
Barrowcliff
Community
Primary School to
2-11

Yes

21 Sep
2021

Executive

York and North
Yorkshire Road
Safety
Partnership
Strategy 2021-26

Yes

Page 143

Executive

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

To approve the
proposed
redeployment
of the property

Executive
members and
Management
Board at the
informal
Executive
meeting held
on 08/06/2021
To seek
School
approval to
community,
publish
wider
statutory
community,
notices to lower other schools,
the school age Early Years
range of
providers.
Barrowcliff
Community
Primary School
from January
2022
Seek approval
to adopt the
strategy

OFFICIAL

Executive
Members and
Management
Board at the
informal
Executive
meeting held
on 22/06/2021

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Philip Cowan,
Non-Operational
Property
Manager, NYCC
Property
Services
Philip.Cowan@n
orthyorks.gov.uk
In May 2021 the Matt George,
Governing Body Strategic
of Barrowcliff
Planning Officer,
CP School
CYPS
consulted the
matt.george@nor
local community thyorks.gov.uk
on its proposal.
If approved
statutory
notices would
be published
between 07/09
& 05/11/21
N/a
Fiona Ancell
fiona.ancell@nort
hyorks.gov.uk

Page 3

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

21 Sep
2021

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Response to
Rural
Commission
report

No

To agree
response to
Rural
Commission
report.

Management
Board.

21 Sep
2021

Executive

Strategic review
of the Outdoor
Learning Service

Yes

Not applicable

21 Sep
2021

Executive

Dementia care
facility in
Harrogate

Yes

Other service
providers
Service users
CQC
Harrogate BC &
Local
community

Formal
consultation
process,
Informal Open
days, and
Community
meetings

12 Oct
2021

Executive

Adoption of
Minerals and
Waste Joint

Yes

Report on the
strategic review
of the Outdoor
Learning
Service,
bringing
recommendatio
ns for the
service going
forward as
agreed on 16
February 2021
To seek
approval to
construct and
operate an
NYCC owned
dementia care
facility in
Harrogate
To approve the
adoption of the
Minerals and

Meetings and
Neil Irving, AD correspondence Policy,
.
Partnerships and
Communities
neil.irving@north
yorks.gov.uk
Not applicable Amanda
Newbold, AD
Education &
Skills
amanda.newbold
@northyorks.gov
.uk

Page 144

Executive

OFFICIAL

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Dale Owens,
Assistant
Director
Prevention &
Service
Development,
Commissioning
(HAS)
Rachel Pillar
rachel.pillar@nor
thyorks.gov.uk
Page 4

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision
YES/NO

Plan
12 Oct
2021

Executive

Decision
Required

Page 145

Consideration of
revisions to the
Council’s
Property
Procedure
Rules in the
Constitution

Yes

12 Oct
2021

Executive

National Bus
Strategy

Yes

12 Oct
2021

Executive

No

12 Oct
2021

Executive

Annual
complaints
report including
LGSCO
complaints
Formal meetings
of the Authority's
Committees

Yes

Waste Joint
Plan
Subject to any
comments
Members may
have, to
recommend
the proposed
amendments
to the Property
Procedure
Rules to full
Council for
approval.
To consider
draft Bus
Service
Improvement
Plan and
recommend
publication
Information
only.

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Relevant
NYCC Officers
and Members

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Corresponden
ce and
meetings.

Jon Holden,
Head of Property
Services
jon.holden@nort
hyorks.gov.uk;
01609 534076

Stakeholder
engagement
including local
bus service
operators

Email and
meetings with
local bus
service
operators

Cathy Knight
cathy.knight@nor
thyorks.gov.uk

None.

None.

Dani Reeves dani.reeves@nor
thyorks.gov.uk
(01609 532272)

Consultation
with all county
councillors.

Daniel Harry,
Democratic
Services and

Audit
Committee

To recommend All County
to County
Councillors.
Council
to
OFFICIAL

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Page 5

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

Page 146

23 Nov
2021

Executive

To inform
Executive of the
Sexual Health
Service service
model
consultation
feedback and a
decision to
consult on the
draft section 75
with York and
Scarborough
Teaching
Hospital NHS
Foundation
Trust.

Yes

7 Dec
2021

Executive

Q2 Performance
Monitoring &
Budget Report

No

review
arrangements
for holding
formal
meetings of
the Authority’s
committees.
To request
agreement to
move forward
with the
accepted
service model.
Approval of the
draft section 75
& decision to
consult on the
section 75 with
York and
Scarborough
Teaching
Hospital NHS
Foundation
Trust
Financial and
Performance
Monitoring
report
including:
OFFICIAL

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Scrutiny
Manager
daniel.harry@nor
thyorks.gov.uk

York and
Scarborough
Teaching
Hospital NHS
Foundation
Trust

Manangement
Board

Published via
the Council’s
website

Emma Davis,
Health
Improvement
Manager, Health
and Adult
Services, Katie
Needham, Public
Health
Consultant,
Health and Adult
Services
01609
797063/01609
797154,

Gary Fielding,
Corporate
Director for
Strategic
Resources

Previous
Quarterly
Reports

Page 6

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

11 Jan
2022

Page 147

Executive

Healthy Child
Yes
Programme Emotional Health
and Wellbeing

25 Jan
2022

Executive

Draft Revenue
Budget 2022/23
& Medium Term
Financial
Strategy (MTFS)

No

Revenue Plan;
Capital Plan;
Treasury
Management
& Prudential
Indicators
To provide
feedback on the
Emotional
Health and
wellbeing
Section 75
consultation
and to request
formal approval
to move to a
Partnership
agreement
To consider
and
recommend to
County
Council the
Revenue
Budget
2022/23 and
the Medium
Term Financial
Strategy

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Gary.Fielding@n
orthyorks.gov.uk

North Yorkshire Published via
Clinical
the Council’s
Commissioning website
Group

Victoria Ononeze,
Public Health
Consultant,
Michael Rudd,
Head of Housing
Marketing
Development
(Commissioning),
Health and Adult
Services
01609 535347,

All members

Gary Fielding,
Corporate
Director for
Strategic
Resources
Gary.Fielding@n
orthyorks.gov.uk

Budget
consultation
process

OFFICIAL

Page 7

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

Page 148

25 Jan
2022

Executive

Council Plan
2022-2026

Yes

22 Feb
2022

Executive

Q3 Performance
Monitoring and
Budget Report

No

22 Mar

Executive

To inform

Yes

(MTFS)
including the:
• Revenue
Plan
• Capital Plan
• Treasury
Management
• Prudential
Indicators
To consider
Council Plan
2022-2026

Financial and
Performance
Monitoring
report
including:
Revenue Plan;
Capital Plan;
Treasury
Management
and Prudential
Indicators.
Approve the
OFFICIAL

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Corporate and
Partnerships
Overview and
Scrutiny
Committee.
Management
Board.

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

Meetings.

Management
Board.

York and

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Neil Irving,
Assistant
Director - Policy,
Partnerships and
Communities
neil.irving@north
yorks.gov.uk
Gary Fielding,
Corporate
Director for
Strategic
Resources
gary.fielding@no
rthyorks.gov.uk

Published via

Emma Davis,
Page 8

FUTURE DECISIONS
Likely
Date of
Decision

2022

Decision Taker
(a full list of the
membership of
the Council and
all its
Committees is
set out in Part 3
of the
Constitution)

In
Consultation
with
(Executive
Member or
Corporate
Director)

Description of
Matter – including
an indication if the
report contains any
exempt (not for
publication)
information and the
reasons for this

Page 149

Executive of the
Sexual Health
Service Section
75 consultation
feedback and to
request formal
approval to
move to a
Partnership
agreement

Key
Decision

Decision
Required

YES/NO

final model
and section 75
to move to
Partnership
model.

Consultees
(ie the identity of
the principal
groups whom the
decision-taker
proposes to
consult)

Scarborough
Teaching
Hospital NHS
Foundation
Trust

Consultation
Process
(ie the means
by which any
such
consultation is
to be
undertaken)

the Council’s
website

How
representations
may be made and
details of Contact
Person
(Tel: 0845 034
9494)
unless specified
otherwise)

Relevant
documents
already
submitted
to Decision
Taker

Health
Improvement
Manager, Health
and Adult
Services, Katie
Needham, Public
Health Consultant,
Health and Adult
Services
01609 797063 /
01609 797154,

Should you wish to make representation as to the matter being discussed in public please contact Daniel Harry
Email: (daniel.harry@northyorks.gov.uk) Tel: 01609 533531.

OFFICIAL
Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

